QSCICLONE@

PHARMACEUTICALS

BEEEZXZEKRKBRAE
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
(REESHEERMHZHERL )

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

B%{5 188 Stock Code: 6600

2023

Annual Report
FE®RSE

‘&85 For identification purpose only






Ek=q
Content

NGIE- ¥

Corporate information

TRE®RE

Chairman’s statement

EREw IO

Management discussion and analysis

EENEREEERE

Biographies of director and senior management
TEERRE

Corporate governance report

EExgms

Directors’ report

J8) 37 % B4 B

Independent auditor’s report

BftEEmKER

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
aHEERER

Consolidated balance sheet

statements

22

31

40

60

94

102

104

106

108

110

226

227

252




NI Re

Corporate Information

EEg

HITES

R 5 (BB 7T ERBH)
BRBL L (BREABERABH)

FHITES

Li Zhenfu st & (£ &)
Daniel Luzius Vasellat® £
Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien 2z +
FEE KL

BYEHITES
2 BEE L

Chen Ping1& &

Gu Alex Yushao 5t &
Wendy Hayes%Z +

EREES

Wendy Hayes & + (£ /&)
Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien %z &=
Gu Alex Yushao %t &

FMEES

Gu Alex Yushao %t 4 (£ /&)
iz v

Chen Pingt& =+
REEES

Li Zhenfu st & (£ &)

Wendy Hayes 2 &=
BB L

NEME

ERBL L

PR 15 B 2z £ (7202443 928 H & 1)
RERE

iz R

ERBRL L

¥ BUEm

MR RKE SRR E A

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer and President)
Ms. Pan Rongrong (Chief Financial Officer and Vice President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman)
Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella
Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien

Ms. Wang Haixia

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Liu Guoen

Dr. Chen Ping

Mr. Gu Alex Yushao
Ms. Wendy Hayes

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Wendy Hayes (Chairwoman)
Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien
Mr. Gu Alex Yushao

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Gu Alex Yushao (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Hong
Dr. Chen Ping

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman)
Ms. Wendy Hayes
Dr. Liu Guoen

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pan Rongrong
Ms. Chan Sin Man Nico (Resigned on March 28, 2024)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zhao Hong
Ms. Pan Rongrong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers



AMREE

PO Box 309,Ugland House
Grand Cayman * KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

BERTETEEE I

AP E
BT P38
FIRES22E

ERBTEEEMEY
BB

i 8 8 & T E 31198
EERANE3401AE

RABFELRE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall, Cricket Square
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman lIslands

ERRBSFEBRE
BEBEELER QA
BB

ERE165%
BERESBATE

BREEER

B iR R A1

FEFERERLT
TERERTRBERARDEAE DT
TMBRITEE DT
R 1T (& 8) B R AR

N

www.sciclone.com

R4 3R

6600

NG

Corporate Information

REGISTERED OFFICE

PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE IN THE PRC

22/F, Central Plaza
381 Middle Huaihai Road, Shanghai
PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

3401A, Windsor House
311 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall, Cricket Square
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER
Clifford Chance

PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Citibank N.A., Hong Kong Branch
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

WEBSITE

www.sciclone.com

STOCK CODE
6600

BEEZRRAR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 & E#{% ANNUAL REPORT 3



FERE
Chairman’s Statement

. EEHEH

B H2023F F B RBEEEZEHER |
HREEDERSDFE  BRMNEH=Z N
MESETNENESAITHAER - £B X —
FEHMZENKERED  BEEEKDH
mE: ZHEIR  REEFQAZLEBHNE
BERRED BHEABREERSEENR
BEE ETEREILTESMNER -

FEEATEHZEZNEHEET MO
EEUkEEmER  BOWBO BRT
REROFEFEEENRRER  XET—H
SAMBERKESE - QR 10 E G BENWN
F2023FMMGEHE  FHEERERNEE
MABEESIAERERZELCTERNEFEH
FELAET BEENERAEGFERK -
R BELXESTETEBRAZEMEE
L B3 E i Orserdu M IR » A I E &
Vaborem &) I EAER IR Al 5 B A X sl A& A4 -
—RIMERERDEBTERNERE AR
B ARKRBERERIATHOSS -

B2021F7ABEBRM AR &% mi5HE
ATREEEkRE  REELBIEEEE
BDERENFZAHEYE  TEREHH -
BREBEFMURSEREREB TN EE N
R BRAMOBRERBERHBURKERS
RBAFRHNEERBEMELAEBR T8
BHRE—FERSTRAREEATSBER
BRFENEN S—FHEE—ETRELY
BTRNRNEBELNRPEBENEE - K
F20NFEEHEFAREY - AAl—HHK
TRSRAEREERRAEREEENN
BIFER RBARARNELZELRH N - &
ERankEMNELEREY  RAARE
EMBAGEBURREABEIMERL IS
TG EEEE SR N RKEBROEA-
RAAREHMEENESRLELE RS
MEBELIREERERAMTETRERAT
TE -EEESET RAE—ARKRERE
AAABEFERIATURZLHFIATLE
ERARENFTR LALERARREER
HT-—EABERIINHEENERKS  F
BEARZHMENE ThA UEIRFLEL
REFESIEENRESR  BRTARHAET
BB R ARG e

I. Message from our Chairman

Looking back at 2023, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has gradually
subsided, but the global economy was still struggling to find its way forward
against the backdrop of geopolitical conflicts, inflation and weak recovery.
Despite a complex and volatile business environment last year, SciClone rose to
the challenge and took multiple measures to maintain the steady development of
the Company’s core business, continue to bring high-quality products to patients,
and set a benchmark of excellence in the industry.

Under the outstanding leadership of our chief executive officer, Mr. Zhao Hong,
our team was fearless in the face of challenges and worked together to achieve
rapid growth in the Company’'s performance in 2023 and delivered gratifying
results. The Company’s core product, Zadaxin, seized market opportunities in
2023 and continues to benefit a wide range of patients, while the Company'’s
in-licensed product, Danyelza, officially launched in China, further expanding
SciClone’s product portfolio. In 2023, SciClone also obtained the exclusive license
to develop and commercialize another innovative product Orserdu in China. The
Phase IlI clinical trial of the new antimicrobial product Vaborem completed patient
enrolment. A series of pipeline products have made positive progress, bringing
new momentum to the Company’s future development.

Since the Hong Kong stock market plunged in July 2021, the market has entered
a prolonged downturn, with investor pessimism pervading and fear dominating,
a sharp contrast to pre-2021. Although SciClone has consistently achieved steady
growth since its IPO, the Company’s share price performance has long failed to
fully reflect the Company’s value and fundamentals. The unsatisfactory share
price has on the one hand, limited the Company’s ability to refinance or consider
M&A in the capital markets, and on the other hand, affected the Company's
business operations and the implementation of its long-term strategies. As |
mentioned in the my letter to shareholders in 2022, the Company has always
been committed to identifying innovative products with first-in-class or best-
in-class potential to boost future performance growth momentum. In the
current challenging operating environment, the Company has had to proactively
implement strategic transformation and increase related investments in order to
improve its revenue mix and enhance its proprietary research and development
capabilities. As such, the Company’s future short-term performance may fluctuate,
which may be different from the expectations of investors in the Company.
Against such background, GL Capital Group (f£1& & &), the Company’s largest
shareholder, submitted a proposal to the board of directors of the Company for
the privatization of the Company’s shares by way of a scheme of arrangement.
The privatization price provides investors with an attractive premium and cash
return opportunity, while employees who hold share options can also receive
corresponding returns in this privatization transaction, demonstrating the
Company’s commitment to employee incentives.
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Looking ahead, | realize that there are both challenges and opportunities for
SciClone. External macroeconomic uncertainties, domestic drug policy reforms,
structural problems in the revenue composition and the construction of new
drug pipelines remain as key concerns for SciClone. Therefore, we will proactively
respond to the challenges with an open and pragmatic attitude. We will increase
our investment in research and development, expand product pipeline and
promote the commercialization of our products, with an aim to develop and
launch more differentiated and high-quality innovative drugs.

| hereby would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our Shareholders for their
unwavering support and trust in SciClone. Your trust and support allow SciClone
to move forward amid uncertainties, and also an important driving force for
SciClone to continue to embrace challenges, innovate, and forge ahead. At the
same time, | also sincerely thank the management team, employees, business
partners and customers for their support to SciClone. | strongly believe that
with our joint efforts, SciClone will continue to contribute to the “Healthy China
2030" strategy, creating greater and long-term benefits for patients, investors
and society.

Overview

The year 2023 unfolded under the shadow of relentless inflation, interest rate
hikes in an environment already burdened by high rates, mounting international
geopolitical tensions, and a waning recovery pace, presenting formidable
challenges to our business. The Company has tried its best to overcome the above
challenges through various methods and achieved improvement.

Our performance in 2023:

Our revenue reached RMB3,155.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2023,
marking an increase of 14.8% over that of the previous year. Gross profit grew
to RMB2,356.2 million of 2023, 13.8% ahead of 2022. Net profit increased by
31.2%, reaching RMB1,121.9 million in comparison with the net profit for the year
ended December 31, 2022. Excluding one-off change in fair value and impairment
losses, core net profit was approximately RMB1,236.9 million, up by approximately
19.5% compared to the core net profit for the prior year. Furthermore, operating
cash flow achieved a milestone of RMB1,404.3 million, representing a growth of
RMB220.7 million or 18.6%, compared to that of the year ended December 31,
2022.

TEBEEZRBMBR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 FE#ReE ANNUAL REPORT 5
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Our financial flexibility and resources for continuous
growth:

In November 2023, except for repaying the due debt, we have proactively prepaid
the loan balance originally due in November 2024, clearing our debts ahead of
schedule.

After repaying and prepaying the debt, as at December 31, 2023, the total cash
and cash equivalents and cash deposits (from 3 to 12 months or in floating rates)
amounted to approximately RMB2.2 billion.

Increased resource allocation in key business areas:

Under the License Agreement with Menarini, the Group will utilize its
development capability to proceed with clinical trials and employ its sales,
marketing and regulatory expertise to distribute Orserdu® (Elacestrant)
("Orserdu”), upon approval in China. The Group paid Menarini an upfront fee in
cash in November 2023.

In addition, for the year-end December 31, 2023, our selling and marketing
expenses increased by 13.5% and research and development (“R&D") expenses
grew by 37.8% compared with the last year, reflecting our continued investments
in: 1) recruiting and retaining key talents in commercialization and product
development; 2) digital commercialization capabilities by upgrading Go-To-Patient
("GTP") model to 6.2 version to further increase product accessibility to patients;
and 3) brand and loyalty enhancement through product lifecycle management
and development.

Il. Annual Results of our Company
Business Review

SciClone is a global biopharmaceutical company with an integrated platform for
the development and commercialization of innovative therapies for cancer and
severe infection. With an innovation-driven strategic transformation, the Group
has established a product portfolio with differentiated advantages. Staying true
to the Group’s original aspiration of “SciClone gives life hope”, the Group is
dedicated to improving patients’ health by providing top-tier healthcare products

and services with global standards of care.
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Commercialization

As of December 31, 2023, the integrated sales and marketing division is staffed
with approximately 860 employees, including approximately 580 employees
assigned to the immunology business unit (“IBU"), approximately 210 employees
to the oncology business unit (“OBU"”) and approximately 70 employees
responsible for new products, market access and commercial operations.

Our marketing strategies are grounded in the synergistic integration of
accumulating research evidence and the development of therapeutic guidelines.
We employ a comprehensive approach, combining both offline and online
marketing initiatives. We need to continuously invest resources and capital
in marketing to enhance the brand awareness of our products amidst the
competitive market landscape. With our deep market experience, we demonstrate
remarkable agility in embracing innovative business models, including the
establishment and improvement of the GTP model.

1) GTP model:

To diversify our sales channels and bolster sales of Zadaxin to patients
directly through pharmacies, we piloted our GTP platform back in 2015.
This strategic move has significantly improved patients access to Zadaxin by
expanding its availability from hospitals to pharmacies. The commencement
of sales through the GTP platform in 2018 marked a pivotal moment, and
from 2019 forward, the proportion of sales volume attributed to the GTP
platform has shown a consistent upward trend.

TEBEEZRBMBR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 FE#ReE ANNUAL REPORT 7
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During the year ended December 31, 2023, the upgrade of GTP model to
6.2 version mainly included the below optimizations:

1) integrated Intelligent Diagnosis feature to improve experience and
efficiency of patients’ visits, especially the follow-up visits;

2) incorporated smart functions such as: i) facial recognition and
dynamical name card QR code to make access more convenient for
the doctors and patients and to facilitate better interaction and
bonding between them; ii) “Quick Prescription Renewal” ("1 3 & B3
B 75 ") feature for patients to save time, etc..

Within the framework the current GTP model, patients can explore product
details and services via WeChat official accounts of Immunology Online
("faefE & ") for Zadaxin, Healthy Bone Alliance ("% B B8 ") for Zometa,
Neuroblastoma Care ("3 & B & ") for Danyelza, and associated Hi-Doctor
Internet Hospital WeChat mini program, collectively known as the Hi-
Doctor Platform. Once registered on the Hi-Doctor Platform, patients have
the convenience of uploading prescriptions online, with the subsequent
option of direct home delivery or collection at designated locations such
as DTP pharmacies. Moreover, the platform facilitates online appointment
scheduling for Zadaxin injections or Zometa infusions. The incorporation
of Hi-Doctor Internet Hospital to the platform enables patients to receive
online consultations and e-prescriptions seamlessly. Furthermore, the
Company enhances patient engagement on the Hi-Doctor Platform by
offering value added services including comprehensive educational content
aimed at both academic and patient communities, thereby fostering long-
term brand loyalty.

Throughout the years, we have been investing in our GTP model and
other digital technologies. With our active development and investment
in technologies and online platform, we aim to achieve better operational
efficiency and compliance by reaching more stakeholders, customers and
patients with lower costs.

The current co-operations under GTP model (Table 1):

Commercial Insurance

DTP Chains Providers
Gaoji Health;

Link Pharmacies;

Medbanks; LinkDoc;

Sinopharm Care Plus; Zhong An Insurance;
“Yiyao Pharmacies” of SPH Cloud Health; ~ Medi Trust

Yuanxin
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Lifecycle management:

The continuous growth of our products in the market is fueled by our
persistent clinical research and academic promotional efforts aimed

at broadening their clinical use. Key outcomes of our product lifecycle
management for the year 2023 include:

0

Clinical studies and publications

We have been sponsoring investigators to conduct randomized
controlled trials (“RCT") and real-world studies (“RWS") to discover
our marketed products’ potential clinical adoptions in oncology,

severe infection, vaccine and other therapeutic areas. As of the date

of this annual report, we have more than 10 on-going clinical studies
in China and overseas (the U.S. and ltaly).

Research publications:

Results from two clinical trials of Ta1 were released as online
abstract by 2023 American Society of Clinical Oncology
("ASCO") Annual Meeting in May 2023. The ASCO Annual
Meeting stands as the globe’s most prestigious and influential
scientific assembly within the clinical oncology community.
Every year it highlights the latest breakthroughs in clinical
oncology research and presents the most advanced cancer
treatment strategies available. The two abstracts are:

a) “Safety and efficacy of loading-dose Ta 1 in patients with
advanced and refractory solid tumors with lower absolute
T lymphocyte” (#Abstract e14543) with Professor Zhang
Liyuan (3% /37T) from The Second Affiliated Hospital of
Soochow University (& JI KE [ B % — 8 Pt) as the
leading principal investigator. The study concluded that a
daily loading-dose Ta1 treatment increased the number
of peripheral lymphocytic subpopulations, and this
effect appears to benefit survival outcomes, shedding
new light for patients with advanced or refractory solid
tumors when initiated ICI (immune checkpoint inhibitor)
treatment; and

TEBEEZRBMBR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 FE#ReE ANNUAL REPORT 9
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b)

“A preliminary analysis of integrating Ta1 into concurrent
chemoradiotherapy (“CCRT"”) and consolidative
immunotherapy” (#Abstract e20569). The leading
principal investigator is Professor Liu Hui (2]Z) from
Sun Yat-sen University Cancer Center (7|11 K2 & /&
B 5& A 0y). The study concluded that the integration of
Ta1 into CCRT and consolidative immunotherapy could
yield synergistic effect in LA-NSCLC (locally advanced
non-small cell lung cancer) patients. The combination
might contribute to prolonged use of consolidative
immunotherapy and survival benefit.
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Other study progresses:
Table 2: Major studies and status

Major Studies

RCT for sepsis in 1,106 patients

RCT of Ta1 combined with PD-1
antibody and apatinib in advanced
gastric cancer

Pilot trial of Ta1 to prevent COVID-19
infection in elderly renal dialysis
patients in the U.S.

RCT on the efficacy and safety of
Ta1 in the application of CCRT in LA-
NSCLC

A prospective Phase Il controlled study
assessing the impact of Ta1 on the
completion rate of immunological
consolidation therapy after curative
chemoradiotherapy for LA-NSCLC

Phase Il study to assess the efficacy
and safety of preoperative neoadjuvant
chemoradiotherapy combined with

a PD-1 inhibitor and Ta 1 in the
treatment of pMMR/MSS locally
advanced low and middle rectal cancer

Ta1 as an enhancer of vaccine
response among older adults receiving
booster doses of COVID-19

Status

Research report
submitted for
publication, awaiting
the journal’s feedback

Approaching the
completion of follow-
up and undergoing

data cleaning

Preliminary data
readout

Draft report completed

Patient enrollment on-
going

Patient enrollment on-
going

IND approved by FDA

BHEERBARNT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 FE#% ANNUAL REPORT 11
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1)

Treatment guidelines and consensuses
Zadaxin (Ta1):

In addition to official indications (for treatment of chronic hepatitis B
and vaccine enhancement in patients with impaired immunity), Ta1
has been included in treatment guidelines and consensuses issued
by several professional associations including the Chinese Medical
Association, the Chinese Society of Clinical Oncology (“CSCO"),
Chinese Medical Doctor Association and China Anti-Cancer
Association.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, Ta1 was included in three
more treatment guidelines and consensuses and also a Chinese
nationwide patient education manual for liver cancer:

) Expert Consensus on the Prevention and Treatment of
COVID-19 in Patients with Lung Cancer (CSCO and China
Medical Education Association) (i 5 %& #7278 AR 7k 5 &
RUEERERD);

i) Guidelines for Management of COVID-19 at Home for the
Elderly in China (2023) ((FBEIZFAF R T RFS HAEAERX
EIEIEEE R(2023));

i)  Chinese Clinical Practice Guidelines for the Treatment
of Hepatocellular Carcinoma with Transarterial
Chemoembolization (TACE) (2023 Edition) (R B T 4B i 2 45
B AR (b B 4% 28 (TACE) )R R R /R B B2 45 79 (20234 R )) ); and

iv)  CSCO Patient Education Manual — Liver Cancer ({7 & & K i&
HEGBEHBEFM — FE)).

Zometa (Zoledronic Acid):

For the year ended December 31, 2023, Zoledronic Acid (the
compound of Zometa) was included in one more treatment guidelines
— Chinese Anti-Cancer Association Guidelines and Standards for the
Diagnosis and Treatment of Breast Cancer (2024 Edition) ({7 Bl #11 %=
We I IRE 2 A 5 B B 48 8 (2024F HR))) (“Guidelines”). It was
formulated by the Breast Cancer Committee of the Chinese Anti-
Cancer Association and others and published in the “Chinese Journal
of Cancer” in December 2023. Zoledronic Acid is recommended by
the Guidelines for use in adjuvant therapy following surgery for early-
stage breast cancer.
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/) Other professional reviews/recommendations

i) Tal received positive review in a Comment article titled
“Strategies for cancer-care resilience during the new COVID-19
wave in China” published in The Lancet Oncology (IF=54.43) in
April 2023; and

i) In January 2023, Ta1 was included in Shanghai COVID-19
Treatment Guidelines and was recommended by several Class IlI
general hospitals in treating COVID-19 patients.

Product Development

In recent years, the Company has embarked on the development of several
pipeline drug candidates via the in-licensing approach. This strategy involves
acquiring licenses and engaging in the product development lifecycle at various
phases. Our involvement spans from the IND filing stage for some of our early-
stage pipeline products to conducting pivotal clinical trials for some of our late-
stage pipeline products.

Our product development efforts are a collaborative endeavor involving our
Business Development, Research & Development, and Regulatory Affair teams.
These teams are dedicated to advancing the development of products focusing
on targeted therapies, immunotherapy and enhanced chemotherapy options with
first/best-in-class potential. As at December 31, 2023, our product development
teams consisted of approximately 126 members.

Dr. Mao Li (FE7) is our Vice President, General Manager of R&D and Chief
Medical Officer. Dr. Mao is a worldwide prominent physician-scientist in upper
aerodigestive tract malignancies, with more than 35 years of extensive experience
in clinical practice, clinical and basic research, and leadership in the field of
oncology both in the U.S. and China. He chairs for the Group’s Drug Development
Committee to support product development.

As of the date of this annual report, we have built a portfolio of 10 pipeline drug
candidates, 6 of which are in phase Ill or later stages overseas with a fast-to-
market strategy in China, and 4 are in earlier stages from pre-clinical to phase Il
clinical trials overseas or in China.
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The following table summarizes the mechanism of action, indication(s)/clinical
adoptions, and development status of our pipeline assets as of the date of this

annual report.

BEE/ BEBHMEMHMR
ERER fER & e K & A BEBH P RAE R
Mechanism of Indication(s)/ Partner’s
Product Name Action Clinical Adoptions Partner Overseas Status China Status
®E:
Late stage:
Vibativ HMMERAMENSE HABP/VABPIE M ZE  Cumberland BLEm ERRRABRRLLEN2021
ERREEN R EEERD Pharmaceuticals F9AR ZNDA
(&)
Vibativ Dual antibacterial HABP/VABP complicated Cumberland Marketed Obtained clinical trial waiver
activity on cell wall and  skin and skin structure  Pharmaceuticals (U.S.) and submitted NDA in
cell membrane infections September 2021
Orserdu® (34178 B P ER &) 88 4% )% 1 ESR1%E # H)ER+ » HER2- Berlin-Chemie AG BLm EEBERKRH
B 85k mBC (@)
Orserdu® (Elacestrant) Block the transcriptional ~ ESRT mutations in ER+,  Berlin-Chemie AG Marketed In preparation of clinical
activity of the ER HER2- advanced or mBC  (Germany) applications
Vaborem® CESTBEEEE WEBG+B-AERE UT - Al HABP EMEREHE BT #2023 F3 MG IND L/ + 1
EEEE) el VABP R & il 1 (BRH) WBFIATHENZAEA
Beg MUFIATRES
A
Vaborem® Carbapenem + cUTI, clAl, HABP, VABP  Menarini Group (Italy) Marketed Obtained IND approval in

(Meropenem+Vaborbactam)

3-lactamase inhibitor

and Bacteremia

March 2023; first subject dosed
in July 2023; subject enrollment
completed in Jan 2024

14



EREHRE

Chairman’s Statement

BEE/ BEEHRE MR
EmA® ER# A K JE R REEH R R E R R
Mechanism of Indication(s)/ Partner’s
Product Name Action Clinical Adoptions Partner Overseas Status China Status
Danyelza® (R 78 # £ 1) #£1G6D2 BfE ST AR Y-mAbs Therapeutics, #2020 11A{EFDA  R2023F7AEXEE (L

Danyelza® (naxitamab)

Targeting GD2

High risk neuroblastoma

A EZ F 4 B GM-CSF
GEFUERREEY

BRRERBESAR

BEEQUHWE)
Naxitamab and GM-CSF
in combination with IT

in patients with high-risk

neuroblastoma (Study
203)
ER_BEAR

Inc. (£8)

Y-mAbs Therapeutics,
Inc. (U.S.)

ERfSBLA

Obtained BLA from
FDA in November
2020

EEETEEIHA

US Phase Il trial on-
going

EEETEEIHA

202356 AR R PIEUEBLARE
BRBFIARBBRR
BLA

Officially commercialized in July
2023; obtained BLA approval in
Macau in June 2023; submitted
BLA in Hong Kong in January
2023

EREZEAE

Patient enrollment on-going

ERAERRIND

Relapsed second-line US Phase Il trial on-  In preparation of IND
osteosarcoma going submission
Omburtamab #LB7-HIR EAR CNS /1 & ML) Y-mAbs Therapeutics, M2021F4AREMA  —
HREER Inc. (£E) RZMAA
Omburtamab Targeting B7-H3- CNS/leptomeningeal Y-mAbs Therapeutics, Submitted MAA to —
expressing cells metastasis from Inc. (U.S) EMA in April 2021
neuroblastoma
RRx-001 Myc ¥ ] Il J2 CD47- AR EpicentRx, Inc. EEETEBENSH EEET=HRL LESCLCI
SIRPa 38 B 5 L 2 (8) E HBHANnBEAR
RRx-001 Myc inhibitor and Small cell lung cancer EpicentRx, Inc. (U.S.)  US Phase Il trial on-  Phase Ill study of 3rd

antagonist of CD47-
SIRPa pathway

EERRE

Colorectal cancer

going

Bk EEIE
+FUER)
US Phase Il
(+irinotecan)
completed

and beyond SCLC patient
enrollment on-going
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BEE,/

W K & A
Indication(s)/
Clinical Adoptions

EmEH F P
Mechanism of

Product Name Action

Atem

Partner

AEEHRE MR
n

Partner's

Overseas Status

R B R

China Status

28

Early stage:

PEN-866 HSP90-SN38HI AL B EEY) B HE

PEN-866 Mini-conjugate of Solid tumors
HSP90-SN38

HSP90-PI3K SMDC HSPOO-PIK AL B HEY) EHEFE

HSP90-PI3K SMDC Mini-conjugate of Solid tumors

Tarveda Therapeutics
(&)

Tarveda Therapeutics
(USs)

FHEETERIBE
758

US Phase Il basket
trial On-going

BG IR Al
Pre-clinical

R02F6ARELHE—/=
A R A IND L

Obtained IND approval for
Phase I/Il'in lung cancer in June
2022
HhETEERE

Spared efforts in lead

B

HSP90-PI3K conjugate optimization
PT-112 BHLED B 51 51 iR Phosplatin FRETERISEE Exmkafids
Therapeutics (£B) %
PT-112 Platinum-containing Late stage prostate Phosplatin US Phase Il trial on-  Completed Phase 2a trial
compounds cancer Therapeutics (U.S.) going
RER Bl RIS R
+EAME)
Cholangiocarcinoma US Phase | trial
(+gemicitabine)
completed
ABTL-0812 Akt/mTOR ¥ 4 7 FENE/ 6,/ HEERE  Adlity Pharma ERABELHAAR SEBIND
(EILT)
ABTL-0812 Akt/mTOR inhibitor Endometrial/lung/ Ability Pharma (Spain)  EU Phase 2b on-going Obtained IND

pancreatic cancer

1) FTEGHEHEZEREE:

e Orserdu: 72023F118 & R
Bl H X 4N 2 e & E5E T Berlin-
Chemie AG&] 3 & A # #& © %
BAEERBEIWAIEMNEE
£ Radius Health, Inc. 89 42 &F A
MEATEBRMAELRFEL
Orserdu ([FF AT &) °

Orserdu &5 — H b 2 M — — @
HEHMAREEABESRIREN
ER+ * HER2- B2 BA gy mBC B & &)
BL EEMARTHNELER
&g BRI B 8 R E I 72023
F1H E DAY - BEE TR
2023F9A M BEEFH M -
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1) Key pipeline milestones:

o Orserdu: in November 2023, the Company and Berlin-Chemie AG,
Menarini Group entered into a license agreement, granting the Group
the exclusive right to develop and commercialize Orserdu in China,
under Menarini’'s head license agreement with Radius Health, Inc (the
“License Agreement”).

Orserdu is the “first and only” treatment specifically indicated for
patients with ESR1 mutations in ER+, HER2- advanced or mBC with
the approval from the FDA under its priority review and fast track
designation in January 2023, and subsequently from the European
Commission in September 2023.



&t R f A AR A R PR OB OE T 3R
R 720204F12 A B 6 B & &t
HEET IR BEME
RKEZRSEERNRE  $H
HEXIABRENERNEEN
18% ° #170% & 2L B8 5= 7% Bl B
HR+ * HER2- + 1M /& #40% K
ER+ * HER2- B Hi 3t mBC /& I
BEHRESRIEE - RN BH
HR+ HER2-mBC B £ [ ;2 N
XEMBER RBEERZ
FEAD AR (ETDHR AR
FRIBE A A AW - ESRIE
BABEEETHMEMES — @2 M
REHEE 25 AIE—HEHN
SR o Orserdus —RE O AR IE 2
i B 2= X2 48 % 7 ) (TSERD)) -
FARJAE A BESRIZE & M ER+ -
HER2-fEfE S AFER —X ' &
H20F RELER JB A 9 R B <E
e =/l

BT AIHE BEEZEER
BERZFE IRRBERA R -
WHBHEAEHESE ZHREE
FTENEEMBEREESH
1% 9 38 Orserdu ©

20234F E fZ 1

—  2023ENMAEITHAHE
% ADEHBEHEER
B ) B IR 5 o

HERE (R EIEE
— ADEABREEEERA
BEERABBEHEE -

Vaborem : 72022%8AH = K
SERXMERBEEETA.
Menarini Asia-Pacific Holdings
Pte. Ltd. [EHERTZAAFE])
RIVETRI REERE  BRELASE
ERFELEAMEZEMNEEEAQA
£2 Melinta Therapeutics# 48 & 7]
MERPEBRAERE XL

Vaborem -
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Breast cancer has overtaken lung cancer as the world’s mostly
commonly-diagnosed cancer and China accounted for 18% of the
total number of new breast cancer cases worldwide, according to
statistics released by the International Agency for Research on Cancer
of World Health Organization in December 2020. Approximately 70%
of breast cancer cases are HR+, HER2- and up to 40% of ER+, HER2-
advanced or mBC cases present with ESRT mutations. Sequential
endocrine therapy (“ET") is considered the mainstay treatment for
premenopausal and postmenopausal women with HR+/HER2 mBC
without extensive visceral involvement. However, ESR1 mutations
are a known driver of resistance to standard ET, and so far, have
been difficult to treat. Orserdu, an oral selective estrogen receptor
degrader (“SERD") developed as a once-daily treatment for ER+,
HER2- tumors that harbor ESR1 mutations, represents the first
innovation in ET in nearly 20 years.

Under the License Agreement, SciClone will utilize its development
capability to proceed with clinical trials and employ its sales,
marketing and regulatory expertise to distribute Orserdu, upon
approval in China.

Milestone in 2023

—  Following the signing of the License Agreement in November
2023, the Company commenced the preparation of clinical
applications within China.

Post-Reporting Period (Expected) Milestones

—  The Company will explore pilot launch opportunities in Bo'ao of
Hainan and the Greater Bay Area.

Vaborem: in August 2022, the Group and A. Menarini Asia-Pacific
Holdings Pte. Ltd., part of The Menarini Group (“Menarini Asia-
Pacific”), entered into a license and collaboration agreement granting
the Group the exclusive right to develop and commercialize Vaborem
in China under Menarini Asia-Pacific's head license agreement with
Melinta Therapeutics.
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Vaborem % fix & #1/& A R AKE &
CH 4R 5- A B R B A3
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Vaborem is a fixed-dose combination of a carbapenem and a novel
boronic acid B-lactamase inhibitor of class A and Class C serine
B-lactamase. Vaborbactam can inhibit various class A and class
C [B-lactamases, so it protects meropenem from degradation by
serine carbapenemases, restoring meropenem’s activity against
carbapenem-resistant strains. Vaborem has been specifically
developed to inhibit carbapenem-resistant enterobacterales (“CRE")
including the commonly found Klebsiella pneumoniae carbapenemase
("KPC")-producing bacteria.

CRE has become a public health threat worldwide, which the World
Health Organization has listed as one of the three critical pathogens
in need of new antimicrobial options. The incidence of carbapenem-
resistant Klebsiella pneumonia (CR-KP) infections is rising fast in
China over the last 10 years according to CHINET. Rates of mortality
in patients with invasive infections caused by CRE have been reported
high but antimicrobial agents with activity against CRE are few
in number and often associated with significant toxicities and/or
suboptimal pharmacokinetic parameters.

Currently Vaborem has been granted marketing authorizations in the
U.S. and the European Union, among other countries and regions, for
adults with cUTI including pyelonephritis. In select territories, it has
also been approved for the treatment of complicated intra-abdominal
infections (“clAl”), hospital-acquired bacterial pneumonia (“HABP")
and ventilator-associated bacterial pneumonia (“VABP"). Once
approved in China, Vaborem will meet significant unmet medical
needs in the country.
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Milestone in 2023

— In March 2023, the NMPA approved the Company's IND
application for Vaborem;

— In July 2023, the first subject has been dosed in the Phase IlI
clinical trial of Vaborem in China.

Post-Reporting Period (Expected) Milestones

— In January 2024, subject enrollment was completed in the
Phase Il clinical trial of Vaborem in China;

—  The Company plans to submit NDA in China for Vaborem in
2024.

Danyelza® (Naxitamab) (“Danyelza”): Danyelza is the first
humanized, monoclonal antibody targeting GD2, a tumor antigen
on the cell surface of neuroblastoma. It was approved by the FDA in
November 2020 and by the NMPA in China in December 2022 for
the treatment, in combination with granulocyte-macrophage colony-
stimulating factor (“GM-CSF"), of pediatric patients of 1 year of age
and older and adult patients with relapsed or refractory high-risk
neuroblastoma in the bone or bone marrow who have demonstrated
a partial response, minor response, or stable disease to prior therapy
(the “Indication”).

In addition to demonstrated clinical benefits, Danyelza has the
advantages of convenient administration and high patient compliance.
It has short infusion time (30-60 minutes), which makes it possible to
be administered in outpatient setting. There is no requirement of pre-
treatment with autologous stem cell transplant or combination with
IL-2 (Interleukin-2) therapy when patients receive Danyelza.
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Except for the Indication, our partner Y-mAbs Therapeutics, Inc.
("Y-mAbs"”) is expanding naxitamab’s indications such as naxitamab
and GM-CSF in combination with irinotecan and temozolomide (IT)
in patients with high-risk neuroblastoma (Study 203) and relapsed
second-line osteosarcoma (both are Phase Il trials on-going).

In June 2022, the Company obtained IND approval for Study 203
from the NMPA. Study 203 is an international single-arm, multi-
centre, Phase Il clinical trial. It is the first time that Chinese research
centres join and play an important role in international multicentre
clinical study of immunotherapy on neuroblastoma.

Milestones in 2023

— In January 2023, the Company submitted Biologics License
Application (“BLA") of Danyelza in Hong Kong;

— InJune 2023, obtained BLA approval for Danyelza in Macau;

— OnJuly 1, 2023, Danyelza was officially commercial launched in
China; and

—  The Company initiated patient enrollment for Study 203.

Post-Reporting Period (Expected) Milestones

—  The Company expects to complete patient enrollment for Study
203 in 2024.

The Company cannot guarantee that it will be able to
develop, or ultimately market, any of the products in its
pipeline successfully. Our ongoing investment in product
development or research might not translate into financial
gains. Shareholders and potential investors of the Company
are advised to exercise due care when dealing in the Shares of
the Company.
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Outlook

The International Monetary Fund has indicated that, thanks to disinflation and
stable growth, the risk of a severe downturn in the global economy for 2024 has
diminished. Despite this positive outlook, our company still faces a challenging
business environment. We are committed to harnessing our collective efforts to
make impactful progress in all aspects of our business. Our goal is to contribute
to the well-being of our patients, and the broader community,
steadfastly upholding our mission to “give life hope”.

investors,

Top priorities in 2024

1) Continuously expand marketing channels and strengthen investment in
market promotion and commercialization activities;

2) Drive clinical evidence analysis and publication on Zadaxin in infectious
diseases, including adjuvant for vaccines (such as the COVID-19 vaccine) in

the U.S., and expand therapy indications in oncology through combination
therapy with PD-1/PD-L1;

3) Submit NDA in China of Vaborem for cUTI including pyelonephritis;

4) Explore pilot launch opportunities of Orserdu in Bo‘ao of Hainan and the
Greater Bay Area;

5) Conduct interim analysis of RRx-001 Phase IlI clinical trial;

6) License-in innovative assets in oncology and severe infection;

7) Enhance more in-depth and extensive cooperation with partners, including
collaboration with Pfizer and Baxter; and

8) Hire key senior level positions of clinical operations and project

management, and build clinical development capability through multiple
global studies.
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Management Discussion And Analysis

XEOE PERFORMANCE REVIEW
BE12A31BLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20234 20224
2023 2022
ARM AR

BER %* BETT %*
RMB million %*  RMB million %*
A Revenue 3,155.6 100.0 2,749.7 100.0
U @NI N Cost of revenue (799.4) (25.3) (679.2) (24.7)
EF Gross profit 2,356.2 74.7 2,070.5 75.3
HEREHAX Selling and marketing expenses (712.8) (22.6) (627.7) (22.8)
1TELR X Administrative expenses (257.3) (8.2) (225.0) (8.2)
if 3% 53 % R&D expenses (170.7) (5.4) (123.9) (4.5)
E A U A Other income 41.8 1.3 12.1 0.4
HibE 1858 Other losses, net (52.1) 1.7) (155.4) (5.7)
KEFH Operating profit 1,205.1 38.2 950.6 34.6
B WA Finance income 70.5 2.2 36.1 1.3
B 75 PR Finance costs (58.2) (1.8) (46.6) (1.7)
WA (BRA) F8E Finance income/(costs), net 12.3 0.4 (10.5) (0.4)
BT 18 B 51 FI B Profit before income tax 1,217.4 38.6 940.1 34.2
FRIE B Income tax expenses (95.5) (3.0) (84.7) (3.1)

AATEEANEEERRE  Profit for the year attributable to
the owner of the Company 1,121.9 35.6 855.4 31.1

* BHRAOE  HFLMKRLE100% *  Number may not add up to 100% due to rounding
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WA Revenue
BZNAMBLEE
Year ended December 31,
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR AR
BHETT % BET %
RMB million %  RMB million %
BEEm Proprietary product 2,630.7 83.4 2,168.3 78.9
REBAIERHEE Promotion products for business
HEEM partners 379.0 12.0 358.9 13.0
HES|IAEm In-licensed products 145.9 4.6 222.5 8.1
&t Total 3,155.6 100.0 2,749.7 100.0
B Z2023F12A318EFE - KM AE For the year ended December 31, 2023, our revenue grew to approximately
EEHNAREE3ISS6EEBTL  REFERY RMB3,155.6 million, up by approximately 14.8% over last year.
14.8% -
HE Edn Proprietary product

REMlmEERABmEFMARE21683
BETEMARKI23AETH213%E
2023 M AR2,630.7THETT °

F03FE - L ERBERRMB mHHE
BEMOTREREA - st BERSB
ERAMBRERN EBBFLGTPENE
THEARMUERBEABRKER i AZE
e SEE B HES -

Talh—EREHADTZH ATRBERER
HRERMNEGERE PHT-MK =B KIK
BoREEE EREZEANAERS
2 BB RMEAEAMEIE o COVID-19% 151
AEEFEBRERATREADRILREEN
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REAEBEEREWE  BREOHEHE
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THOHEEERKER - R2021F 118 A4
BIRIMEARDHEMZE  AZERMOIEE
ERR-LEBEBRHEEEARARAAE
WEFPENBREAERDHEE - B EN
RGN EE(NER - FE - MRZE - BEX
FERBE)ME  RMOEBKRBEINER
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Revenue from sales of Zadaxin increased by RMB462.3 million, or 21.3% from
RMB2,168.3 million last year to RMB2,630.7 million in 2023.

With increased prevalence in infectious diseases in 2023, there was an uptick in
demand for Zadaxin. Additionally, the clinical benefits recognized by doctors and
patients, improved accessibility through the digitized GTP model, and expanded
clinical applications also contributed to the sales of Zadaxin.

Ta1 is an immunomodulating polypeptide that can stimulate both innate and
adaptive immune responses, reverse T-cell exhaustion, and recover immune
reconstitution. It has been widely used for the treatment of viral infection,
immunodeficiency and cancer. In the wake of the COVID-19 pandemic, there has
been an increased public understanding and acceptance of the role and benefits
of immune modulation in enhancing immunity and the efficacy of Ta 1.

We generate revenue of Zadaxin primarily through the sales to our exclusive
importer and distributor in China. In compliance with the “two-invoice system”,
after our sales of Zadaxin to the exclusive importer, it clears the products through
customs of China as an imported drug and distributes further to hospitals
and pharmacies. In November 2021, the Company entered into an import and
distribution agreement to engage Shanghai Pharmaceutical Lin-gang Special Area
Co., Ltd. (- ZEE R 4 fE §8 5 R 2 7)), one of our non-substantial shareholders,
as our exclusive importer and distributor of Zadaxin in China. For Zadaxin's
overseas sales, such as in South Korea, Thailand, Argentina, Italy and Cambodia,
we primarily rely on overseas partners to handle marketing, promotion, sales and
distribution.
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Promotion products for business partners

Revenue from sales of promotion products for business partners increased by
RMB20.2 million, or 5.6% from RMB358.9 million for last year to RMB379.0
million in 2023.

In 2023, we deepened our partnership with Pfizer by adding three new products,
Campto, Sutent and Vizimpro, to our collaboration. Of these, Campto and Sutent
began to generate revenue within the year, contributing to the sales growth of
promotion products.

By the end of 2023, our promotion products for business partners include
Farlutal, Methotrexate, Estracyt, Campto, Sutent and Vizimpro which we promote
and sell for Pfizer, and Holoxan, Mesna and Endoxan, which we promote and sell
for Baxter.

In-licensed products

For the year ended December 31, 2023, our revenue of in-licensed products
decreased to RMB145.9 million, down from RMB222.5 million in the preceding
year. This change was primarily attributed to a juxtaposition of factors: the
performance of Zometa has experienced a decline following the execution of the
seventh batch of volume-based procurement (“VBP") since the final quarter of
2022, while sales of Danyelza increased due to its official commercial launch in
the latter half of 2023.

e Danyelza

In December 2020, we in-licensed Danyelza from Y-mAbs. In order to
accelerate provision of this innovative therapy to pediatric patients in China
prior to the BLA approval by the NMPA, the Company had pilot launch
of Danyelza in Hainan Bo'Ao Lecheng International Medical Tourism Pilot
Zone and China (Tianjin) Pilot Free Trade Zone in June and December 2021,
respectively. Except for selling to Hainan and Tianjin, in January 2022,
Danyelza started to generate revenue from Taiwan based on local special
import policy.

On July 1, 2023, Danyelza was officially commercial launched. It has been
included in approximately 50 special drug lists under Hui Min Bao (2 R1R)
across various provinces and cities, providing supplement coverage on top
of the basic medical insurance for severe diseases.
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Cost of revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2023 our cost of revenue rose by 17.7% to
RMB799.4 million, up from RMB679.2 million for the previous year, primarily due
to an RMB114.7 million increase in product costs.

We manufacture our proprietary product, Zadaxin, through Patheon Italia, an
industry-leading and highly reputable CMO. We purchased in-licensed products
from our partners, including Zometa from Novartis, Oravig from Vectan
Pharm and Danyelza from Y-mAbs under the supply agreements with them.
Our production quality management standards remain complied with Good
Manufacturing Practice (GMP) in various markets where we have operations.

The following table sets forth our cost of revenue by amount, as a percentage
of total cost of revenue and as a percentage of total revenues for the periods
indicated:

BZNBNALEE
Year ended December 31,
2023F 202246
2023 2022

AR T ON AR E KA

ER-P % BA BETT % Bl

RMB % of RMB % of

million % Revenue million % Revenue

Em A Product costs 560.9 70.2 17.8 446.2 65.7 16.2

BREEEH Amortization of intangible assets 125.7 15.7 4.0 99.7 14.7 3.6
BB - EERYAK  Freight, warehouse and logistic

B AR costs 80.9 10.1 2.6 85.3 12.6 3.1

HAt Others 31.9 4.0 0.9 48.0 7.0 1.8

Cha Total 799.4 100.0 253 679.2 100.0 24.7

EmRARBEN  DEEXMARZRE
ERBABERBNBRESENZE -
JUH R20224 F W EE B KA B IR B
FHSHEMP023FNEERL - BEY
AT - BRPFE2024F S KB EEH R
B o

BE 2EERMAAZR2023F 5/ T -
HABEERERBDDEUERRFPER
203FWEFBBEBEMMRILES o #iH
B R0 T0 i N FFT R 2022 KA FF AT 5 1
HETHEERBMAR -

Our product costs saw a marked increase, mainly due to two factors: rising
product revenue and the effects of high inflation rates in Europe. Specifically, a
surge in inflation in Italy during the last quarter of 2022 significantly elevated our
manufacturing costs in 2023. To counteract these rising costs, we need to actively
pursue a range of cost-saving measures.

Freight, warehouse and logistic expenses fell in 2023 because of the easing of
international energy tension and resumption of more flights after China reopened
in early 2023. Amortization expenses increased as we made certain sales
milestone payment to a licensor at the end of 2022.
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Gross Profit

In 2023, our gross profit rose by RMB285.7 million, or 13.8%, reaching
RMB2,356.2 million, up from RMB2,070.5 million in the preceding year. Our gross
margin decreased by 0.6 ppt to 74.7% in 2023 from 75.3% the year before,
which was primarily affected by cost increase as outlined above.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses increased by RMB85.1 million, or 13.5%, to
RMB712.8 million in 2023 from RMB627.8 million last year, which was mainly due
to:

1) the rise in employee salaries and sales incentive bonuses, collectively
totaling RMB33.6 million or a 8.6% increase, coupled with the growth of
our sales and marketing team and an uptick in sales; and

2) the expansion of travel and meeting expenses by RMB31.3 million attributed
to the resurgence of business promotion activities following the lifting of
COVID-19 restrictions in China.

In the future, as the company introduces more new products to the market, sales
and marketing expenditures may further increase. We will continue to effectively
manage and monitor these expenses to ensure the maintenance of sustainable
and balanced financial health.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by RMB32.3 million, or 14.4% to RMB257.3
million in 2023 from RMB225.0 million last year, which was primarily attributable
to the increase of staff cost and travel and meeting expenses.

Research and Development Expenses

In 2023, our research and development expenses rose by 37.8% to RMB170.7
million, up from RMB123.9 million for 2022, which was driven by the progression
of several key product development projects and the growth of product
development team. The increase of R&D expenses reflected our commitment to
accelerating product pipeline and bolstering our R&D prowess, and we expect to
continue increase our investment in this area in the future.
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Other Losses, Net

In 2023, net other losses reduced by RMB103.3 million, or 66.5%, to RMB52.1
million from RMB155.4 million for 2022.

Due to the fair value loss on an investment amid a declining market in 2022,
the Company incurred a one-off cost of RMB80.5 million that did not repeat in
2023. Additionally, the foreign exchange loss reduced by RMB45.2 million as RMB
experienced a slight appreciation against the USD in 2023 compared with 2022.

Operating Profit

As a result of the foregoing, our operating profit was RMB1,205.1 million in 2023,
compared to RMB950.6 million in 2022.

Finance Income/(Costs), Net

In 2023 we had net finance income of RMB12.3 million, a shift from the finance
costs of RMB10.5 million in 2022. The change was largely due to an uptick in
finance income from higher interest rates and larger cash pool. Although interest
rate of our bank borrowings also increased, we managed to settle all outstanding
principal amounts, including scheduled due and loan repayment, within 2023.

Income Tax Expenses

Our income tax expense increased to RMB95.5 million in 2023 from RMB84.7
million last year, which was primarily due to the increase of profit before income
tax during the year.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year was RMB1,121.9 million in
2023, compared to the profit of RMB855.4 million last year, up by 31.2%.
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Capital Structure

The Company has sustained a robust and stable financial standing. Our
total assets decreased to RMB4,000.3 million as at December 31, 2023 from
RMB4,320.4 million as at December 31, 2022, following the repayment of bank
loans. This repayment also directly contributed to a significant reduction of the
liabilities to RMB735.2 million as at December 31, 2023 from RMB1,328.2 million
as at December 31, 2022.

Liquidity, Financial Resources, and Gearing

We have historically funded our cash requirements principally from cash generated
from operations, and to a lesser extent, equity and debt financing. We adopt
prudent treasury policies in cash and financial management. To achieve better risk
control and minimize cost of funds, our treasury activities are centralized. Cash is
generally placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in RMB. Our liquidity
and financing requirements are reviewed regularly.

As of December 31, 2023, we had cash and cash equivalents and cash deposits
(from 3 to 12 months or in floating rates) together of RMB2,219.8 million, which
were predominantly denominated in RMB. Going forward, we believe that our
liquidity requirements will be satisfied by using a combination of cash generated
from operating activities, the net proceeds received from the global offering
of the Company and other funds raised from the capital markets from time to
time. For the year ended December 31, 2023, our operating cash flow reached
approximately RMB1,404.3 million, approximately RMB220.7 million or 18.6%
higher than that of year ended December 31, 2022.

As of December 31, 2023, we had no unutilized banking facilities. We repaid
all the loan balances in November 2023 and there was no bank borrowing as
at December 31, 2023. We will consider new financing while maintaining an
appropriate level of gearing in anticipation of new investments.

As of December 31, 2023, we had a gearing ratio (total liabilities over total assets)
of 18.4% (30.7% as of December 31, 2022).

Contingent Liabilities

As of December 31, 2023, we did not have any material contingent liabilities.
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Capital Expenditure

Our capital expenditures principally comprise expenditures for purchases of
property and equipment relating to office use and purchase of intangible
assets. Our capital expenditures changed to RMB77.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2023 from RMB196.1 million for the last year. We plan to fund our
planned capital expenditures using cash generated from operations and the net
proceeds from the global offering of the Company.

Material Acquisitions and Future Plans for Major
Investments

The Company did not conduct any material acquisition or investment for the
year ended December 31, 2023. As at the date of this annual report, we have no
specific future plan for material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures.

Significant Investments Held

As of December 31, 2023, we did not hold any significant investments. As at
the date of this annual report, we have no specific future plan for material
investments or capital assets.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Our subsidiaries operate mainly in Cayman Islands, Mainland China and Hong
Kong, and they are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency
exposure, primarily with respect to RMB. Foreign exchange risk primarily arises
from recognized assets and liabilities in our subsidiaries in Cayman Islands when
receiving or to receive foreign currencies from, or paying or to pay foreign
currencies to business partners. We manage foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of our foreign exchange exposures and try to minimize these
exposures through natural hedges, wherever possible, and may enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts, when necessary. We did not enter into any forward
contracts or other financial instruments to hedge our exposure to foreign currency
risk in 2023.
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As of December 31, 2023, we had approximately 1,050 full-time employees,
most of whom were based in Mainland China, with the remainder in Hong Kong,
Singapore, the U.S., Italy, and the Cayman Islands.

Committed to establishing a competitive, fair remuneration and benefits system,
we continually refine our remuneration and incentive policies in order to ensure
that our employees receive competitive remuneration packages. As required
under the PRC regulations, we participate in housing fund and various employee
social security plan that are organized by applicable local municipal and provincial
governments. We also purchase commercial health and accidental insurance
for our employees. We also provide regular and specialized trainings tailored
to the needs of our employees in different departments, so that our employees
may stay up to date with the latest industrial developments and technological
advancements. In order to incentivize our employees, we have granted and
planned to continue to grant share-based incentive awards to our employees in
the future to incentivize their contributions to our growth and development.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed above, there are no important events that have occurred after
the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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Biographies of Director and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Hong (# %), aged 60, is our executive Director, chief executive officer
and president. He is a member of Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
Zhao has more than 30 years of experience in the medical and pharmaceutical
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he served as a lecturer of Nanjing Medical
University (F R 2R AZ) from July 1986 to September 1992, and served in
Xian Janssen Pharmaceutical Ltd. (FA % 5 R £ % F R A7) from December
1992 to July 1995, a regional sales manager, national sales director and senior
vice president of Beijing Novartis Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (It R ER s HF R D
Al) from July 1995 to February 2011, and an executive vice president of Simcere
Pharmaceutical Group (st % 4% % £ &) from February 2011 to April 2013. Mr.
Zhao joined SciClone US in April 2013 and served as its CEO (China Operations),
in charge of its operations in China before the incorporation of the Company.

Mr. Zhao received his bachelor’s degree in clinical medicine from Nanjing Medical
University (F m B &K Z) (formerly known as Nanjing Medical College (F R
B Z[T)) in July 1986, in Jiangsu province, the PRC. He obtained his Executive
Master of Business Administration (“EMBA") from China Europe International
Business School (41 BB BR T £ Ft) in April 2002, in Shanghai, the PRC.

Ms. Pan Rongrong (J& & &), aged 46, is an executive Director, the vice president,
chief financial officer, and company secretary of the Company. Prior to joining our
Group in November 2018, Ms. Pan worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian
CPAs Limited Company (& ZEKBHR KRG 5HAIHH AR 2 R]) from July 2002
to November 2018 with last position as a partner, and served as an associate of
auditing department of Arthur Andersen LLP (% 3E 15 % 38 & 5H B0 E 5 FT) from
August 2001 to June 2002. Ms. Pan has served as an independent non-executive
Director and chairwoman of the Audit Committee of Yidu Tech Inc. (Hong Kong
Stock Exchange: 2158) (%8 JE &t £ B R X A) since January 2021.

Ms. Pan obtained her bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai International
Studies University (£ /8 #NE 58 X 2) in July 1998 in Shanghai, the PRC, and her
master’s degree in accounting from Fudan University (1€ B X&) in July 2001
in Shanghai, the PRC. She is a member of China Certified Public Accountant
Association.
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Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhenfu, aged 60, is our non-executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Li is the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Li is the founder of GL Capital Group (f£f& & 74%), one of our substantial
Shareholders, and has served as its president and chief executive officer since
February 2010. Prior to founding GL Capital Group, Mr. Li served as the China
president of Novartis Overseas Investment AG Beijing Representative Office from
June 2004 to January 2010.

Mr. Li also has served as a director of The Nature Conservancy (X B AR #E 5 &)
since September 2009, a director of China Entrepreneur Club (7 B (b 2 SR (B 4%
#B) since April 2009, and a vice executive president of Pharmaceutical Chamber
of Commerce of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce (FE2FH T &
Bt B8 BE P9 €) since December 2010.

Mr. Li obtained his bachelor’s degree in materials science from Beihang University
(A = AR ZE A K K E) in July 1986, in Beijing, the PRC, and his master’s degree in
metallurgical engineering from lllinois Institute of Technology in December 1988,
in Chicago, the U.S.

Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella, aged 70, is our non-executive Director. Dr. Vasella
has over 40 years of experience in the medical and pharmaceutical industry. Prior
to joining our Group, from December 1996 to February 2010, Dr. Vasella was
chief executive officer and from February 1999 to February 2013, he served as the
chairman of the board of Novartis International AG (New York Stock Exchange:
NVS and Six Swiss Exchange: NOVN). Dr. Vasella served as a director of XBiotech
Inc. (NASDAQ: XBIT) from November 2014 to January 2018.

Dr. Vasella has served as an independent non-executive director of PepsiCo, Inc.
(NASDAQ: PEP) since February 2002 and an independent non-executive director
of American Express Company (New York Stock Exchange: AXP) since July 2012.
Dr. Vasella was appointed as Economic Advisor to Governor of Guangdong
Province, the PRC by the governor of Guangdong Province, the PRC in November
2003. He also served as chairman of the International Business Leaders’ Advisory
Council for the Mayor of Shanghai (IBLAC) in 2004 and 2005.

Dr. Vasella obtained the FMH Specialty certification in internal medicine in
November 1985; he pursued his psychodynamic and psychotherapy training at the
University of Bern and Freudlinstitut Zurich from September 1978 to May 1988,
the Program of Management Development certification from Harvard Business
School in December 1989; the certified coach qualification from Der Deutsche
Bundesverband Coaching (DBVC) in Germany in June 2014; and the certified
coach qualification from “The Leadership Circle” in September 2016.
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Dr. Vasella received Ordem Cruzeiro do Sul from President of Brazil, in 2000,
Harvard Business School’s Alumni Achievement Award from Harvard Business
School, in October 2003, first international award for responsible capitalism
2003 by the archbishop of canterbury, the most Rev & Rt Hon Dr Rowan Williams
PC FBA in December 2003, was entitled the foreign honorary membership of
American Academy of Arts and Sciences in 2008, and Prix Pasteur from the
Institut Pasteur, in France in 2007. Dr. Vasella was adjudged the winner of Golden
Peacock Leadership Award for Corporate Social Responsibility 2010 by the
chairman of the Golden Peacock Global Awards in September 2010.

Dr. Vasella obtained his Swiss medical diploma from the University of Bern in
December 1979, in Bern, the Switzerland, and his doctor of medicine degree from
the University of Bern in October 1980, in Bern, Switzerland. He also received an
honorary doctorate degree by the University of Basel, Switzerland.

Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien, aged 41, is our non-executive Director. She is a
member of Audit Committee of the Company. Ms. Lin has extensive experience
in investment and is currently a partner of private equity investment department
of GL Capital, one of our substantial Shareholders. She has been with GL Capital
since August 2011. Ms. Lin has served as an independent director of Center
Laboratories, Inc. (a company listed on the Taipei Exchange, stock code: 4123)
since May 20,2022.

Ms. Lin obtained her bachelor’s degree in management science and engineering
from Stanford University in June 2004.

Ms. Wang Haixia (£ /8 &), aged 50, is our non-executive Director. Ms. Wang
is currently the deputy chief executive officer of Bank of China Group Investment
Limited (FFER £ B E AR A7), "BOCGI"”), one of our substantial Shareholders.
Prior to joining BOCGI, Ms. Wang held various positions within Bank of China
Limited (B SR 77 f& 19 B R 22 &) (Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 3988 and
Shanghai Stock Exchange: 601988) since March 1993, including the senior
product manager and deputy general manager of the E-finance Department from
May 2015 to August 2019, and the deputy general manager of Digital Platform
Center of Personal Digital Banking Product Department from August 2019 to
August 2020. Ms. Wang has served as a non-executive director of Phoenix Media
Investment (Holdings) Limited (Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 2008) since March
2021.

Ms. Wang obtained her bachelor’s degree in marketing from Shandong University
(LW E KE) in July 1995 and master’s degree in business administrative from
Renmin University of China (1 B A & K£) in March 1999.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Liu Guoen (2| B &), aged 66, is our independent non-executive Director. He
is a member of Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. Liu has served as the
Dean of Peking University Institute for Global Health and Development since 2020
(R KB2RMEEEEMERK), a MOH Yangtze River Scholar Professor
of Economics (# B S & T2 & FH HIX) at National School of Development
of Peking University (1t 8 K2 H R 2 B #f 7t ) since 2013, and the director of
PKU China Center for Health Economic Research (it 3 K £ e B 27 A4 45 75 B 55
A 0y) since 2006. Dr. Liu has served as an independent non-executive director
of MicroPort Scientific Corporation ({# & % f& £} £ & B2 2 7)) (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: 0853) since September 2010.

Dr. Liu graduated from mathematics, physics and chemistry department of
Southwest Minzu University (78 Fg R ik AZ) in 1982, in Sichuan Province, the
PRC, and obtained his master’s degree in statistics from Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (78 # Bf £& KX 2) in 1985, in Sichuan Province, the PRC,
and his doctoral degree in economics from the City University of New York in
1991.

Dr. Chen Ping, aged 65, is our independent non-executive Director. He is a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Chen is the
founder of PharmaResources (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (L /A B2 R E &K HE R A
Al) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 301230) and has been serving as its chairman of
the board and the chief executive officer since December 2007. Prior to that, Dr.
Chen once served in Bristol Myers Squibb Company (New York Stock Exchange:
BMY) and was the main inventor of several patents including Dasatinib.

Dr. Chen obtained his bachelor's degree in organic chemistry from Peking
University (1t 572 X 28) in April 1982 in Beijing, the PRC, and his doctoral degree in
organic chemistry from Duke University in May 1990 in North Carolina State, the
u.s.
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Mr. Gu Alex Yushao, aged 54, is our independent non-executive Director. He
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Company and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Gu has over 27 years of experience
in business administration and corporate management. Mr. Gu serves as a senior
vice president, president of Greater China operations and a member of global
executive committee of Medtronic since January 2018. Prior to that, Mr. Gu once
served as a consultant of McKinsey & Company and a corporate executive of base
resins and the business leader in Asia Pacific of SABIC Innovative Plastics. He also
served as the corporate executive of China of General Electric Company (New
York Stock Exchange: GE) from May 2004 to May 2008, the president in China of
Covidien Healthcare International Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (which is currently a
part of Medtronic plc) from September 2009 to January 2015. Mr. Gu then joined
Medtronic plc (New York Stock Exchange: MDT), and served as a vice president,
and the president of Medtronic’s Minimum Invasive Therapy Group (MITG) and
Regional Growth Initiative Group from January 2015 to December 2017.

Mr. Gu obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering and Master of Science
degree in Mississippi State University in December 1991 and December
1993, respectively, in Mississippi State, the U.S., and his Master of Business
Administration (“MBA") from the University of Chicago’s Booth School of
Business in June 2001, in Chicago, the U.S.

Ms. Wendy Hayes, aged 54, is our independent non-executive Director. She is
the chairwoman of the Audit Committee of the Company and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Hayes has served as an independent
director of SharkNinja Inc. (New York Stock Exchange: SN) since July 2023,
Apollomics Inc. (NASDAQ: APLM) since March 2023, iHuman Inc. (New York
Stock Exchange: IH) since October 2020, Burning Rock Biotech Limited (NASDAQ:
BNR) since June 2020, and Tuanche Limited (NASDAQ: TC) since November 2018.
Between May 2013 and September 2018, Ms. Hayes served as the inspections
leader at the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in the United States.
Prior to that, Ms. Hayes was an audit partner at Deloitte (China).

Ms. Hayes is a certified public accountant in the United States (California) and
China. Ms. Hayes obtained her certified public accountant license from the
California Board of Accountancy in November 1998.

Ms. Hayes received her bachelor’s degree in international finance from University
of International Business and Economics (¥f4M4E% & 5 KE) in June 1991, in
Beijing, the PRC, and her executive MBA from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (£ T 7 £ B1) in October 2012, in Shanghai, the PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For biographical details of Mr. Zhao Hong and Ms. Pan Rongrong, who form
part of our senior management team, please refer to “— Directors — Executive
Director” in this section of this Annual Report.

Dr. Mao Li, aged 66, is the vice president, general manager of R&D and chief
medical officer of the Company. Dr. Mao is a worldwide prominent physician-
scientist in upper aerodigestive tract malignancies, with more than 35 years of
extensive experience in clinical practice, clinical and basic research, and leadership
in the field of oncology both in China and the U.S.. Dr. Mao has authored and
co-authored more than 200 SCI (Science Citation Index) papers which have been
cited for more than 25,000 times in total. He also holds multiple patents.

Prior to joining our Group in June 2022, Dr. Mao consecutively held a number of
key senior management positions in several pharmaceutical companies including
Sino Biopharmaceutical Limited (Bl & ¥ & %5 R A7) (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: 1177), Betta Pharmaceuticals Co, Ltd. (B E & 2 KD AR QX al)
(Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 300558) and Johnson & Johnson Family of Companies.
Before moving into the industry, Dr. Mao served as a tenured professor and
chairman of Department of Oncology and Diagnostic Sciences at University of
Maryland, Baltimore from March 2009 to June 2016. Previously, since June 1995
he had worked in the University of Texas M.D. Anderson Cancer Center, where
he served as a tenured professor at the Department of Thoracic and Head &
Neck Medical Oncology from September 2004 to March 2009 and a professor
in the Department of Systems Biology from September 2006 to March 2009. Dr.
Mao also has served as an independent director of Legend Biotech Corporation
(NASDAQ: LEGN) since August 2022.

Dr. Mao obtained a Medical Doctor’s degree from Nanjing Medical University
(B R EERIKE) in Jiangsu Province, the PRC, in December 1982. Dr. Mao also
completed a postdoctoral fellowship in cancer genetics at The Johns Hopkins
University School of Medicine in the U.S. in June 1995.
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Mr. Shao Peter Chihwen, aged 61, is a vice president of our Company. Mr. Shao
has over 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining
our Group in February 2012, Mr. Shao worked at several U.S. pharmaceutical
companies, including Noven Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Andrx Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(currently known as Actavis, Inc.), Nektar Therapeutics, Inc. (currently known
as Novartis International AG (New York Stock Exchange: NVS and the Six Swiss
Exchange: NOVN)), Jazz Pharmaceuticals plc (NASDAQ: JAZZ), Kanghong Sagent
(Chengdu) Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited (FESAE & (A &0 £ AR A A))
(currently known as Segent (China) Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (@ EREER A
A1), Flavine North America, Inc. and Map Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (currently known
as AbbVie Inc. (New York Stock Exchange: ABBV)).

Mr. Shao obtained his bachelor's degree in marine chemistry from Xiamen
University (JEFJAX2) in July 1979 in Fujian Province, the PRC, his master's degree
in analytical chemistry from Florida International University in April 1992 in Florida
State, the U.S., and his MBA degree from San Jose State University in May 2007
in California State, the U.S.

Mr. Wu Mingxiang (& B3 %), aged 58, is a vice president of our Company. Mr.
Wu Mingxiang has over 25 years of experience in sales and management in the
medical and pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, he served as a
pharmaceutical sales representative and the director of South China region of
Beijing Novartis Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (1t 5 & ZFE & £ H R A 7)) from October
1996 to February 2014. Prior to this, Mr. Wu served as a lecturer of Jiangxi
Medical College of Nanchang University (F & X2 T /8 8 2 7) (formerly known
as Jiangxi Medical College (T 75 28 £2f3)).

Mr. Wu received his bachelor degree in medicine from Jiangxi Medical College of
Nanchang University (F§ & K278 % £ 87) (formerly known as Jiangxi Medical
College (VT 78 % £ F%)) in June 1990 in Jiangxi Province, the PRC.

Mr. Chang Yansong (& % #2), aged 55, is a vice president of our Company
and the vice president and general manager of oncology business unit of our
Company. Mr. Chang has over 27 years of experience of marketing and business
operation in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chang
served as an engineer of Northeast Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (3R 1t &4 %%
£ EEM AR AT (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 000597), formerly known as
Northeast General Pharmaceutical Factory (34t % 2248 8) from July 1991 to
February 1994, a national business manager of Sino-American Shanghai Squibb
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (FE E B EBEEHFR 2 A]) from May 1995 to
February 2008, and a marketing manager of Medtronic (Shanghai) Management
Co., Ltd. (EH (L B)EE AR AA) from March 2008 to May 2013.

Mr. Chang obtained his bachelor’s degree in biochemistry from Jilin University (&
MR E) in July 1991 in Jilin Province, the PRC, and his EMBA from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University (/832 @ K 2) in December 2008 in Shanghai, the PRC.
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Mr. Jia Min (E #), aged 52, is a vice president and the head of the immunization
business department of our Company. Mr. Jia has over 25 years of experience
relating to sales and market development in the medical and pharmaceutical
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Jia held several positions with Shanghai
Roche Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (F/&Z# K& 2B R 2 A]) from April 1996 to April
2010 with his last position serving as a business unit director (business unit head)
of Shanghai Roche Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Mr. Jia served as a marketing director
of Nycomed Pharmaceutical Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (2= 7%} B %8 % %
(EH)BBR2AR]) from August 2010 to June 2011, and a general manager of
anti-inflammatory, analgesic and rheumatic immunity department in Simcere
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (%t % %% 2 % @) from August 2011 to August 2013. From
August 2013 to March 2017, Mr. Jia served as a deputy general manager and
general manager of business unit of Sunshine Guojian Pharmaceutical (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. (ZABE@EE(LF)RMHBRAF) (formerly known as Shanghai CP
Guojian Pharmaceutical Development Co., Ltd., b/ {ZE {2 8 &2 R R A 7)),
and a vice president of 3SBio Inc. (= 4 & %%) (Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 1530).

Mr. Jia was awarded the Gold Award for Excellence of Innovation in Roche
Global Pharmaceuticals 2003 Olympiad Award Competition by the Roche Global
Pharmaceuticals Division in May 2004, and won 2008 Roche Global Pharma CEO
Award for Innovation and Excellence by the Roche Global Pharmaceuticals Division
in December 2008.

Mr. Jia received his MBA from Asia International Open University (Macau) (22 i (2
F9)BIBR A 7 K 22) in March 2003, in Macau. Mr. Jia also received his diploma in
management from China Europe International Business School (A X Bl B T pg &2
) in December 2006 in Shanghai, the PRC, and completed the Chief Marketing
Officer course for senior management from the same school in October 2015.

Mr. Wu Lianzong (& #E ’R), aged 49, is the vice president of our Company.
Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in the regulatory registration in the
pharmaceutical industry in China. Prior to joining our Group, he once served
in Allergan Information Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., and the head of China
regulatory affairs of Hospira (China) Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (/& (/R
B> 2% E B AR AR, from October 2012 to September 2016.

Mr. Wu received his qualification of pharmacist from China Pharmaceutical
Association (B 222 &) on July 15,1998. Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’s degree
in medicine from Hebei Medical University (;il 4t & £ K &) in June 1998 in Hebei
Province, the PRC, and his master’'s degree in medicinal chemistry from Peking
Union Medical College (1t 1% 18 28%) (whose Chinese name was formerly
known as (7 8 13 1 88 £l X E2) in March 2004 in Beijing, the PRC.
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Biographies of Director and Senior Management

Dr. Min Wu (R 8), aged 49, is our vice president and chief business development
officer. Dr. Wu has more than 20 years of experience in the biotech and
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, she served as chief business
officer at Therorna (EIE 4 47) and served as Managing Director of Fosun Health
Fund (18 %1 22 8| $1 & &) from July 2020 to January 2024, as executive director of
the Asia Pacific Innovation Hub of MSD (X %) from August 2016 to July 2020,
and as Head of External R&D and Licensing for Amgen Asia R&D Center (% 3t 5 K
fiff 8% 7R 03) from September 2013 to August 2016 in Shanghai, China. Dr. Wu also
once worked in different functions at Roche (# [X) including Partnering, Alliance
and Portfolio Management in Shanghai, China.

Dr. Wu received her bachelor’s degree in molecular biology from Fudan University
(8 EK2) in July 1997, in Shanghai, PRC. She obtained her Ph.D. in computational
biology and chemistry from New York University (449X £) in October 2003,
in New York City, U.S.. She conducted post-doctoral research at Pfizer (% 1If)
and subsequently worked as Principle Scientist at GlaxoSmithKline (& & %
52) in North Carolina, USA. She obtained her Master of Business Administration
(“MBA") from University of Manchester, UK. (£ #] 8 % X ) in November 2018,
in Manchester, UK.
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The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate governance
of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with high ethical standards. This reflects its belief that, in the
achievement of its long-term objectives, it is imperative to act with probity,
transparency and accountability. By so acting, the Company believes that
Shareholder wealth will be maximised in the long term and that its employees,
those with whom it does business and the communities in which it operates will
all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs management
of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to ensuring that its objectives are
met. The Board is committed to maintaining and developing robust corporate
governance practices that are intended to ensure:

—  satisfactory and sustainable returns to Shareholders;

—  that the interests of those who deal with the Company are safeguarded;
and

— that high standards of ethics are maintained.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to maintaining high corporate
governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the CG Code
contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules as the basis of the Company’s
corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended December 31, 2023, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended December 31, 2023.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility for
its leadership and control and be collectively responsibility for promoting the
Company’s success by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. Directors
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and regularly reviews
the contribution required from a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the
Company and whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing them
that are commensurate with their role and the Board responsibilities. The Board
includes a composition of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors that there is a strong independent element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises ten Directors, consisting of two executive Directors,
four non-executive Directors, and four independent non-executive Directors. The
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Pan Rongrong (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors*

Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman)
Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella
Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien

Ms. Wang Haixia

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Liu Guoen

Dr. Chen Ping

Mr. Gu Alex Yushao
Ms. Wendy Hayes

* Mr. Shi Cen resigned as a non-executive director on May 25, 2023 due to personal
work arrangement.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Biographical Information” on pages 31 to 39 of the Annual Report for
the year ended December 31, 2023. None of the members of the Board is related
to one another.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication, of
a majority of Directors.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board held five meetings in January,
March, May, August and December, respectively.

A summary of the attendance records of the Directors at the Board meetings and
the general meeting of the Company held for the year ended December 31, 2023
is set out below:

HEBR EEHAE
Attendance/Number of Meetings
2E3 BRRBFAE RRBIKXE

Extraordinary

Annual General General
EEHE Name of Directors Board Meeting Meeting Meeting
HMAREE(EEHNITE) Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 11 11
BEARLT(E/FEHHEE)D Ms. Pan Rongrong (Chief Financial Officer)" 5/5 11 11
Li ZzhenfusE £ (EF & /&) Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman) 5/5 171 171
Daniel Luzius Vasellatd + Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella 4/5 1/1 0/1
Lin Shirley Yi-HsienzZ & Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien 5/5 11 11
AEEHE Mr. Shi Cen® 2/3 0/1 11
FHEEZT Ms. Wang Haixia 4/5 1/1 1/1
2B B EL Dr. Liu Guoen 4/4 171 0/1
Chen Pingt& =+ Dr. Chen Ping 4/4 11 11
Gu Alex Yushao %t & Mr. Gu Alex Yushao 4/4 11 11
Wendy Hayes%Z + Ms. Wendy Hayes 4/4 11 11

GES
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REEBRERFRAE -
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Notes:

(1) Ms. Panrongrong was appointed as an executive Director on May 25, 2023. As Ms.
Pan is the Company Secretary of the Company, she attended all the board meetings,
annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting.

(2) Mr. Shi Cen resigned as a non-executive Director on May 25, 2023 due to personal
work arrangement.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are held by
Mr. Li Zhenfu and Mr. Zhao Hong respectively. The chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The
chief executive officer focuses on the Company’s business development and daily
management and operations generally.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors representing more than one-third of the
Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

Board Independence Evaluation

The Company has established a board independence evaluation mechanism during
the Reporting Period which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure a
strong independent element on the Board, which allows the Board effectively
exercises independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness, maximise
strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or further development.
The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the Company need to be
taken to maintain and improve the Board performance, for instance, addressing
individual training and development needs of each Director.

Pursuant to the board independence evaluation mechanism, the Board will
conduct annual review on its independence. During the Reporting Period, the
Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the board independence
evaluation mechanism and the results were satisfactory.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) of
the Company are appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to renewal
after the expiry of the then current term.

All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings. Under the Articles of Association, at every annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Articles of Association
also provides that the Board shall have power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial performance, and
ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance
in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions
and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company
and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage
would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to
effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings
for Directors would be arranged and reading material on relevant topics would be
provided to Directors where appropriate.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company organized training session
conducted by the Hong Kong legal advisors for all Directors. The training
session covered a wide range of relevant topics including directors’ duties and
responsibilities, corporate governance and regulations.

The training records of the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2023 are
summarized as follows:

H FE R 2R Y
CER=EEELR

BE - BEAR
Attended Internally-
facilitated Briefings
or Training, Seminars,

-3 Directors Reading Materials
HiTEE Executive Directors
MEREE(EEHNITE) Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer) v/
BERART (BEHMHBE) Ms. Pan Rongrong (Chief Financial Officer) v/
FFHITEF Non-Executive Directors
Li Zhenfue £ (EF & F/7) Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman) v
Daniel Luzius Vasellald = Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella v/
Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien % £ Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien 4
FHELZL Ms. Wang Haixia v
v
BUHHTEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
AHEEL Dr. Liu Guoen v/
Chen Pingt& =+ Dr. Chen Ping v
Gu Alex Yushao 7t & Mr. Gu Alex Yushao v
Wendy Hayes % &= Ms. Wendy Hayes v

EEZ8E

EXEECERY=EZEE HEXZES .
YMZEGhREERES  NEBARASE

BHEERE - ARAMEEEZESTHER
MEEMFERERENXR Y ZFRER
EFRIARENERLEBR - BEXZEE
Y EE e REZ B RERECSHN
AN A Uk Ko Bk X P AR M - 30 A B 2SR
R&EH -

FHREEZEGIRAKNENZEHRY
F2BE[RAEMIET -

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’'s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out under
“Corporate Information” on page 2.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Ms. Wendy Hayes and
Mr. Gu Alex Yushao, independent non-executive Directors and Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-
Hsien, non-executive Director. Ms. Wendy Hayes is the chairwoman of the Audit
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
risk management and internal control systems, scope of audit and appointment
of external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee’s major work during the year 2023 included:

. reviewing the 2022 annual report, including the Corporate Governance

Report, the ESG Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial statements,
as well as the related results announcement;

° reviewing the 2023 interim report and interim results announcement;
° reviewing the dividend policy of the Company;
° reviewing the status of compliance with the CG Code, the Listing Rules and

relevant laws by the Group;

° in relation to the external auditor, reviewing their plans, reports and
management letter, fees, involvement in non-audit services, independence
and their terms of engagement;

° reviewing the internal audit plans, resources and work of the Company’s
internal audit department;

. reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
the system of internal controls in operation, risk management system and
associated procedures within the Group; and

reviewing the adequacy of resources, qualifications and training of the
Group's finance department.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") is the appointed auditor of the Group. The
Audit Committee annually reviews the relationship between the Company and
PwC. In addition, the Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of
external audit procedures and the independence and objectiveness of PwC, and
is satisfied with the existence of the good relationship. As a result, the Audit
Committee recommends the reappointment of PwC at the forthcoming AGM.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Audit Committee meetings were
held on March 21 and August 14, 2023, respectively.

EREZEEREBHFERNOT The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are as follows:
HESR SEEE
Attendance/
BEREEEHERS Name of Members of the Audit Committee Number of Meetings
Wendy Hayes%Z &= (£ /&) Ms. Wendy Hayes (Chairwoman) 2/2
Gu Alex Yushao st & Mr. Gu Alex Yushao 2/2
Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien % £ Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien 2/2

FMEES

YHZESB=-EXKEBMEAKR BN TESH

75 5T 4 B FE 1T E F GU Alex Yushao %t

4 FICHEN Pingt®+ o GU Alex Yushao%t &
BREFMEESER -

VM ZEeRBEBENERTER(LEE
BTADAMMERE  FHEESH T ERAL
BEREEFEREEEMANTESR
=Z&E.EEJ§E’J TR B EERER
EEENFMNERRERABAESSHELE
BREARBRIEXAREANRERF - U
ERZEH B BR -
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Zhao Hong,
executive Director, and Mr. Gu Alex Yushao and Dr. Chen Ping, independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Gu Alex Yushao is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include determining remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management according to the authorization of the
Board, making recommendations to the Board in relation to remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management, and the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing such remuneration policy.
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During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Remuneration Committee meeting
was held on March 20, 2023 to:

o review and recommend to the Board in respect of the remuneration policies
and structure of the Company by benchmarking peer companies with a
similar scale;

o assess, review and approve the remuneration packages for the executive

director and senior management;

. review and recommend to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors;
° review the Company’s share plans and approve the grant of options and

RSUs under the Post-IPO Option Plan and Post-IPO RSU Plan respectively
to the executive director, senior management and other employees of the
Group; and

. review other related matters.

The number of the options under the Post-IPO Option Plan and RSUs under
the Post-IPO RSU Plan granted (the “Grants”) to the executive director, senior
management and other employees of the Group (together as “Grantees”) in
2023 was approved by the Remuneration Committee considering factors including
but not limited to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Grantees, and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group. The Grants recognized the Grantees’ past contributions to the
development of the Group and aligned the interests of Grantees, the Company
and the Shareholders to increase value of our Company.

The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee are as

follows:
HEBR BHEE
Attendance/
FHEEERESRS Name of Members of the Remuneration Committee Number of Meetings
Gu Alex Yushao %t 4 (F /&) Mr. Gu Alex Yushao (Chairman) 11
R Ak Mr. Zhao Hong 11
Chen Pingf& £ Dr. Chen Ping 11
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The remuneration of the senior management by band for the year ended
December 31, 2023 is set out below:

A

Number of Persons

A R #1,000,000T &

Between RMB1,000,000 to RMB5,000,000

A R #5,000,0007TC 3
AR %5,000,000T & Between RMB5,000,000 to RMB10,000,000

A K ¥10,000,0007T 4
# 8 A R %10,000,0007T Over RMB10,000,000 1

HZ2023FNRA3AMNESHEFBHRAE
FERESHIBEREMEI30) -

REZES
REZEGREZECTE=-RKE  BlHkH
TEEL ZhenfuUk A R B EHITEEZ
B B {8 + fMWendy HayesZ = ° Li Zhenfust
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REZEENRBEHEZRIL T H(REE
ASTRDEERR
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The remuneration of the directors for the year ended December 31, 2023 is set
out in Note 13(c) to the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Li Zhenfu,
non-executive Director and Dr. Liu Guoen and Ms. Wendy Hayes, independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Li Zhenfu is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and formulating the policy concerning diversity of Board
member.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into
account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in
the Company’s Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria as set out in the
Nomination Policy that are necessary to complement the corporate strategy and
achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to
the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Nomination Committee meeting
was held on March 30, 2023.
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The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee are as

follows:
HERBR SEEE
Attendance/
REZESERERS Name of Members of the Nomination Committee Number of Meetings
Li Zhenfu %k & (£ &) Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman) 11
2B E+ Dr. Liu Guoen 11
Wendy Hayes % &= Ms. Wendy Hayes 171
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognizes the importance of
diversity of the Board as it promotes board effectiveness and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will review and
assess the composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on
appointment of new Directors of the Company. In reviewing and assessing the
composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider the benefits
of all aspects of diversity in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance
of talents, skills, experience and background on the Board.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity on the Board
and is to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards
of corporate governance.
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Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group. The following
table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the Group, including the
Board, senior management and other employees as at the date of this Annual
Report.

Female Male

o3 B
EEa Board 40.0%(4] 60.0%[6]*
EREEE Senior management 14.3%[1] 85.7%][6]
Efig 8 Other employees 66.7%[692] 33.3%[345]
st Overall 66.1%[697] 33.9%[357]

ARARMEREEIVELEINAEEE
BELIORHNLMEER  10%NLHESRE
EENO%MZIERE - X R A LA E AT
HRlIZTESARE -

* ARABATEEREFRNTEE RS
HTEERERVBERARLRLAAE
EEMESRERE -

RAZEEARGTREEZTRREABRKE
EBERE UEEERMBREANERN
e nE=SFLOER-

REAZBELNEZERRERNESTEZ
HREEHEEE S TEREMBZAR -

RAZBEEERIESZTESTERENE
RAERE UR/ZBRRBRERAR
BRe

The Company had targeted to achieve and had achieved at least 30% of female
Directors, 10% of female senior management and 60% of female employees of
the Group and considers that the above current gender diversity is satisfactory.

* Mr. Zhao Hong, the executive director and chief executive officer of the Company,
Ms. Pan Rongrong, the executive director and chief financial officer of the Company,
are counted in the Board rather than in the senior management.

The Nomination Committee considered that the selection of board candidates
shall be based on merit against objective criteria and with due regard for merit
and the contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee and the Board are of the view that the current
composition of the Board has achieved the objectives set in the Board Diversity
Policy.

The Nomination Committee have reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the Board Diversity Policy and considered it to be effective during the
Reporting Period.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the selection
criteria and nomination process and the Board succession planning considerations
in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability and the
potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not
limited to the following (collectively, the “Criteria”):

. Reputation for character and integrity;

° Accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries in which the
Company’s business is involved and other professional qualifications;

. Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available time
and relevant interest;

° Diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

° Contribution that the candidate(s) can potentially bring to the Board; and
. Plans in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and
appointment of Directors. The nomination process set out in the Nominee Policy
is as follows:

(@ the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate in
identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from existing
Directors, advertising, recommendations from third-party agency firm
and proposals from the Shareholders with due consideration given to the
Criteria;

(b)  the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems appropriate in
evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third party reference checks;

(c)  the proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information for the Nomination Committee’s consideration. The Nomination
Committee may request the candidate(s) to provide additional information
and documents, if considered necessary;
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upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the Nomination
Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board for appointment;

the Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of the
selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of
remuneration package of such selected candidate;

the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation to
the Board in relation to the proposed appointment, and where a non-
executive Director is considered, the Remuneration Committee will make
the recommendation to the Board on the proposed remuneration package;

the Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed by the
members of the Board who are not members of the Nomination Committee
and the Board will thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the consent
to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or accept the appointment
as Director, as the case may be) to be filed with the Companies Registry of
Hong Kong and updating the Register of Directors of the Company. The
Director shall consent to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their
appointment as a Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the CG Code.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous

professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company'’s

policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives, and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and
overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management procedures
and guidelines with defined authority for implementation by key business
processes and office functions, including sales, purchase, financial reporting,
human resources and information technology.

All divisions/departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and various
aspects including key operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance
and information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm
that control policies are properly complied with by each division/department.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads, assessed
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the risk
management progress, and reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on all
findings and the effectiveness of the systems.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended December 31, 2023.

The Company has the internal audit team which performs independent review
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The internal audit function examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the management
report, reviewed the risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls, for the year ended December 31,
2023 and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
review also covered the financial reporting and staff qualifications, experiences
and relevant resources.
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The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in the
practices and procedures, including financial reporting, internal control and other
matters, in their workplace.

The Company has also in place the Anti-Corruption Policy to safeguard against
corruption and bribery within the Company. The Company has an internal
reporting channel that is open and available for employees of the Company to
report any suspected corruption and bribery. Employees can also make reports
to the internal anti-corruption department/internal audit function, which is
responsible for investigating the reported incidents and taking appropriate
measures. The Company continues to carry out anti-corruption and anti-bribery
activities to cultivate a culture of integrity and ensure the effectiveness of anti-
corruption and anti-bribery.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a general
guide to the Company’s Directors, senior management and relevant employees
in handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to ensure
that unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cop. 622. Appropriate
accounting policies have also been used and applied consistently except the
adoption of revised standards, amendments to standards and interpretation.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 94 to 101.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

A breakdown of the remuneration payable to the external auditors of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services for the year ended
December 31, 2023 is set out below:

B EAER
Fees Paid/Payable
AR® T

Service Category RMB

% IR 75

Audit Services
EREBIRG (RIEBARE - HBEREZ) Non-audit Services (including advisory and tax service)

3,980,000
290,000

4,270,000
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pan Rongrong and Ms. Chan Sin Man Nico have been appointed as the
Company’s joint company secretaries with effect from February 19, 2021. Ms.
Chan Sin Man Nico is a senior manager of corporate service of Tricor Services
Limited.

Subsequent to the Reporting Period, Ms. Chan has resigned as the joint company
secretary and Ms. Pan will act as the company secretary of the Company with
effect from March 28, 2024.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary on
corporate governance and board practices and matters. Ms. Pan Rongrong has
been designated as the primary contact person at the Company on the Company’s
corporate governance and secretarial and administrative matters.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with shareholders through various communication
channels.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Articles 12.3 of the Articles of Association, general meetings shall
also be convened on the written requisition of any one or more members holding
together, as at the date of deposit of the requisition, shares representing not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carry the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company. The written requisition
shall be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office of the Company, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist(s). If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Articles of Association, for convening a general meeting.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:

Address:  22/F, Central Plaza, 381 Middle Huaihai Road, Shanghai, PRC (For the
attention of the Company Secretary)
Email: ir@sciclone.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address, and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general
meeting, directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company’s annual general meeting was held on May 25, 2023, and adopted,
among others, the second amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association, which has become effective upon the approval by Shareholders at the
annual general meeting. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Save as
disclosed above, there was no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended December 31, 2023.

Policies Relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to ensure
that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy
is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness. The Company has reviewed
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy and considered that the policy was
effectively implemented during the Reporting Period.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends. Depending
on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the conditions
and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with its Shareholders as follows:

(a) Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided with
designated contacts in order to enable them to make any query in respect
of the Company.
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(b) Corporate Communication

(c)

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain
language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders have the right to choose the
language (either English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate
communications (in hard copy or through electronic means).

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in
particular, their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate timely
and effective communications.

Corporate Website

Information on the Company’s website (www.sciclone.com) is updated on a
regular basis.

Information released by the Company to the website of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange is also posted on the Company’s website for corporate
communications immediately thereafter. Such information includes financial
statements, results announcements, circulars and notices of general
meetings and associated explanatory documents etc.

(d) Shareholders’ Meetings

(e)

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meetings shall be in place
to encourage Shareholders’ participation.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, the chairmen of Board committees or their
delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditors will
attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend shareholders’ activities organized by
the Company, where information about the Company, including its latest
strategic plan, will be communicated.

Investment Market Communications

Investor/analysts briefings and one-on-one meetings, roadshows (both
domestic and international), media interviews, marketing activities
for investors and specialist industry forums etc. will be available on a
regular basis in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community.
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The Board is pleased to present the Annual Report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

We are a biopharmaceutical company with an integrated platform for product
development and commercialization. We strategically focus on some of the
largest and fast-growing therapeutic areas with significant unmet medical
needs in China, primarily including oncology and severe infection. Leveraging
our integrated platform, we strive to develop and commercialize a portfolio of
high-quality marketed products, including our proprietary product, Zadaxin, and
pipeline drugs in our focused therapeutic areas.

The analytical statements for income and contribution from results of business
segments of the Group are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
this Annual Report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group on pages 102 to
103 of this Annual Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Company’s results, assets and liabilities for the last five
financial years is set out on page 226 of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and performance analysis of the Group as of the Reporting
Period are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this Annual Report. Discussion details
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out on pages 227
to 251 of the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the status of the
Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have material
impact on the Group is set out in the section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” on page 91 and the description of the risk management and internal
controls of the Company is set out in the section headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control” in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 54 to 55. The
aforesaid discussion forms a part of the Directors’ Report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the percentage of the total purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers was approximately 51% of the total
purchase of the Group, and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 16% of the total purchase of the Group.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023, the percentage of the total revenue
attributable to the five largest customers was approximately 88% of the
total revenue of the Group, and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 81% of the total revenue of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any beneficial interest
in the Group's five largest suppliers or the Group's five largest customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group as at December 31, 2023 are set out in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2023 are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in Notes 34 to the audited
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on the Listing Date with net proceeds received by the Company from the global
offering in the amount of approximately HK$2,083.6 million after deducting
underwriting commissions and all related expenses.
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Intended use of net
proceeds

FRREAFERERR

The net proceeds have been utilized in accordance

set out in

with the purposes
the Prospectus and approximately HK$1,152.4 million remained
unutilized up to December 31, 2023. The table below sets out the planned
applications of the net proceeds and actual usage as of December 31, 2023:

#ZF2023% B ZE20235F B Z20235F

1818 RESHAH 12A318H 12A318#

FENE WHEXE CEBHAFRE ERE EBARSE

FEOIE REGE REFE FEGE REFE
Amount of

Balance of net proceeds Balance of Amount of

net proceeds utilized net proceeds net proceeds

as of during the as of utilized as of

Allocation of January 1, Reporting December 31, December 31,

net proceeds 2023 Period 2023 2023

BEAET BEEBETR BEET BEETRT

HKS in million HKS$ in million HKS$ in million HKS$ in million

BERERREZENMN
®E

Investment in potential
acquisition of new drug

candidates 30% 561.5 78.4 483.1 142.0
EERBEX Repayment of existing debts 28% — — — 583.4
EERBEBRFEEERNHA  Funds to the development
BREELREES and commercialization of
our clinical-stage product
candidates 26% 506.7 40.2 466.5 75.2
BEREFTEENRE Investment in recruitment and
employee expansion 10% 128.7 30.5 98.2 110.2
AEBRMETMERESETT  Funds to ongoing clinical
HNERERMBER  studies for additional clinical
RARREHRES adoptions of our marketed
product portfolio 6% 111.7 71 104.6 20.4
100% 1,308.6 156.2 1,152.4 931.2
BREXHIEEEN BEMAHE XEE Save as disclosed above, since the Listing Date, the Group has not utilized any

WABBMERBEFANEFEMIED -
BRERLENBKENR
BYEBEY - K ARA AL AF KA

BROEFEET P

other portion of the net proceeds. There was no change in the intended use of
net proceeds as previously disclosed in the Prospectus. Initially, the Company
anticipated the net proceeds to be fully utilized by December 31, 2024. However,
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as the utilization of net proceeds is contingent upon the Company identifying
suitable opportunities, the net proceeds are now expected to be fully utilized by
December 31, 2027. The expected timeline is based on the current estimation by
the Company of the market conditions and its business operations, and remains
subject to change based on the future development of market conditions and
actual business needs of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors as of the date of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao Hong (Chief Executive Officer and President)
Ms. Pan Rongrong (Chief Financial Officer and Vice President)

Non-executive Directors*

Mr. Li Zhenfu (Chairman)
Dr. Daniel Luzius Vasella
Ms. Lin Shirley Yi-Hsien

Ms. Wang Haixia

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Liu Guoen

Dr. Chen Ping

Mr. Gu Alex Yushao
Ms. Wendy Hayes

* Mr. Shi Cen resigned as a non-executive director on May 25, 2023 due to personal
work arrangement.

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Pan Rongrong
shall retire at the Annua General Meeting. In accordance with Article 16.19 of
the Articles of Association, Dr. Danel Luzius Vasella, Ms. Wang Haixia and Dr.
Liu Guoen shall retire at the Annual General Meeting. All of the above Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for reelection at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Zhao Hong, an executive Director, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Ms.
Pan Rongrong, the executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years effect from May 25, 2023.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION AND PENSION
SCHEME

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group's operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and senior management and comparable market
practices. The Company offers the executive Directors and senior management,
as its employees, with remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances, benefits
in kind, performance related bonuses, share based payments, pensions, and other
social insurance benefits. Non-executive Directors and Independent non-executive
Directors receive compensation according to their duties (including serving as
members or chairmen of the Board committees).

Remuneration of Directors is determined based on their roles and duties and with
reference to the market conditions, the Company’s remuneration policy and the
prevailing market conditions, subject to the approval of the shareholders general
meeting. Details of remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 13 (c) and 13(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group are
decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation given by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest paid
individual in the Group are set out in Note 13(c) and 13(d) to the consolidated
financial statements. There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the Reporting Period.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are payable, for
the year ended December 31, 2023, by our Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As of the date of this Annual Report, Mr. Li Zhenfu, being our non-executive
Director and Chairman, held non-executive directorships in certain GL
Pharmaceutical Portfolio Companies, but was not involved in the daily
management and operations of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors is interested in any businesses
apart from our Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with our Group’s business under Rule 8.10 of the Listing
Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year ended December 31, 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Company to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during
the Reporting Period.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance with the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or
any of its subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been entered into for
the services provided by the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which (a) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

(i) Interest in Shares and underlying Shares

KRATE BT

BREAHBHABED L

(%)™

B’ 3 =X A E Approximate
KD EE percentage of the

Number of Shares issued share capital

EE BETBRABH®SE EEME or underlying of the Company
Name of Director/Chief Executive Nature of Interest Shares (%)™
Li Zhenfu%t & R EERERY 195,104,060 31.12%
Mr. Li Zhenfu Interest in controlled corporation®@
izl EEREEERS 11,979,690 1.91%
Mr. Zhao Hong Interest in Controlled corporation®
EmEA AW 20,498,742 3.27%
Beneficial owner®
ERA L EmfEEAS 4,378,167 0.70%

Ms. Pan Rongrong Beneficial owner®
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Opportunities Carry GP Limited & — & 7
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The calculation is based on the total number of 626,972,772 Shares in issue as of
December 31, 2023.

GL Trade Investment L.P. (“GL Trade"”) held 133,318,370 Shares (including 28,350,000
Shares which are held by GL Trade as a nominee for GL China Opportunities Carry
L.P. (a limited partnership registered in Cayman Islands), whose general partner is
GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited). GL Trade's general partner is GL Capital
Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd., a company incorporated in Canada which is wholly
owned by GL Capital Management Limited, which is held by GL Partners Capital
Management Limited as to 51% and Lion River | N.V. as to 49%. Lion River | N.V.
is a company incorporated in Netherlands and is wholly owned by Assicurazioni
Generali S.p.A, a company listed on lItalian Stock Exchange. GL Partners Capital
Management Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and is controlled by GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited as to 70%. GL
China Opportunities Carry GP Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and is wholly owned by Mr. Li Zhenfu. As such, Mr. Li Zhenfu is
deemed to be interested in Shares held by GL Trade.

GL Glee Investment Limited (“GL Glee”) held 61,785,690 Shares. GL Glee is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is wholly owned by GL China
Opportunities Fund L.P., a limited partnership registered in Cayman Islands whose
general partner is GL Capital Management GP L.P., a limited partnership registered in
Cayman Islands, whose general partner is GL Capital Management GP Limited, which
is held by GL Partners Capital Management Limited as to 51% and Lion River | N.V.
as to 49%. Lion River | N.V. is a company incorporated in Netherlands and is wholly
owned by Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A, a company listed on Italian Stock Exchange.
GL Partners Capital Management Limited is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and is controlled by GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited
as to 70%. GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is wholly owned by Mr. Li Zhenfu. As such,
Mr. Li Zhenfu is deemed to be interested in Shares held by GL Glee.
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Convergence International Holdings Ltd (“Convergence”) held 11,979,690 Shares.
Convergence is wholly owned by Beijing Convergence Management Consulting
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (I RFERERERZRNE XL E(BER
A %)), which was in turn owned by its general partner, Juli Information Consulting
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (E W e B & MWL =) BMR2A7A]) (“Juli Information”), as to
0.000003957%, and its limited partner, Zhoushan Kangnuo Equity Investment
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (A ILE#BRERESGZLCE(BRE
%) ("Zhoushan Kangnuo”), as to 99.999996043%. As Mr. Zhao Hong is interested
in 32.44% equity interests in Juli Information and 40.96% partnership interests in
Zhoushan Kangnuo, Mr. Zhao Hong is deemed to be interested in 11,979,690 Shares
held by Convergence.

Mr. Zhao Hong holds (i) 500,000 Shares personally, (i) 11,198,742 Share Options
under the Option Incentive Plan, (iii) 7,900,000 Share Options under the Post-IPO
Option Plan and (iv) 900,000 RSUs under the Post-IPO RSU Plan. Of the 11,198,742
Share Options under the Option Incentive Plan, (a) 5,880,000 Share Options were
granted on December 15, 2018 with an exercise price of HK$1.6562 (which shall be
vested equally upon each anniversary of the grant date during a four-year term),
(b) 818,742 Share Options were granted on April 1,
of HK$1.6562 (which shall be vested equally upon each anniversary of the grant

2020, with an exercise price

date during a two-year term), and (c) 4,500,000 Share Options were granted on
July 1, 2020 with an exercise price of HK$1.6562 (which shall be vested upon first
anniversary of the grant date). Of the 7,900,000 Share Options under the Post-IPO
Option Plan, (a) 4,000,000 Share Options were granted on April 19, 2022 with an
exercise price of HK$7.892 (which shall be vested equally upon each anniversary
of the grant date during a two-year term) and (b) 3,900,000 Share Options were
granted on June 5, 2023 with an exercise price of HK$10.434 (which 50% shall be
vested on March 31, 2024 and remaining 50% shall be vested on March 31, 2025). Of
the 900,000 RSUs under the Post-IPO RSU Plan, (a) 300,000 RSUs were granted on
April 19, 2022 (which shall be vested equally upon each anniversary of the grant date
during a two-year term) and (b) 600,000 RSUs were granted on June 5, 2023 (which
50% shall be vested on March 31, 2024 and remaining 50% shall be vested on March
31, 2025).
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Ms. Pan Rongrong holds (i) 45,667 Shares personally, (ii) 3,470,000 Share Options
under the Option Incentive Plan, (iii) 690,000 Share Options under the Post-IPO
Option Plan and (iv) 172,500 RSUs under the Post-IPO RSU Plan. Of the 3,470,000
Share Options under the Option Incentive Plan, (a) 2,000,000 Share Options were
granted on December 15, 2018 with an exercise price of HK$1.6562 (which shall be
vested equally upon each anniversary of the grant date during a four-year term), and
(b) 1,470,000 Share Options were granted on July 1, 2020 with an exercise price of
HK$1.6562 (which shall be vested upon first anniversary of the grant date). Of the
690,000 Share Options under the Post-IPO Option Plan, (a) 230,000 Share Options
were granted on April 19, 2022 with an exercise price of HK$7.892 (which shall be
vested equally upon each anniversary of the grant date during a two-year term) and
(b) 460,000 Share Options were granted on June 5, 2023 with an exercise price of
HK$10.434 (which 50% shall be vested on March 31, 2024 and remaining 50% shall
be vested on March 31, 2025). Of the 172,500 RSUs under the Post-IPO RSU Plan,
(a) 57,500 RSUs were granted on April 19, 2022 (which shall be vested equally upon
each anniversary of the grant date during a two-year term) and (b) 115,000 RSUs
were granted on June 5, 2023 (which 50% shall be vested on March 31, 2024 and
remaining 50% shall be vested on March 31, 2025).

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, none of the Directors and chief

executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,

underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations,

recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or

required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES OR UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at December 31, 2023, so far as the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company were aware, the Substantial Shareholders, other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

KARB BT
IR 13 = M B8 IR 2 B9 4
B3 #E B2 (%)M

Approximate
percentage of the
Number of Shares issued share capital

BRER BB EEME or underlying of the Company

Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Shares (%)

Li Zhenfust & RELAEER 195,104,060 31.12%

Mr. Li Zhenfu Interest in controlled corporation®

GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited ZEEEER 195,104,060 31.12%
Interest in controlled corporation®

GL Partners Capital Management Ltd ZEEEER 195,104,060 31.12%
Interest in controlled corporation®

Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A ZEEEER 195,104,060 31.12%
Interest in controlled corporation®

GL Trade Investment L.P. EnEAEA? 104,968,370 16.74%
Beneficial interest®?
FAHRKRBAGKBZIEARIN @ 28,350,000 4.52%

GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd.

GL Capital Management Ltd.

Lion River | N.V

GL Glee Investment Limited

GL China Opportunities Fund L.P

GL Capital Management GP L.P.

GL Capital Management GP Limited

GL China Opportunities Carry L.P.

fa Rl /NE]

Ocean Falcon Limited

Nominee for another person (other
than a bare trustee) @

RELEEER 133,318,370 21.26%
Interest in controlled corporation®

RELEEER 133,318,370 21.26%
Interest in controlled corporation®

RELEEER 195,104,060 31.12%
Interest in controlled corporation®

BEmBERBAO 61,785,690 9.85%
Beneficial interest®

EEEEERO 61,785,690 9.85%
Interest in controlled corporation®

EEEEERO 61,785,690 9.85%
Interest in controlled corporation®

EEEEERO 61,785,690 9.85%
Interest in controlled corporation®

BEmBERAO 28,350,000 4.52%
Beneficial interest®

BEmfER AW 47,426,727 7.56%
Beneficial interest®
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KARE BT

IR 10 =% 48 B2 IR B9 8 4
RHHE B2 (%)M
Approximate

percentage of the

Number of Shares issued share capital

BRESE BB EEMtE or underlying of the Company
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Shares (%)™
hIREEKREFRAA EEEEERO 47,426,727 7.56%
Bank of China Group Investment Limited Interest in controlled corporation®
ESRITR ) B IR A A EEEEERO 47,426,727 7.56%
Bank of China Limited Interest in controlled corporation®
TRESKREEREMERT EEEEERO 47,426,727 7.56%
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. Interest in controlled corporation®
TERREAREE QA EEEEERO 47,426,727 7.56%
China Investment Corporation Interest in controlled corporation®
HREE REEEERO 11,979,690 1.91%
Mr. Zhao Hong Interest in controlled corporation®

EmERAC 20,498,742 3.27%

Beneficial interest®

L

RIEE E2023F12A3BHE R TR MR
626,972,772 51 & -

GL Trade 2 — I R201543A258 A& X
MK ERCERAE - HEBA
# A BGL Capital Management GP Il B.C. |
Ld(—EmRmE RFMEZHAA) @A
GL Capital Management Ltd2 & H & * M
GL Capital Management Ltd 5 GL Partners
Capital Management Ltd } Lion River | N.V. 7>
B #F B51% K%49% # B # ° Lion River |
NV.2 —HERAEBHEMALHLF - B
Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A(— M R B X
NMNEBEHLZXGMETHNAR) 2 EHESA - GL
Partners Capital Management Ltd/2&— B R
HeHEaMXIzcEREMERAA I
1 GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited
12 H70% B B #E o GL China Opportunities
Carry GP Limited2 — MR 2 8 & it 5
VZEREMERR AARFFRTES
Li Zhenfut =2 & H o F It - GL Capital
Management GP Il B.C.I Ltd. * GL Capital
Management Ltd - GL Partners Capital
Management Ltd ~ GL China Opportunities
Carry GP Limited ~ Lion River | N.V. -
Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A}Li Zhenfu st 4
FBEWIR AR GL Trade T A A A f (0 # #
BlEs -

Notes:

The calculation is based on the total number of 626,972,772 Shares in issue as of
December 31, 2023.

GL Trade is an exempted limited partnership registered in Canada on March 25,
2015. Its general partner is GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd., a company
incorporated in Canada which is wholly owned by GL Capital Management Ltd, which
is held by GL Partners Capital Management Ltd as to 51% and Lion River | N.V. as
to 49%. Lion River | N.V. is a company incorporated in Netherlands and is wholly
owned by Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A, a company listed on Italian Stock Exchange.
GL Partners Capital Management Ltd was a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and is controlled by GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited
as to 70%. GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is wholly owned by Mr. Li Zhenfu, a non-
executive director of our Company. As such, each of GL Capital Management GP I
B.C. | Ltd., GL Capital Management Ltd, GL Partners Capital Management Ltd, GL
China Opportunities Carry GP Limited, Lion River | N.V., Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A
and Mr. Li Zhenfu is deemed to be interested in our Shares held by GL Trade.
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GL Glee is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on March
10, 2011 and is wholly owned by GL China Opportunities Fund L.P.,, a limited
partnership registered in Cayman Islands whose general partner was GL Capital
Management GP L.P., a limited partnership registered in Cayman Islands, whose
general partner was GL Capital Management GP Limited, which is held by GL Partners
Capital Management Ltd as to 51% and Lion River | N.V. as to 49%. Lion River | N.V. is
a company incorporated in Netherlands and is wholly owned by Assicurazioni Generali
S.p.A, a company listed on Italian Stock Exchange. GL Partners Capital Management
Ltd is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is controlled
by GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited as to 70%. GL China Opportunities Carry
GP Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is
wholly owned by Mr. Li Zhenfu, a non-executive director of our Company. As such,
each of GL China Opportunities Fund L.P., GL Capital Management GP L.P., GL Capital
Management GP Limited, Lion River | N.V., Assicurazioni Generali S.p.A, GL Partners
Capital Management Ltd, GL China Opportunities Carry GP Limited and Mr. Li Zhenfu
is deemed to be interested in our Shares held by GL Glee.

Ocean Falcon Limited is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong on March
15, 2017 and is wholly owned by Bank of China Group Investment Limited, a limited
company incorporated in Hong Kong which in turn is wholly owned by Bank of China
Limited, a joint stock company established in the PRC with limited liability which
in turn is held by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. as to 64.02%, a limited liability
company established in the PRC which in turn is wholly owned by China Investment
Corporation, a limited liability company which is wholly owned by the State Council
of the PRC. As such, each of Bank of China Group Investment Limited, Bank of China
Limited, Central Huijin Investment Ltd., China Investment Corporation, and State
Council of the PRC is deemed to be interested in our Shares held by Ocean Falcon
Limited.
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(5) Convergence held 11,979,690 Shares. Convergence is wholly owned by Beijing
Convergence Management Consulting Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (3t
RHEBUREELTRNABLEERARP), which was in turn owned by its general
partner, Juli Information, as to 0.000003957%, and its limited partner, Zhoushan
Kangnuo, as to 99.999996043%. As Mr. Zhao Hong is interested in 32.44% equity
interests in Juli Information and 40.96% partnership interests in Zhoushan Kangnuo,
Mr. Zhao Hong is deemed to be interested in 11,979,690 Shares held by Convergence.

(6) Being options for 11,198,742 Shares, options for 7,900,000 Shares, and 900,000
RSUs granted to Mr. Zhao Hong under the Option Incentive Plan, the Post-IPO Option
Plan and the Post-IPO RSU Plan, respectively. In addition, there are 500,000 Shares
personally owned by Mr. Zhao Hong.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2023, so far as the Directors were
aware, no other persons (other than the Directors or chief executive) had any
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the Shares of the Company.

SHARE PLANS
1. Option Incentive Plan

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Option Incentive
Plan as adopted by our Company on June 24, 2018 and as amended on
November 13, 2019. The terms of the Option Incentive Plan are not subject
to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The purpose of the
Option Incentive Plan is to provide performance-driven, equitable and
ongoing option incentives for eligible management and key employees with
the view to retaining key talents of our Company, aligning the interests of
our Company and its employees and Shareholders, making its employees to
attend to long-term development of our Company and to share increased
value of our Company. The participants of the Option Incentive Plan shall
be an employee who has completed his or her probation period.

(a) Grant and adjustment of options

Any grant to chief executive officer of our Company shall be proposed
by the chairman of the Board and subject to approval of the Board.
Any grant to any participants (excluding chief executive officer) shall
be considered by the corporate executive committee of our Company
and subject to approval of chief executive officer of our Company.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Supplementary grants to the employees who are newly engaged,
promoted, or have made special contributions to our Company and
eligible under the Option Incentive Plan may be made subject to
approval of the Board. In the event that any participant becomes
ineligible under the Option Incentive Plan, or is transferred to
any other position or terminates his or her employment with our
Company, or dies, our Company may make adjustments to such
participant pursuant to the Option Incentive Plan. Any adjustments in
respect of chief executive officer of our Company shall be proposed
by the chairman of the Board and subject to approval of the Board,
whilst any adjustments in respect of any participants other than
chief executive officer shall be considered by the corporate executive
committee of our Company and subject to approval of the chief
executive officer of our Company.

Maximum number of shares subject to the Option
Incentive Plan

The underlying shares of the options under the Option Incentive Plan
shall be the Shares to be issued by our Company.

The maximum number of shares underlying the options under the
Option Incentive Plan shall be no more than 54,778,710 Shares,
representing 8.08% of the total number of Shares in issue on the
Listing Date.

Exercise price and payment

The exercise price of options under the Option Incentive Plan shall be
HKD1.6562 (subject to adjustment). Upon confirmation by the Board
or its authorized representatives on the application of exercising
the options, the options shall be exercised upon the actual payment
based on the exercise price by the grantees.

Exercise and lapse of options

The term of options under the Option Incentive Plan shall be eight
years since grant date. Subject to satisfaction of the exercising
conditions, participants shall have the right to exercise the options
vested to such participant under the Option Incentive Plan or to waive
such right during the term. Any options not exercised during the term
due to any reason of participants shall be automatically cancelled by
the Board upon expiration of the term.



(e)

(f)

BRI
HROBET  REFHRR -
BB BT TR TR
EM2S% B ERFARNEASF
AERSE -

HR2019FEHMBRET - R
“FHRAN - BREZXE S
TR T REA33% » 33%
4% AR ERTAHRNSASF
HESFBE -

HR20200F EE NIRRT -
R FEERA - BB R
B TET IR TR /50% &%50%
ORI ERTFTERNSBEFRE
BE -

EABRIIFEERBELER
NEIFEHREEIENSEE
AERERFERBEMHNATIE
T REFAHMNEEAEFAR
BHEHERTHERENI00% °

BRhEABAET2H8EKE
BEANBERBRASEREE
BHFEERRE KEF
FEBABEN2EESTNER
& 1 o BB B HE -

HRITEHE T

B 220234128318 » AR AR
BERESBAEATHER
AHIBOEEEKRL2HEERER
B & ££54,778,7100% B% 1 &9 B8 A%
B ETEHEETRMDEH
#)8.08% ° M RAE BB EE T
K FT 7 5 AR A 9 702018 K12 A15
BZE202143A38(Lm A #
MIETF ETWEARAG T
— SR BERESBEET
Y B A i o

EFE R
Directors’ Report

(e) Vesting schedule

(f)

For initial grants, 25% of options granted under the Option Incentive
Plan shall be vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a
four-year term.

For supplementary grants during the year of 2019, 33%, 33% and
34% of options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be
vested upon each anniversary of grant date during a three-year term.

For supplementary grants during the year of 2020, 50% and 50% of
options granted under the Option Incentive Plan shall be vested upon
each anniversary of grant date during a two-year term.

Participants who are key non-sales employees and winner of annual
Top Staff awards of our Company may vest 100% of options granted
to them at the first anniversary of grant date, subject to satisfaction
of certain vesting conditions.

The number of options to be vested over participants under
the Option Incentive Plan shall be determined based on annual
performance evaluation results, and there is no vesting of options if
none of annual performance targets is met.

Outstanding grants

As of the December 31, 2023, options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 54,778,710 Shares have been granted to a total of 130 eligible
participants by our Company at nil consideration under the Option
Incentive Plan, representing 8.08% of the total number of Shares
in issue on the Listing Date. All the options under the Share Option
Incentive Plan were granted between December 15, 2018 and March
3, 2021 (the Listing Date) and the Company will not grant further
options under the Option Incentive Plan after the Listing.
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Movement of the options, which were granted under the Option
Incentive Plan, for the year ended December 31, 2023 is as follows:

HZ0BENANALEERREYR
Number of options for the year ended December 31, 2023

BE20235 BZ3% THEECEY/
1A1B 1 % 12ANBEA  SHERE)
e T (W32 (H&3)
Outstanding 2%%,/  Outstanding  Exercise Price
as of FRi as of (HKD/per BEBEX
ARA REAH BREDH January 1, 54 [Xig:d Lapsed/  December 31, option)  Vesting
Grantee Date of grant Option period 2023 Granted Exercised Cancelled 2023 (Note 2) (Note3)  Schedule
EZ
Director
BEEE B2018F12815R % BRHAHEHSE  11,198742 - - - 11,198,742 16%2 REEHE-FEN
LT RHE 3
Mr. ZHAO Hong Since December 15, 8 years since the date One year to four years
2018 and before the  of grant from the date of grant
Listing Date
BRARL (W B20185128158 R BREAME ST 3,470,000 - - - 3,470,000 1652 REAHE-FE
BRpi=E:iE) nE
Ms. Pan Rongrong (Note 1) Since December 15, 8 years since the date One year to four years
2018 and before the  of grant from the date of grant
Listing Date
rEFEWMER
Other employees of the Group
B2018F12815A % BRHBBLHSE 17,395,700 —  (11,571,600) - 5,824,100 165%2 ENBHE-FZ
LT RHE nE
Since December 15, 8 years since the date One year to four years
2018 and before the  of grant from the date of grant
Listing Date
&t 32,064,442 — (11,571,600) — 20,492,842 1.6562
Total
Bl BRA L LH2023F5A25B ZE AR Note 1:  Ms. Pan Rongrong was appointed as an executive Director on May 25, 2023 and
NAIHMITE F - ERZ B H3,470,000 held 3,470,000 options as at the date of appointment
1 8 iR
H2: TEED LU SRR B A Note 2:  excluding options forfeited or cancelled
F#3: BERESRETHE Note 3:  adjusted due to dividend distribution
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(g) Establishment of trustee for the Option Incentive
Plan

Our Company has engaged a professional trustee to hold and manage
a portion of the Shares to be issued under the Option Incentive Plan.
Our Company will issue up to 54,778,710 Shares to the trustee.

Post-IPO Option Plan

The purpose of the Post-IPO Option Plan is to provide selected participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in our Company and to
encourage selected participants to work towards enhancing the value of our
Company and its Shares for the benefit of our Company and Shareholders
as a whole. The Post-IPO Option Plan will provide our Company with
a flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to selected participants. Any
individual, being an employee, director, officer, consultant, adviser,
distributor, contractor, customer, supplier, agent, business partner, joint
venture business partner or service provider of any member of our Group
or any affiliate who the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole
discretion, to have contributed or will contribute to our Group is entitled to
be offered and granted options. However, no individual who is resident in
a place where the grant, acceptance or exercise of options pursuant to the
Post-IPO Option Plan is not permitted under the laws and regulations of
such place or where, in the view of the Board or its delegate(s), compliance
with applicable laws and regulations in such place makes it necessary or
expedient to exclude such individual, is eligible to be offered or granted
options.
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(a)

Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan and any
other schemes shall be decided by the Shareholders upon adoption
of the Post-IPO Option Plan and in no event shall such total number
of Shares exceed 67,787,426 Shares, representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue on the Listing Date (the “Option Scheme
Mandate Limit”) (excluding any Shares which may be issued
pursuant to the exercise of the options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Plan) and 10.79% of the total number of Shares in
issue (assuming the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of this annual report remains as 628,481,632, the total number of
Shares in issue as at April 23, 2024). Options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the rules of the Post-IPO Option Plan
(or any other share option schemes of our Company) shall not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Option Scheme Mandate
Limit.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Post-IPO Option Plan and any other share option schemes
of our Company at any time (and to which the provisions of Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules are applicable) must not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time (the “"Option Scheme Limit").
No options may be granted under any schemes of our Company (or
its subsidiaries) if this will result in the Option Scheme Limit being
exceeded.

The Option Scheme Mandate Limit may be refreshed at any time by
obtaining prior approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/
or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time. However, the refreshed Option Scheme Mandate Limit
cannot exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of such
approval. Options previously granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan
and any other share option schemes of our Company (and to which
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are applicable) (including
those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance with its terms
or exercised), shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
refreshed Option Scheme Mandate Limit.
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Our Company may also grant options in excess of the Option Scheme
Mandate Limit, provided such grant is to specifically identified
selected participant and is first approved by Shareholders in general
meeting.

(b) Maximum entitlement of a grantee

(c)

Unless approved by our Shareholders, the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan and any other share
option scheme(s) of our Company to each selected participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
(the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options to a selected
participant which would result in the aggregate number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to
be granted to such selected participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12 month period up to and including
the date of such further grant exceeding the Individual Limit shall be
subject to separate approval of our Shareholders (with such selected
participant and his associates abstaining from voting). The number
and terms (including the exercise price) of options to be granted to
such participant must be fixed before Shareholders’ approval and
the date of Board meeting for proposing such further grant should
be taken as the date for the purpose of calculating the exercise price
pursuant to LR17.03(9).

Time of exercise of an option

An option may, subject to the terms and conditions upon which such
option is granted, be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee
giving notice in writing to our Company in such form as the Board
may from time to time determine stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised.
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(d) Amount payable on application or acceptance of

(e)

(f)

the option

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the option to
which the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to
have taken effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the grantee with the number
of Shares in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated
therein, together with a remittance in favour of our Company of
HKD1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, which must
be received by our Company within 20 business days from the date
on which the offer letter is delivered to the grantee.

Subscription price

The amount payable for each Share to be subscribed for under an
option (“Subscription Price”) in the event of the option being
exercised shall be determined by the Board but shall be not less than
the greater of:

(i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of our Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Duration

The Post-IPO Option Plan shall be valid and effective for the period
of ten years commencing on the Listing Date (after which, no further
options shall be offered or granted under the Post-IPO Option
Plan), but in all other respects the provisions of the Post-IPO Option
Plan shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to
give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the rules of the Post-IPO Option Plan.
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Movement of the options, which were granted under the Post-IPO
Option Plan, for the year ended December 31, 2023 is as follows:

ERABENANBLEENERESE
Number of options for the year ended December 31, 2023

REERS
ERBRER 852
BEABE HAHZAN BENDBE ) AEE
1818 Wil i 128318 ke (n/
METE (Rn/8f BEF BAE  BAR  MAGE  (Bn/ GHERE) SEREX
REA RHAY BREDH (Hrat1) ERE)  (WE)  (WE3)  (Wde) (WY SHERR) F{Bﬁ?u:s) (K ik4 - 879)
air value
Closing price of option at
immediately Outstanding the date of
Outstanding prior to as of grant
as of date of December 31, Exercise  HKD/per  Vesting
January 1, grant (HKD/ Granted Exercised  Lapsed 223  price (HKD/  option)  schedule
Grantee Date of grant Option period 2023 (Note 1) per option) (Note2)  (Note3) (Note6)  (Note1) peroption)  (Note5)  (Noted,8and9)
£z
Director ) B
by WFAP0E EREBEEH0OE 4000000 786 - - — 4,000,000 789 360 ERMEHEARE
Mr. ZHAO Hong April 19, 2022 10 years since the date of Two years from the date
grant of grant
W3F6A58 BRERHRT0F - 9933900000 - — 390,000 10434 49) Eéﬁﬁﬁméﬂm
June, 5,2023 10 years since the date of 22 months from the date
grant of grant
BAARL WRFIAE BREEBET0F z%o,oog 786 - - - 130000 789 360 ERMEHEHRE
k2|
(Note 7)
Ms. PAN Rongrong April 19,2023 10 years since the date of Two years from the date
rant ofgant
00356758 gﬁ%a%éﬂoi - 993 460,000 - - 460000 10434 49 a%ﬁasﬂﬂmm
June 5,203 10 years since the date of 22 months from the date
grant of grant
TEGAREEN)
Other employees of the Group (Note 7) 3 B
WHENRIE  EREBEEH0E 319970 1000 —  (30000) (98500) 2991470 1018 186 ERHEHEHRAEA
Novernber 9, 2021 10 years since the date of 22 months from the date
grant \ of grant
WERRIR BREREE0F 57,000 907 - G100 310 50,800 929 379 a%mamami
December 1, 2021 10 years since the date of Two years from the date
fant \ of grant
2022517318 gﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬂ(ﬁ 63,600 8.25 - - - 63,600 840 3.82 E%ﬁﬁ?ﬁf@ﬁﬁ@
January 31,2022 10 years since the date of Two years from the date
rant \ of grant
200547198 g@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂéﬂo@ 13,081,200 1.86 — (686,000 (1,345,980) 11,049,220 1.89 348 E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁf@ﬁﬁi
April 19,2022 10 years since the date of Two years from the date
rant \ of grant
W0ETR4E g@&&ﬁ%ﬁiﬂaﬂoi 515,000 870 - — (22000 482,800 848 389 a%&amaw
July 4,202 10 years since the date of Two years from the date
rant \ of grant
20059788 g@fiﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬂéﬂﬁ 316,900 6.78 - — (38400 278,500 6.832 3.07 E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁf@ﬁﬁﬁ
September 8,2022 10 years since the date of Two years from the date
rant ‘ ofgrant
A0F1A0E g@ﬁ%tﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬂoi 126,400 637 - - — 126400 633 29 a%ﬁamaw
November 10, 2022 10 years since the date of Two years from the date
grant ‘ ofgrant
WBFEASH  BREAEE0F - 993 12,757,300 - - 1757300 10434 460 a%ﬁammm
June 5, 2023 10 years since the date of 22 months from the date
grant ‘ ofgrant
03512418 BRLABRH0E — 136 394,300 - - 394,300 1340 520  BRMAHRH
72065
December 1,2023 10 years since the date of 17-22 months from the
grant date of grant
é%—tl 21,510,070 17511600 (1,789,700) (2,440,480) 34,791,490
Total
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Note 1:

Note 2 (a):

Note 2 (b):

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

As at January 1, 2023 and December 31, 2023, the total numbers
of options available for grant under the Post-IPO Option Plan
were 46,277,356 and 32,995,936, respectively.

None of the grants of Post-IPO Option to any participant was in
excess of the 1% individual limit.

The total number of Shares that may be issued in respect of the
options granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan of the Company
during the Reporting Period divided by the weighted average
number of the Shares in issue during the Reporting Period was
2.85%.

The weighted average closing price immediately before the date
on which the options were exercised was HKD12.24 per share.

Subject to fulfilment of vesting conditions including customized
performance targets for each grantee, the options shall be vested
according to the vesting schedule.

Details of the valuation and the accounting standard and policy
adopted for the Post-IPO options during the Reporting Period are
set out in the Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the Reporting Period, no Post-IPO Option was cancelled.

Ms. Pan Rongrong was appointed as the executive Director
on May 25, 2023 and held 230,000 options as at the date of
appointment.

The vesting of share options granted under the Post-IPO Option
Plan (“Share Option(s)”) is subject to satisfaction of certain
performance targets as determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, either on a case-by-case basis or generally: Group
level performance: The Board will assess the performance
of the Group for the relevant period, including in particular
key performance indicators, such as the Group’s revenue and
profit of the Group as a whole and of the applicable business.
Individual level performance: The Group has established a
standard performance appraisal system for its employees to
evaluate their performance and contribution to the Group. The
Company will determine whether the grantees of the Share
Options meet the individual performance target based on their
performance appraisal results for the relevant period.
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Note 9: As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated June
5, 2023 in respect of the Share Options granted as described
above, the Post-IPO Option Plan provides that the Board may
specify the vesting period of the Share Options and does not
provide for any minimum vesting period. The Board and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company consider that, taking
into account that: (i) the remuneration of the grantees of the
Share Options (including that of Mr. Zhao Hong and Ms. Pan
Rongrong) include the grant of share options as part of their
package to incentive their performance and to make continuous
contributions to the growth and development of the Group, as
well as maintaining the competitiveness of the package offered
by the Company as compared with those offered by the industry
peers; (ii) in respect of Mr. Zhao Hong and Ms. Pan Rongrong,
their respective remuneration packages have been reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee of the Company to be in line
with the industry practice and in recognition of their leading
roles and responsibilities towards the management and strategic
development of the Company; and (iii) in respect of other
grantees of the Share Options, their respective remuneration
packages are provided according to the internal policy of the
Company with reference to their industry experience, tenure and
roles with the Group, and contribution to the development and
growth of the business of the Group, the grant of Share Options
with vesting period less than 12 months to the Grantees of the
Share Options is appropriate. The Remuneration Committee
of the Company is of the view that the grant of Share Options
will encourage and retain the Grantees of the Share Options to
make continuous contributions to the growth and development
of the Group and is in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the fair value of options
granted under the Post-IPO Option Plan were estimated on the date
of each grant using the binomial option pricing model with the
assumptions including: 1) the exercise price of HKD10.434, option
life of 10 years, risk-free interest rate of 3.89%, and expected price
volatility of the underlying shares of 47.93%. The fair value per
option at grant date of the options granted to Directors and other
employees of the Group during the Reporting Period is HKD4.92
and HKD4.60, respectively; and 2) the exercise price of HKD13.40,
option life of 10 years, risk-free interest rate of 4.43%, and expected
price volatility of the underlying shares of 46.70%. The fair value per
option at grant date of the options granted to other employees of the
Group during the Reporting Period is HKD5.20.
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In addition, the Group estimates the expected percentage of grantees
that will remain in employment with the Group or, where applicable,
if the performance conditions for vesting will be met at the end of
the vesting period. The Group only recognizes an expense for those
share options expected to vest over the vesting period during which
the grantees become unconditionally entitled to these share-based
awards.

Changes in these estimates and assumptions could have a material
effect on the determination of the fair value of the share options and
the amount of such share-based awards expected to become vested,
which may in turn significantly impact the determination of the
share-based compensation expenses.

Post-IPO RSU Plan

The Post-IPO RSU Plan was approved and adopted by the Shareholders on
January 22, 2021 and is valid for a period of ten years from the date of the
Listing. The total number of Shares underlying the awards to be granted
under the Post-IPO RSU Plan shall be 6,689,963 Shares. Without prejudice
to the foregoing, the total number of Shares underlying the awards to be
granted under the Post-IPO RSU Plan in any financial year will not exceed
three per cent (3%) of the issued Shares as at the beginning of that
financial year.

On February 10, 2021, the Company issued and allotted an aggregate of
6,689,963 Shares, representing 1.06% of the total number of Shares in
issue (assuming the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of this
annual report remains as 628,481,632, the total number of Shares in issue
as at April 23, 2024), to Maples Trustee Services (Cayman) Limited as trustee
of a trust with the intent that such number of Shares would ultimately
be held by SCLN ESOP Management Limited. On February 11, 2021, such
number of Shares were directed to SCLN ESOP Management Limited for the
purpose of holding Shares under the Post-IPO RSU Plan on trust for and on
behalf of grantees to be determined after the Listing. Application has been
made to the Stock Exchange for the listing of and permission to deal in
such number of Shares held by SCLN ESOP Management Limited.
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The purpose of the Post-IPO RSU Plan is to enable the directors, officers,
and other key contributors and employees of our Group to share the
success of our Company, in order to ensure a closer identification of the
interests of such persons with those of our Group and stimulate the efforts
of such persons on the Group’s behalf. Participants who can receive RSUs
under the Post-IPO RSU Plan shall be directors, officers and employees of
the Group.

(a) Restricted Share Unit

(b)

An Award represents a grant of restricted share unit (“Restricted
Share Unit”, each a "RSU” or collectively “RSUs") to the grantees
(the "Grantees”). Each RSU shall represent the right to receive
one Share (subject to any adjustment in accordance with the terms
of the Post-IPO RSU Plan due to changes of share capital of our
Company) upon vesting. The number of Shares that are subject to
outstanding awards of RSUs granted under the Post-IPO RSU Plan
(the “Awards” and each of them, an Award) at any time shall not
exceed the aggregate number of RSUs that then remain available for
distribution under the Post-IPO RSU Plan. The grant of an Award to a
Grantee shall be documented by and subject to an award agreement
(the “Award Agreement”), in which the terms and conditions of the
Award determined by the Board shall be set out.

Grant of Award

At the time of grant, the Board shall specify the date or dates and/
or any vesting or any other terms and conditions (which may include
continuing employment or other service relationship, achievement of
pre-established performance goals and objectives and/or such other
conditions that the Board deems appropriate in its sole and absolute
discretion) on which RSUs under an Award shall become vested.

To receive Shares underlying their RSUs, Grantees must: (i) have
been an employee of any member of our Group on a continuous and
uninterrupted basis throughout the vesting periods of their Grant,
and (ii) comply with any other additional obligations determined
by the Board (the “Continued Employment Condition”). If the
Grantee ceases to meet the Continued Employment Condition at any
time during any of the vesting periods of their Grant, he or she will
automatically and without prior notice or consideration forfeit his or
her RSUs.
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(c)

(d)

If any RSU is forfeited prior to vesting in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Award Agreement, then such RSU shall be
forfeited with immediate effect and of no further force or effect, and
no payment shall be made to the Grantee in respect thereof.

The RSUs were granted at nil consideration to the grantees and will
be transferred to the grantees upon vesting at nil consideration.

Vesting

Subject to the terms of the Post-IPO RSU Plan and the specific terms
and conditions applicable to each Award, the RSUs granted shall be
subject to vesting schedule and to the satisfaction of performance
and/or other conditions to be determined by the Board (if any) in
its absolute discretion. If such conditions are not satisfied, the RSU
shall automatically lapse on the date on which such conditions are
not satisfied, as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion.
The vesting period shall be detailed in the Award Agreement to the
grantee.

The Post-IPO RSU Plan does not provide for the maximum entitlement
of each participant.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company had granted to Directors and
employees of the Group outstanding RSUs representing 3,509,350
Shares, accounting for approximately 0.56% of the total issued
Shares of the Company as of December 31, 2023.
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HE2023F12A3MBHLEFE - B Movement of the RSUs, which were granted under the Post-IPO RSU

BERA

REERIBRH RN Plan, for the year ended December 31, 2023 is as follows:

BUFEARENZRHIMKMNDE
EAESHERMT

BEABFNANALEERRAIRGENHE
Number of RSUs for the year ended December 31, 2023

ZEIRHRE RRLAMSR

HEnE EfFEAHc HRAEQLR EIEE:S
1A1A AUTE EE(3R/86 128318
HATE (B7/8% ZRHIRBEL gR¥ 551 | EES: HATE BEREX
ARA RAAH (W) SRHRGE) (W) (WE2 (W& (W& (Wz6) (W)
Closing price ~ Fair value of RSU Outstanding
immediately  at the date of as of
Outstanding as prior to grant December 31,
of January1,  dateof grant  (HKD/perRSU)  Granted Vested Lapsed 2023 Vesting schedule
Grantee Date of grant 2023 (Note 4)  (HKD/per RSU) (Note1) ~ (Note2)  (Note3)  (Note5) (Note 6)  (Note 8)
£Z
Director
HERE 202245198 600,000 7.86 778 — (300,000) - 300000 RERHERE
Mr. ZHAO Hong April 19, 2022 Two years from the date
of grant
202356454 — 9.93 1018 600,000 - - 600,000 REAHRRER
June 5, 2023 22 months from the date
of grant
FAERL 202254519A 57,500 786 778 - - - 57500  RERHEME
(Mi7)
(Note 7)
Ms. PAN Rongrong April 19, 2022 Two years from the date
of grant
203565H — 9.93 1018 115,000 - - 115000 HiEASHR2MEA
June 5, 2023 22 months from the date
of grant
T£BIER5ENAL 20225 4F19A 255,000 786 778 - (156,250 - %750 RERBERE
it (TEETEALT April 19, 2022 Two years from the date
EZHAL)WHT) of grant
The five highest paid indliidlual of 022%7F4R 150,000 8.7 8.48 - (75,000) — 7500 REBHEEME
the Group in aggregate (excluding July 4, 2022 Two years from the date
those who are also Directors of the of grant
Company) (Note 7) 2023%6A5H - 9.93 1018 280,000 - - 280,000 REAHR2MEAR
June 5, 2023 22 months from the date
of grant
FEFEMES 202545198 1,415,000 7.86 778 —  (630800)  (154,700) 629500 RHABERE
Other employees of the Group April 19, 2022 Two years from the date
of grant
202259A8H 41,500 678 673 - (17450) (6,050) 18000 REAHREF
September 8, 2022 Two years from the date
of grant
03F6A5H - 993 1018 1,335,600 - - 1335600  RiLAHE2(EA
June 5, 2023 22 months from the date
of grant
CE 2,519,000 - — 2330600 (1179500  (160,750) 3,509,350
Total
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Note 1 (a):

Note 1 (b):

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

The RSUs were granted at nil consideration to the grantees
and will be transferred to the grantees upon vesting at nil
consideration.

Details of the valuation and the accounting standard and policy
adopted for the Post-IPO RSUs during the year of 2023 are set
out in the Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Subject to fulfilment of vesting conditions including customized
performance targets for each grantee, the RSUs shall be vested
according to the vesting schedule.

The weighted average closing price immediately before the date
on which the RSUs were vested was HKD11.66.

The aggregate percentage of number of Shares underlying the
RSUs granted during the Reporting Period divided by the total
number of Shares in issue as at January 1, 2023 was 0.34%
which did not exceed the 3% limit set in the Post-IPO RSU Plan.

During the Reporting Period, no RSU was cancelled.



B 6

B ¥ 7 -

B 38 -

RERAAHABEERIR
BIRMDEBEMTEmS - B
202341818 &20234128
3B BHARHBERT
FR &I AR BB 5T &I IE T A
HIR 6 Z R AR D B
48 $054,170,963%2,001,113
% BRARAE BRIEK
BHIRAREE &R’
MEM BN ETE AR
KABARBRAFTERGM
7 SCLN ESOP Management
Limited 2 17 & X A B & &
1& = MRl BR 17 8 i 51 &1 48
78 #96,689,9630% B 17+ &
PiNYNES R = INNL
&% X R R E A B
B A X R AR5 8 AR
EEMBABRGD - RiEH
A R IR AN R R ET A AT E
B RS AR M I ST B
THRMEBEEESRR
EHANERARHEBEERRT
PR MDEMTEE TR
F% 8 ] B 4T B 1 B 4B 2 -
iR AR RS B A B AT
B& 15 8B & b 5 A
52.85% °

B A D LT H2023F5H25
B ETARRBRITE
£ HERZ A B57,500
BRI ER -

FHEBKHEEREBRRE
20234128318 It F E B
BRI B AR
AR E R E BB IR) E K
% 0 2023F6HA5H & H K
PR HI R 1D B AL % AR A
#150% X PR # i% 15 & (7 #%
HR2024F3831B R E - &
# T50% i 7202543 A31
BERE ZES(BEBIE
WITESR)RA  BEzSE
PR HI % 15 B A TR AR
AIAE —MEBRREFRRK
—MREEKRKET BR
FTEE WHFEAQRR
R B EBH = -

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:
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In respect of the Post-IPO RSU Plan, as at January 1, 2023 and
December 31, 2023, the total numbers of RSUs available for grant
under the Post-IPO RSU Plan were 4,170,963 and 2,001,113.
No new Shares will be issued in respect of RSUs granted under
the Post-IPO RSU Plan as the 6,689,963 Shares underlying the
Post-IPO RSU Plan have already been issued by the Company
to SCLN ESOP Management Limited for the purpose of holding
Shares under the Post-IPO RSU Plan in trust for and on behalf of
all grantees under the Post-IPO RSU Plan. The total number of
Shares that may be issued in respect of the options and awards
granted under all schemes of the Company during the Reporting
Period shall equal to the total number of Shares that may be
issued in respect of the options under the Post-IPO Option Plan
during the Reporting Period, and when divided by the weighted
average number of the Shares in issue during the Reporting
Period, was 2.85%.

Ms. Pan Rongrong was appointed as the executive Director
on May 25, 2023 and held 57,500 RSUs as at the date of
appointment.

Subject to fulfillment of vesting conditions including customized
performance targets of the grantees of RSUs granted during the
year ended December 31, 2023, 50% of the RSUs granted on
June 5, 2023 to each of the Grantees of RSUs shall be vested on
March 31, 2024 and remaining 50% shall be vested on March 31,
2025 and the Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) are of the view that such grant of the RSUs are
conducted in the ordinary and usual business of the Company
and are on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year
ended December 31, 2023 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the RSU Plan, during the year ended December 31, 2023, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company's
securities.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at December 31, 2023 are set out in
Note 40(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles of Association, every Director, Auditor or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director, Auditor
or other officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.

ISSUANCE OF DEBENTURES

During the year ended December 31, 2023, no issuance of debentures was made
by the Company.
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Directors’ Report

DONATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company made charitable and
other donations in a total amount of RMB4.7 million.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 40 to 59 of this Annual
Report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company was not engaged in
any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim
of material importance is known to the directors to be pending or threatening
against the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Our Group has adopted internal control and risk management policies to monitor
the on-going compliance with relevant laws and regulations. As far as the Board
is concerned, our Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries in all aspects.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

On March 1, 2023, the Company repurchased 77,534,791 Shares at HK$10.06
per share with a total consideration of HKD780 million through a cash offer. The
Shares repurchased through the cash offer have been cancelled on March 10,
2023.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company has repurchased a total
of 3,209,500 Shares on the Stock Exchange and the details are set out below:

BERRGER

Price Per Share
BRE
BS BE Aggregate
BZ2023512A3MBLEERBEA#H BEROHE Highest Lowest Consideration
Month of Repurchase in the year Number of Shares BT BT BT
ended December 31, 2023 Repurchased HK$ HK$ HK$
4 A April 80,000 11.70 11.42 923,552.00
5H May 100,000 12.02 11.86 1,194,420.00
6H June 1,864,500 10.94 10.12 19,611,419.90
7R July 865,000 10.80 10.48 9,170,811.60
8 H August 300,000 9.80 9.47 2,918,100.00
&% Total 3,209,500 33,818,303.50

TEHEIRMAMR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 E$R% ANNUAL REPORT 91



R RS

Directors’ Report

72023412 A318 - 3,209,500 % % [B1 f& {5 £
B o

ExglRE RNBXMBERRORRER
EEMBRNROTREARONER
i m AR E KRR E R

M EXREIBREEBTEESEIN - AD A K
EH AT ] B /B A 7 I £ R2023F12 A318 1L &
EHE HEXBRARGTM LEHRAEH

% -

RERR B
EEeEa Y TRAE2023F12A318IEE
JEOR R BRI AR B (20224 - & PR0.39%8 L) °

BREBFKE
RAFIRRRIBF KL ER2024F6H28H (£
HA)RT REBFACTBEHRELT
RAREN SN BERRERTE FRE -

TEnERMBFELTFE
AETHARLERRBFRAETHETERS
R e & E - ADaE i R202496H25H
(EH-)22024%6A28B (EH A (B IR
EMB)EEREEL  PEE T HEMT
DB EFE - FTERMNEEXHFER
RN E B N2024F6A24B(EH ) T F
M=+ ERXARBINEERHBF
ERPREEEFFEZLABRAR i A
EEERBIGHEERESBPLITIE-

RAARFRE
REARDTARNERREFEMA - RA
FEBEAH  ARTRECEDRA) R
ERHBRHARERE o

92

As at December 31, 2023, 3,209,500 repurchased Shares were cancelled.

The Board believed that repurchase of Shares on the Stock Exchange and the
subsequent cancellation of the repurchased Shares would enhance the value of
the Shares thereby improving the return to the Shareholders of the Company.

Save for the above and disclosure in the Subsequent Event, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed interest in any of the
Company's listed Shares for the year ended December 31, 2023.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to pay final dividend for the year ended December 31,
2023 (2022: HKDO0.39 per Share).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on Friday, June 28, 2024. A notice
convening the AGM will be published and dispatched to the Shareholders in the
manner required by the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the Shareholders’ entitlements to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, June
25, 2024 to Friday, June 28, 2024, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered. All Share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, June 24, 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this Annual Report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.



¥ BUEm

HZE2023F12A31BLEFEE AEBAHH
BHREROEREF KEGTMBEHAE -
BRETRERKESHMEBAMESR
AAIZBAMORZREREARRAFAS L
RE - ARBEBEZFREA—F  HE
B RAZ A -

AEEG D
BEBXZRARDA

B 2024637284

R RS

Directors’ Report

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2023 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the
reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting. The Company has not changed auditor
during any of the past three years.

For and on behalf of the Board
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited

Hong Kong, March 28, 2024
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To the Shareholders of SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out
on pages 102 to 225, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material

accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and have been

properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
("ISAs"”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
("IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment assessment
on intangible assets that are not ready for use.

#£12 AR 2T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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HAREDNUEARCHNEFLEE 2 REMT
Impairment assessment on intangible assets that are not
ready for use

FELEEMHTEIREM E2.1(0) ~ K FE2.1(d) « M 5E6(a) K M
19 ©

Refer to Note 2.1(c), 2.1(d), 6(a) and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

M2023F12A31F ° BEEEHAREINAIERARENETLE
ENREREAAREINIVEEL  BREERBEEER
ARBIMI80EE T HEFEANREBELETI HEF
EMHHRNEANERTHAR A RER S E A% E
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had intangible assets that
are not ready for use with the gross amount of RMB327.97
million and impairment provision of RMB141.80 million, which
are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired.

ERBEEREREFREETREM - WEBZIN B
BB T KAZHBENRE REERZERLEE
FHENBeELRBEUNTRE &% RERETFERE
5t e

Management performed impairment assessment when
impairment indicators were identified, and also performed
annual impairment assessment at year end with the assistance
of an independent external valuer based on the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the intangible
asset is related to using the multi-period excess earnings
method.

EMNEFNNEERARETNS R
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BB EREBYMREINEARENEREEFELORER
ARERENEFEETISIA:
Our procedures performed in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on intangible assets that are not ready for
use mainly include the following:

. TR A E IR B 9 A B I R L E i R E B AT A AR
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o Understanding and evaluating management’s internal
control and assessment process of the impairment of
intangible assets that are not ready for use (including
on-going monitor of the development stage of pipeline
products, identification and assessment of impairment
indicators of pipeline products, development of the key
assumptions applied in determining the recoverable
amount, etc.), and assessing the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such as
subjectivity of significant assumptions used,;

. MEREARTRAEEASENER CRBEKREYR
BEIRME - BRI R R R A RO ERE R

o Inquiring management and inspecting the relevant
supporting documents about the expected achievement
of drug development milestones, success rate of
commercialization and the outcome of new drug
development for each pipeline product;

. MEREAMUNTR ESEEMNERNRIN Fﬁi%%“
BERRRURA SN BN - W AR B EFE
X EEAEMITELRY M%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁé
o0 R (B BF R 8 3Bl A0 AT

o Inquiring management to understand the technological,
market, economic and legal environment, as well as the
financial conditions of licensors of the Group’s pipeline
products, and inspecting relevant supporting documents,
regulatory announcements as well as industry publications
so as to evaluate management’s identification and
assessment of impairment indicators of pipeline products;
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HMEmAREINAIEARENEREEZ REBTIERH
BESAFE DARZGLATLEREREE KA R A
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We consider the impairment assessment of intangible assets
that are not ready for use is a key audit matter because the
assessment involves key assumptions which are subject to
significant management’s estimates and judgements, including
the expected achievement of drug development milestones,
success rate of commercialization, the outcome of new drug
development, the revenue growth rate of each pipeline
products under respective license arrangements and the
discount rate used in the multi-period excess earnings method.

BMNESFNNEERAREENSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

. AEEREEEANNIBELGEMNERS O REEML:
o Assessing the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent external valuer engaged by management;

. EEMOGEESERNOBH T FEEREERBERTE
B HIERE TR E ML P &R E E & U E £ 58 AT A
SZHBERSZNEEE RAABEBR(NBA L
B EEEEBFELTSBBEAEHRAERERAEEX)
BWaEM:

o Evaluating, with the assistance of our valuation specialist,
the appropriateness of multi-period excess earnings method
used by management to determine the recoverable amount
of intangible assets in the impairment assessment by
considering the industry practice; and the reasonableness of
key assumptions used, including revenue growth rate and
discount rate by comparing with the Group’s business plan
and market data;

. BANBAFEERXGENE EEERNLFEMREDN
TERGETAE W IE TR - U A EBBEARENA XL

o Performing retrospective review by comparing the actual
results for the current year with the Group’s forecasts
prepared in the prior year to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

. HEEHBEREEMAERRROERNL  ZETME
EsSREEENTS T

o Assessing sensitivities over the key assumptions used in
multi-period excess earnings method in considering the
sufficiency of headroom;

. FEEHABRRPEVEEREGARENT S & -

o Evaluating the adequacy of disclosure of impairment
assessment of intangible assets in the consolidated financial
statements.

REFATOEFER  RMRREBRBERAZEDAIEAMN
RONBFEEZ REGRTTAANBRBRRESAERFHF -
Based on the audit procedures performed, we found
management’s key assumptions used in impairment assessment of
intangible assets that are not ready for use to be supportable by
the available evidence.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (ontinueq)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Jack Li.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE2023F 128318 L& E

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BEZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20234 20224

2023 2022

B 5% AR® T AR T

Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

WA Revenue 8 3,155,614 2,749,681

AN Cost of revenue 12 (799,413) (679,196)

EF Gross profit 2,356,201 2,070,485

HEREHMAS Sales and marketing expenses 12 (712,810) (627,751)

TTER X Administrative expenses 12 (257,295) (225,003)

e Research and development (“R&D") expenses 12 (170,679) (123,860)

RN Other income 9 41,770 12,125

Hih & B FE Other losses — net 10 (52,081) (155,392)

KERA Operating profit 1,205,106 950,604

BB WA Finance income 11 70,484 36,069

Bl & B AR Finance costs 11 (58,193) (46,593)

BEWA (B A)F 58 Finance income/(costs), net 12,291 (10,524)

Fr 15 B A1 F 8 Profit before income tax 1,217,397 940,080

B MAX Income tax expense 14 (95,495) (84,725)
AATBEBEAEEFEARARE Profit for the year attributable to owners of

the Company 1,121,902 855,355
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2023F12A318 1L FE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BZE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
B 5 AR T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

Hitt 2 HEK = Other comprehensive income
TE2EH S EZERAIE  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

A
NAREEFEZEEHEES Changes in the fair value of equity investments at

FPAH M 2 E Uk & 8 IR fair value through other comprehensive income

KRENAAEBED ("FVOCI”) 26 (18,599) (221,573)
ARl E¥BREZE Currency translation differences of the Company 104,419 730,862
BB DR R Items that may be subsequently reclassified to

#) I8 5 profit or loss
RARRIMB AR EEHBHE Currency translation differences of the Company’s

Z R subsidiaries (94,397) (521,092)
FREZEKRZEE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,113,325 843,552
DTATEGZEK S Total comprehensive income attributable to:

M
ZN/NEIE7 =N Owners of the Company 1,113,325 843,552
AATEEAEMLESREAF Earnings per share attributable to owners of

(AR¥% ) the Company (RMB) 15
A% H A& F Basic earnings per share 1.83 1.27
GREERT Diluted earnings per share 1.72 1.21

ENORE2SEMHERZERBRERE

ABER D o

The notes on pages 110 to 225 are an integral part of these financial statements.

FEEERRAER AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 4 E %% ANNUAL REPORT 103



EHEEBER
Consolidated Balance Sheet
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As at 31 December 2023

M12831H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
Bt 5% AR% T AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets
IERBEE Non-current assets
FREEE Right-of-use assets 17 32,403 18,829
E Property, plant and equipment 18 7,018 9,796
mEAE Intangible assets 19 396,039 542,241
NAREEFEBEHSE Financial assets at fair value through
AEHIERZMNEREE  profit or loss ("FVPL") 25, 26 4,033 19,806
UWARBE:EBHEES Financial assets at FVOCI
A E A 2 W S 8
TRMEE 25, 26 106,604 123,295
RERIEE E Deferred tax assets 31 — 651
Ht&E Other assets 20, 25 7,046 5,301
IRBEELE Total non-current assets 553,143 719,919
REBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 21 308,285 140,560
B 5’ IE Trade receivables 22,25 867,954 780,962
HEfme&E Other current assets 23 274,201 804,435
AR REMER = BE#ZEHE Financial assets at FVPL
AEHEENEREE 25, 26 187,476 202,701
ReERBEEZEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 24, 25 1,809,191 1,671,829
MBEERME Total current assets 3,447,107 3,600,487
BEHE Total assets 4,000,250 4,320,406
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EHEEAER
Consolidated Balance Sheet

72023512 4318
As at 31 December 2023

®12A31A8
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
Bt 5% AR T AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EZzkBE Equity and liabilities
&& Liabilities
EkRBER Non-current liabilities
f& 3 Borrowings 30 — 414,682
EIEBIE B & Deferred tax liabilities 31 16,963 14,570
HEEBRE Lease liabilities 25, 29,
35(c) 19,768 7,355
EtERDERE Other non-current liabilities 208 205
ERBEERE Total non-current liabilities 36,939 436,812
REBEE Current liabilities
Bk EMEMNERR Trade and other payables 28 623,100 418,752
HEBE Lease liabilities 25, 29,
35(c) 13,064 12,714
&3 Borrowings 30 — 417,876
BUEARE 1B B & Current tax liabilities 62,080 42,090
FEBaEEE Total current liabilities 698,244 891,432
BEH#E Total liabilities 735,183 1,328,244
EEFE Net assets 3,265,067 2,992,162
EATREBAEEES Equity attributable to owners of the Company
& A Share capital 32 216 237
& 5 % (B Share premium 32 1,014,517 1,710,429
H 4 = Other equity 33 (8) (7)
i Other reserves 34 410,564 347,484
RE & F Retained earnings 1,839,778 934,019
R Total equity 3,265,067 2,992,162

FNMOEE225EMMaEAZEMBRED

MBER D o

F102H £2258H M B 75 3R = A E = 2 102024
FIA8AMET ANEBZEREE -

fi-P
EZE

The notes on pages 110 to 225 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 102 to 225 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 28 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf.

Zhao Hong
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE2023F 128318 L& E

For the year ended 31 December 2023

RRREB AL
Attributable to owners of the Company
BA BOEE  HeRE  EhEE  REEF @it
Share Share Other Other Retained
capital premium equity reserves eamings Total
MiE ARBTn ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2022F1B1B & & Balance at 1 January 2022 232 1,727,026 3) 299,759 290,394 2,317,408
2AEKE Comprehensive income
T Profit for the year = = = = 855,355 855,355
WAABEFEEEEHFAZMEE Changes in the fair value of equity
BENRERENAABERY investments at FVOC| 26 - - - (5n) — Q5N
SR 5 Foreign currency translation 34 = = = 209,770 = 209,770
2ENELE Total comprehensive income — - - (11,803) 855,355 843,552
BASERESBANRS Transactions with equity holders of
the Group
ERZATRE Appropriation to statutory reserves 34 = = = 7,185 (7,185) =
R B E 5% Share based compensation expenses 27 = = = 52,343 = 52,343
REERNAEETETLRR Issuance of ordinary shares to the
employee share scheme trust 32,33 6 — (6) — — —
BERZHEBR Repurchase and cancellation of ordinary
shares 32,33 1) (32,726) — — — (32,727)
TEERE Exercise of share options 32,33 = 16,129 2 = = 16,131
B8 Dividends 16 — — — — (204,545 (204,545)
HAREREREANR AR Total transactions with equity
holders of the Group 5 (16,597) (4) 59,528 (211,730) (168,798)
R2022512A31A M & 88 Balance at 31 December 2022 237 1,710,429 (7) 347,484 934,019 2,992,162

106



R E YR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

NG TN 2
Attributable to owners of the Company
k& RGEE HtthE HtREE  REEF @t
Share Share Other Other  Retained
capital premium equity reserves earnings Total

M ARMTRT ARETR ARMTT ARMTR ARETR ARMT:R
Note RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

R2023F1B1B M &8 Balance at 1 January 2023 237 1,710,429 (1) 347,484 934,019 2,992,162
2ENE Comprehensive income
EApibe Profit for the year - - - — 1,121,902 1,121,902
WRAABEFEEEEHHFAZMEE Changes in the fair value of equity
BanBRERENAAEEED investments at FVOC| 26 - — - (18,599) - (18,599)
SMVERE K Foreign currency translation 34 - - - 10,022 = 10,022
PENEAR Total comprehensive income - - - (8577) 1,121,902 1,113,325
BASERESBANRS Transactions with equity holders of
the Group
ERZEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves 34 - - — 4,690 (4,690) =
Bl e Share based compensation expenses 27 - - - 66,967 — 66,967
REERNAEETETLRR Issuance of ordinary shares to the
employee share scheme trust 32,33 4 - (4) - - -
BERZHEBR Repurchase and cancellation of ordinary
shares 32,33 (26) (720,455) - - - (720,481)
TEERE Exercise of share options 32,33 1 24,544 2 - — 24,547
TEZRAERNE Exercise of restricted shares units
(TR PR3 e A E ) ("RSUs") 32,33 - (1) 1 - — -
B Dividends 16 - - - —  (211453)  (211453)
BAEERERAEANRZAE Total transactions with equity
holders of the Group (21)  (695912) (1 71,657 (216,143)  (840,420)
R2023E12A31A M & & Balance at 31 December 2023 216 1,014,517 (8) 410564 1,839,778 3,265,067

FNOEE205HENME RZEHBRERD The notes on pages 110 to 225 are an integral part of these financial statements.

#HRCER
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HE2023F 128318 L& E

For the year ended 31 December 2023

RETBHRERERE

REmFNRE
B YA B
BENHE

BN AEHR

RETHMBREFH

REZDFERERE
M- BERRENK
AR

FFAA 5K

Y B8 E #3173
WEARREBEFEER

PHAEHEENERE

=
HEARAEBEFTEAR

PHAEHEENERE

TS 3R
HEE 87 RSO

HEME  BMERRBOM

8

FRIB
BRI EDBFERIE

RETHME (FARS

FE

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment

Payments for software
Payments for licenses

Acquisition of time deposits
Acquisition of financial assets at FVPL

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at FVPL

Proceeds from disposal of time deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Proceeds from maturity of debt investment

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing

activities

B 5
Note

35

HZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20224
2022
ARET T
RMB’000

1,268,804
28,762
(46,786)
(67,212)

1,183,568

(5,768
(1,817
(188,548
(4,255,592

= L E L

(673,588)

531,712
3,561,245

448
6,359

(1,025,549)



MEFHFERERE
17 BB R A

AT ERITE K

B [0 3 58 B A 3K
EEAER SN
BENEE
HENKWAZ D

MEZBHFAREEE

RERRESEEY
2, (B L)BRE
FUREZMREEZED
EXREHHIRS R
REeEFEDNTE

FRAEESRRESEER

FNMOEZ225EMMEAZEMBRED

ARER D o

Cash flows from financing activities
Exercising of share options

Payment for bank borrowing

Payments for repurchase of ordinary shares
Payments for share repurchasing costs
Dividends paid

Principal elements of lease payments

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20224

2022

B & ARET T
Note RMB’000

16,005

(435,330)

(32,727)

(106)

16 (205,622)
17 (12,482)

(670,262)

(512,243)
2,127,488

56,584

1,671,829

The notes on pages 110 to 225 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 May 2020 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961 as combined and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in developing
and commercializing a portfolio of marketed products as well as pipelines
with potential in their focused therapeutic areas including oncology and
severe infection.

The Company completed the initial public offering (“IPO”) and had its
shares listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx") on 3
March 2021.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
unless otherwise stated.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies

(a)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IFRS Accounting Standards”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cop. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at FVPL or FVOCI
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 6.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains/
losses on transactions between group companies are eliminated
on consolidation.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited



HZE2023F12A31MBLEEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

21 EXBHEBEBE®) 2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(a) HWHREE®) (a) Basis of preparation (continued)
— XEEERAL —  New and amended standards adopted by the
FTET R A& ZT 26 Group
Al
N & B 202351 A The Group has applied the following new and amended
1B HNFE RS standards for its annual reporting period commencing 1
HA A PR AR OBA T ET AT January 2023:
KA E T A -
RUTAHR 2% H
# 8| BNEEHBER

Effective for annual

periods beginning
Standards

on or after
CEIBR 81 75 3 S R BT R MRBR A 4] 2023414318
IFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts” 1 January 2023
(BB ERDE IR KRBT BREENEHRE)E2R (BT R[S BREHE] 20231718
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2, “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” 1 January 2023
(BB & 5HE R ESSE (B 7T ) [ & 5 b 51 # € 3% 20234 1A1H
Amendments to IAS 8, “Definition of Accounting Estimates” 1 January 2023
(BB EADERR (BTN EE-—SGEENEERBEHEBNREERIE] 2023F1A1H
Amendments to IAS 12 — Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction 1 January 2023
KEAFEERAZIE—RA 202351818
OECD Pillar Two Rules 1 January 2023

B FT 8 8 E The amendments listed above did not have any impact

MR e EILE on the amounts recognized in prior periods and are not

EfRIFE - BFEFT expected to significantly affect the current or future

Y E K ARKRE periods.
MELEEAZE -



HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

21 EXBHEBEBE®) 2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(a) HEREEw®) (a) Basis of preparation (continued)
—  HERRBEIT —  New standards and interpretations not yet
BRI R 2 FE adopted
EEME MR ER Standards, amendments and interpretations that have
BEXREETERE been issued but not yet effective and not been early
e AR - (B3] adopted by the Group are as follows:
NBZBWT:
RUTHEHBE 2%
B BN FEHBER
Effective for annual
periods beginning
Standards on or after
(BB E IR (B RN ABEIEARDRIERD]  [MERFENERBDAE] 2024F1H1H
Amendments to IAS 1, “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”, “Non-current Liabilities with 1 January 2024
Covenants”
(BB i mEERD B (BT RNHERERHERNHEEAE] 2024F1H1H
Amendments to IFRS 16, “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback” 1 January 2024
(BB GaERDE7R R(BEBRM B MEERDE7R (BT ERHE R 2024F1H1H

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7, ”Suppl|er finance arrangements”

1 January 2024

(BB REENFEI0FE R(AB S ERNFE28F (BT AR EHFREHERAKEELEZHMN HFE
BEEHESEA]
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or To be determined

joint venture”

EFDHHENR The directors have performed assessment on the
BT AREITAAE - I new standards and amendments, and has concluded
ML EEER B on a preliminary basis that these new standards and
s 3 2 Bl & & 5] A< amendments would not have a significant impact on the
ERETIEHAE Group's consolidated financial statements when they
" & O B 18 W & become effective.

ELXERTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(b) Subsidiaries
Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains/
losses on transactions between the companies within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

(i)  Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations other than those
under common control, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(b) Subsidiaries (continued)
Consolidation (continued)

(i)

Business combinations (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,
and acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the
net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognized directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(b) Subsidiaries (continued)
Consolidation (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently re-measured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognized in profit or
loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.



HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
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21 EXBHEBEBE®) 2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(b) HIEAa ) (b) Subsidiaries (continued)
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ERAEENEES
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Consolidation (continued)

(iii) Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income
("OCI") in respect of that entity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognized in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements
of the Company are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’'s net assets including
goodwill.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(c) Intangible assets

(1)

R&D expenditures

Research expenditure on research activities is recognized
as an expense as incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities is recognized if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

o it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
assets so that it will be available for use;

o management intends to complete the intangible
assets and use or sell it;

o there is an ability to use or sell the intangible
assets;
o it can be demonstrated how the intangible assets

will generate probable future economic benefits;

o adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible assets are available; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible
assets during its development can be reliably
measured.

The Group’s R&D expenditures incurred did not meet
the capitalization principle above and were expensed as
incurred during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.



21 EREFHEME®)

(c)

Fi::4

P

(ir)

FEE (#)

& A]

RHEESI AU B
MBERE LAY
MEMRMSE =T
B R (B E DB
AHREER KRE
EEBNREE
BERE) BN
REREBNREE
EREAECRET
BE BRIEZFRX
TR B 18 MY 5£2.1(e)()
A& AR R R AR
SNBH BT
Be & 10 B 55 & AT 1R
BB REAE
B A BB At
AWA LA

0 EE V) ia R
TEBHRKEMN
MEEETEEDN
BN MR R
ELEF RER
TREEBMERN
GFEREEERS
HE AT HE&S D
BEEMRAT(HZE
R EEE KA
HE) -

BRIETEEALR
Ul - ]
AN BERF
fteamMERE B
BEEANDHEE
A &R E2.106)
(i) ¥ Pt 6 & B IR
FIAEH -

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(c) Intangible assets (continued)

(ir)

Licenses

Payments made to third parties to in-license or acquire
intellectual property rights, compounds and products
include initial non-refundable upfront payments,
subsequent milestone payments and royalty payments.
Upfront and milestone payments are capitalized as
intangible assets when incurred, unless these payments
are for outsourced R&D work which follow the
capitalization principle in Note 2.1(e)(i). Royalty payments
incurred along with the underlying sales are expensed as
incurred and charged to cost of revenue.

Additional payments for purchase of intangible assets
contingent on future events are not considered on initial
recognition of the assets, but are added to the costs
of the assets initially recorded when incurred, or when
related liabilities are remeasured for changes in cash
flows, if such payments are related to the costs of the
assets.

Subsequent internal R&D expenses in relation to in-
license intellectual property rights, compounds and
products are expensed unless capitalization principles
are met in accordance with the accounting policy as
mentioned in Note 2.1(e)(i).

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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Estimated useful lives

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(c) Intangible assets (continued)

(ir)

Licenses (continued)

Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements
that have an indefinite useful life or not available for use
are not subject to amortization and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired
(Note 2.1(d)).

Intangible assets recognized related to in-license
arrangements are amortized on the straight-line basis
over their useful economic lives when they become
available for use (Note 6(c)).

Estimated useful lives of available for-use intangible
assets are as follows:

SE20F (ERXNRESIAZHHRAFAFERBEEHRR(AREERE))

5-20 years (based on the terms of the in-license arrangements or the estimated duration of product

sales, whichever is shorter)

L/

W E R IR
P B 5 AR 18 1F B
mRAETUER
fb - 3 H A5 A2
A OB % A3F)
PO T A B 8 -

(iif)  Software

Costs incurred to acquire and bring to use of software
are capitalized as intangible assets and amortized over
their estimated useful lives (generally 3 years).
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

(e)

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Investments and other financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

—  those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

—  those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

#£12 AR 2T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

(e) Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(i)

(ir)

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be
recorded either in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at FVOCI.

See Note 25 for details of each type of financial assets.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

(e) Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(iif)  Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The
Group classifies its debt instruments into the following
measurement categories:

#£12 AR 2T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(e) Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

(iif)  Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized
directly in profit or loss and presented in “Other
gains/(losses) — net” together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(e) Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

(i) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognized in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognized in
“Other gains/(losses) — net”. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in “Other
gains/(losses) — net” and impairment expenses
are presented as a separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

(e) Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(i) Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognized in
profit or loss and presented net within “Other
gains/(losses) — net” in the period in which it
arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss
as “Other income” when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

(e) Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(i)

(iv)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognized in “Other gains/(losses) — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

(e) Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

v)

Impairment

The Group assesses the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortized cost,
including loan receivables, trade receivables and other
receivables (including receivables from licensing income,
purchase rebate receivables, rental deposits and interest
receivables) on a forward-looking basis, and with the
exposure arising from financial guarantee contracts. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition
of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables (including receivables
from licensing income, purchase rebate receivables, rental
deposits and interest receivables) and loan receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(7)

(i)

(ir)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the consolidated balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realized, or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(f) Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(ir)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only if it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available to
utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilized.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(f) Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(ir)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred income tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
in OCI or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognized in OCl or directly in equity, respectively.

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group
accounts for such allowances as tax credits, which means
that the allowance reduces income tax payable and
current tax expense.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)
(g) Revenue recognition

The Group principally derives revenue from sales of products.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold, stated net of discounts, returns and value-added
taxes. The Group recognizes product revenue at the point in
time when the performance obligation under the terms of
a contract with the customer is satisfied and control of the
product has been transferred to the customer.

The Group's contractual arrangements with certain of its
distributors contain variable considerations in connection with
the price mechanism. If the provincial tender price is below or
above a reference price (baseline price), the Group may owe
price compensation payable to or is due price compensation
receivable from the distributor. The provincial tender price
is the ultimate end-point sales price approved by provincial
authorities in China. The Group estimates the variable
consideration using the expected value method and takes into
consideration the tender price as at the report date as well as
the recent market trend. The variable consideration (whether
price compensation payable or receivable), under the principles
of IFRS 15, is recognized at the time when the underlying
originating sale is recognized.

2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies
(a) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation

(1)

(1)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial information of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries
incorporated outside of Mainland China are USD, EUR or
HKD, while the functional currencies of the Company'’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China are Renminbi
("RMB"). As the major business of the Group are within
Mainland China, the Group determined to present
its consolidated financial statements in RMB (unless
otherwise stated).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation when items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ir)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
net basis within “Other gains/(losses) — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
FVPL are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss, and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as at FVOCI
are recognized in OCI.



22 HBEERSFTHRRBE

(%)

(b) SPEE R (%)

(i)

EEHE A
heEeERE2IE
BT BBMEEE
ER(EFHERN
BEMRKENEE)
MRS R BEARR
HREBENNEE
BT

. BHEEARE
RZBEERA
BRI ZE
EREXRGEEHE
B 2 Y =

i C

. EEKEEN
W AT % H 39
108 F 4 [ %
B (B IFULF
19 % 3 F R
%250 ME
Ei) Rt H @
SRS YOS
EWERT -
TONETE"
RBAHLE
RBRE) R

. HBELHI
WE N EEY
ROE 2 K
HRER -

ol

A EaIIERM
EENBEERAR
BEHE HHRHE
BHBEENEER
BE - AR TE X
BmE - EENIE
EXz8ERHEME
M 5 A HERR

>

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

o all resulting currency translation differences are
recognized in OCI.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognized in OCI.
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(c)

Estimated useful lives

3E54F

44

4 years

3-5 years

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (“PP&E") is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes the expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of PP&E is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:
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BB R0 = AT Uk B 2 2R (Ff
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Shorter of remaining term of the lease and the estimated useful lives of assets

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.1(d)).

Gains and losses on disposals of PP&E are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are recognized
in “Other gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(d) Inventories

(e)

(f)

Inventories, mainly consisting of raw materials, work in progress
and finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost comprises amounts related to direct
materials, direct labor and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed overhead expenditure. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
They are generally due for settlement within 90 days and
therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognized
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. Details about the Group’s impairment
policies and the calculation of the loss allowance are disclosed
in Note 2.1(e).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions, other short-term and highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility
to which it relates.
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(i)

()

Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, canceled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in
profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the
entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all
or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the
fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings, pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets, is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(k) Financial guarantee contract

()

Financial guarantee contract is recognized as a financial liability
at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially
measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
and

o the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognized in
accordance with the principles of IFRS 15 — Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party
for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognized as part of the
cost of the investment.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorized and no longer at the discretion
of the Company and its subsidiaries, on or before the end
of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(1)

(ir)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognized
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
have to make contribution to staff retirement schemes
managed by local government authorities in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations. Contributions to
these schemes are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as and when incurred. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions once the contributions are paid
by the Group in compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire retirement scheme obligations
payable to the retired employees. Contributions made to
these schemes vest immediately.
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(m) Employee benefits (continued)

(ir)

(1if)

(iv)

Pension obligations (continued)

The Group also participates in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held in a separate trustee-
administered fund. Both the Group and the employees
employed by the Group in Hong Kong are required to
contribute to the scheme monthly. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are expensed as incurred.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the Group in Mainland China are entitled
to participate in various government-supervised housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurance
plan. The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these
funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability
in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each year. Contributions to the housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(m) Employee benefits (continued)

v)

(vi)

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognized as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans are
expected to be settled within 1 year and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(@) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the Group recognizes costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and
involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(n)

Share-based payments

The Group operates share incentive plan, under which it
receives services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (restricted shares units (“RSUs”) and options)
of the Company. The fair value of the services received in
exchange for the grant of the equity instruments is recognized
as an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income with a corresponding increase in equity.

The fair values of share options granted are measured on
the respective grant dates based on the fair value of the
underlying shares. In addition, the Group is required to
estimate the expected percentage of grantees that will remain
in employment with the Group or, where applicable, if the
performance conditions for vesting will be met at the end of
the vesting period. The Group only recognizes an expense for
those equity instruments expected to vest over the vesting
period during which the grantees become unconditionally
entitled to these share-based awards.

In terms of the RSUs and options awarded to employees, the
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of equity instruments (RSUs and options) granted:

3 including any market performance conditions;

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

. including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-marketing performance and service conditions are
included in calculation of the number of RSUs and options that
are expected to vest. The total amount expensed is recognized
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

Share-based payments (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of RSUs and options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing performance
and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

In some circumstances, employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair
value is estimated for the purposes of recognizing the expense
during the period between service commencement period and
grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
ordinary shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital and
share premium.

Earnings per share
() Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

—  the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

— by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

#£12 AR 2T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(o) Earnings per share (continued)

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

—  the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

— the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

(p) Leases

The Group leases office and buildings as lessee. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 3 years
with no extension option. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions.

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is amortized
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis.
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(p)

Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

3 fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

3 variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate
o amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under

residual value guarantees

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

3 payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

3 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received

3 any initial direct costs, and

© restoration costs.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(p)

(q)

Leases (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the
Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognized on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases with a remaining term of 12 months or less as of the
date of initial adoption of IFRS 16.

The right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities are present
separately on the consolidated balance sheet.

Lease transaction is considered as a single transaction in which
the asset and liability are integrally linked, there is no net
temporary difference recognition at inception. Subsequently,
as differences arise on settlement of the liability and the
amortization of the leased asset, there will be a net temporary
difference on which deferred tax is recognized. The Group’s
deferred tax balances related to lease transactions were
minimal as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received, and the Group will comply with all required
conditions.

Government grants related to costs are deferred and recognized
in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to PP&E are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.2 Summary of other potentially material accounting
policies (continued)

(r) Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the
net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets. Interest income on
financial assets at amortized cost and financial assets at FVOCI
calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of
other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is included in other
income.

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The overall risk management program of the
Group focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on financial performance of the
Group.

#£12 AR 2T SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited



HZE2023F12A31MBLEEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

31 tRIAEBEZR#
(a) THEE

()

Sh FE [ f

AATKR G AT L
BB XTI ERSE
H-AEBERSH
ERBEEHNHREAR
AHERE TEB®HO
(EEHARKEERH)
S| B EY SN FE R B o
SNEE R B = B B R
AAIRHAESEHESTE
it B 32 B9 BT B 2 &)
TREBEERHYE
U B % #% Y2 B S
MEBEEZH
SR S D
HHOEBRREER
BEAHE A~K5EM@E
FeNEE R B A9 = 2
TREERBEE
ZENUNARBGE
MRS RRESEE
Y & B 5 FE W RIE
o Bl EE R MY FE24
X B 522 o

il

HRAEBHEEE
Sy ol Tl = NG
mE - WARBEE
LA E B E%
mATE &t # =R
B FTEREK
BUARKESEZ
EMEAEFBEHI
PE U 25 3K 65 18 5 &8
HOH Z=2023F12F
BMALEFEMRER
IR A
mom AR
101,345,0007T (2022
FgMRPAR
#61,302,0007T) °

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

The transactions of the Company are denominated and
settled in its functional currency, USD. The Group’s
subsidiaries in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong are
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to RMB.
Foreign exchange risk primarily arose from recognized
assets and liabilities in the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman Islands when receiving or
to receive foreign currencies from, or paying or to pay
foreign currencies to business partners. The Group's
major financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign
exchange risk are mainly cash and cash equivalents and
trade receivables in RMB which are disclosed in Note 24
and Note 22, respectively.

For the Group's subsidiaries whose functional currency is
USD, if RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
USD with all other variables held constant, the impacts
on the profit before income tax for the year ended
31 December 2023 would have been approximately
RMB101,345,000 higher/lower (2022: RMB61,302,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of net foreign exchange
gains or losses on translation of net monetary assets
denominated in RMB.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risks arise from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained in June 2020 (Note 30)
at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable
rates.

If the interest rate of borrowings with floating rate had
been 50 basis points higher/lower, the profit before
income tax for the year ended 31 December 2023 would
have been approximately RMB3,713,000 lower/higher
(2022: RMB5,829,000 lower/higher).

(b) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables (including
receivables from licensing income, purchase rebate receivables,
rental deposits and interest receivables), loan receivables and
financial guarantee contracts. The carrying amounts of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables
(including receivables from licensing income, purchase rebate
receivables, rental deposits and interest receivables), loan
receivables and financial guarantee contracts represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The Group did not record any significant credit losses
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(1)

Credit risk of cash and cash equivalents

To manage this risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, they are mainly placed with banks with high
credit rating. There has been no recent history of default
in relation to these financial institutions. The expected
credit loss is close to zero.

Credit risk of trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of at least 24 months
before the balance sheet date and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables, or significant adverse changes in the market
environment.

The expected credit loss was minimal at 31 December
2023 and 2022 as the trade receivables were considered
to be of low credit risk.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ir)

Credit risk of trade receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2023 approximately 90% (2022:
84%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from a
subsidiary of a sizeable state-controlled pharmaceutical
product distributor (“Customer A").

The credit period granted to the Group’s customers is
usually no more than 90 days and the credit quality
of these customers is assessed based on the financial
positions of the customers, past experience and other
factors. In view of the sound collection history of
receivables due from the customers, management
believes that the credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding trade receivables balances due from the
customers is not significant. The Group considered the
impact of related forward-looking factors to measure
expected credit losses, and determined that the expected
credit loss remained to be minimal as at 31 December
2023 and 2022.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Credit risk of trade receivables (continued)

The following table summarized customers with balances
greater than 10% of trade receivables:

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2022
20224

84%

(iif)  Credit risk of other financial assets at

amortized cost

Other financial assets at amortized cost mainly comprise
time deposits, receivables from licensing income,
purchase rebate receivables, rental deposits and interest
receivables. The Group considers the probability of
default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

o actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
counter party’s ability to meet its obligations;
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31 SREBEZE@) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) EEREE %) (b) Credit risk (continued)
(iii) i 72 8 15 A X (iii)  Credit risk of other financial assets at

LY LT zed '

Al E B gt 8B E amortized cost (continued)

/1= B /2 Bz (%)

e HFFHKE . actual or expected significant changes in the
XEERNE operating results of the counter party;
)8

e HFHFBHEHE . significant changes in the expected performance
RRETABEE and behavior of the counter party, including
EXEH B8 changes in the payment status of the counter
BHFAINAK party.
BREOES o

EHFROEER The credit risk on time deposits is limited because

RER RARFEX deposits are in banks with sound credit ratings and

DEBRRAEBRI management does not expect any loss from non-

AAREIRIT BB performance by these counterparties.

BEHITERZE

HFEFTBHOMmEE

EER -

M2023%F12 318 - As at 31 December 2023, there was no significant
BUEBREREE increase in credit risk since initial recognition (2022: nil).
[B, B 0 M R E 40 The Group assessed that the expected credit losses for
(2022F : F) - A & these financial assets within the next 12 months are not
BETXAREZER material.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
adequate committed credit facilities. The Group's primary
cash requirements are for payments for acquisition of license
arrangements, purchases of inventories, payments for operating
expenses, capital injections into subsidiaries, and unexpected
cash outflow due to other unforeseen crisis.

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through a combination of cash
generated from operating activities, the net proceeds received
from the global offering of the Company and other funds
raised from the capital markets from time to time.

The cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other
current assets (excluding prepayments) held by the Group
are expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current assets
of RMB2,748,863,000 (2022: RMB2,709,055,000). With the
consideration of anticipated operation cash inflows, and the
ability of adjusting the pace of its operation expansion and
expenditures, the directors are of the opinion that the Group
has sufficient cash flows in the near future to manage the
liquidity risks.
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3 ZREREEe 3 Financial risk management (continued)
31 SRAKREER®) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) mEEZLREEE) (c) Liquidity risk (continued)
TEBREBEEERBEXRBZE The table below analyzes the Group’s non-derivative financial
EXREEBHANFE LA - liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
BAREENENTESHEA remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
BB ZEATEBAET - maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
EABRBENEERAEHOR contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
BB eRE - AREER 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
Mg EWTEKR RI2@E discounting is not significant.
AREI BN ESRESHE
R T 45 84 o
K3 122F 225F S5ENE At
Less than Between 1 Between 2 More than
1year and 2years and 5 years 5 years Total
AR®T T ARET T AR®T TR ARBTT AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023
BoOREMERTKE Trade and other payables (excluding
(PEREMNH S RIEL) salaries and bonus payables) 469,978 - — - 469,978
HE&aRE Lease liabilities 13,636 9,912 10,862 — 34,410
483,614 9,912 10,862 — 504,388
R2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022
B 5 & H T 5RE Trade and other payables (excluding
(TEREEMH 2 RIEL) salaries and bonus payables) 279,966 - = = 279,966
&% Borrowings 445,461 430,815 = = 876,276
MHEaE Lease liabilities 12,850 6,322 1,304 — 20,476
738,277 437,137 1,304 — 1,176,718
20234 122022412 A318 - As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have
AEBTETESRBE - derivative financial liability.
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group considers its capital structure as the aggregate of total equity
and long-term debt less cash and cash equivalents. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in order to have funds
available to support the business activities which the directors intend to
pursue in addition to maximizing the return to shareholders. The directors
do not establish quantitative return on capital criteria for management, but
rather relies on the expertise of the Group’s management to sustain future
development of the business.

In order to carry out current operations and pay for administrative costs,
the Group will spend its existing working capital and raise additional
amounts as needed. The Group reviews its capital management approach
on an on-going basis and believes that this approach, given the relative size
of the Group, is reasonable.

The table below analyzes the Group’s financial instruments carried at fair
value as of each balance sheet date, by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorized into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1);

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2); and

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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5 AREBEMEE 5 Fair value estimation (continveq)

T % 5 /R 720234 2022412 A31H The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured at fair
BRAnRBEGEZASEEEAE: value as at 31 December 2023 and 2022:

F-BH F_BHK FEZEBR &35
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETT AR®Tr AR®Tn ARETxn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
#2023512 8318 As at 31 December 2023
NAARBEFEEEZYFAENBLENEA Financial assets at FVPL — Current_
BE— Y — HEMFR(ME20) transferable certificate of deposits (Note 26) - - 187,476 187,476
NAREBEFZAEZHFALM2ANEMN Finandal assets at FVOCI — Non-Current_
SHEBE—FRE — RERE (ME20) equity investments (Note 26) 57,025 - 49,579 106,604
WAREEFEEEZEFTAEMEZNESH Finandal assets at FVPL — Non-Current_
BE—FNE— RERE (T2 equity investments (Note 26) 24 — 4,009 4,033
57,049 — 241,064 298,113
®2022%12A31H As at 31 December 2022
WAREEFEEEZHFASEHEZMER Financial assets at FVPL — Current_
BE—nE — BREMEFHE26) structured deposits (Note 26) — 141,000 = 141,000
WAREEFEEEZHFASHEXMER Financial assets at FVPL — Current_
BE—NY—EEFNE(ME20) transferable certificate of deposits (Note 26) = = 61,701 61,701
WAREEFEEEZHFALM2EMEN Financial assets at FVOCI — Non-Current_
SRMEE —FRE — WERE (H:E26) equity investments (Note 26) 74,543 = 48,752 123,295
WAREEFEEEZEHFAEHMEZNER Financial assets at FVPL — Non-Current_
BE— Y — RERE (M 5E26) equity investments (Note 26) 1,106 = 3,952 5,058
WAREEFEEEZEHFAEHMEZNER Financial assets at FVPL — Non-Current_
BE—FRE— EBRE(HE26) debt investments (Note 26) = = 14,748 14,748
75,649 141,000 129,153 345,802
TR AIRAT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 4 [E#i% ANNUAL REPORT 159
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at each of the reporting dates. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. The quoted market price incorporates the market’s
assumptions with respect to changes in economic climate such as
rising interest rates and inflation, as well as changes due to ESG risk.
These instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities and for instruments where ESG risk gives
rise to a significant unobservable adjustment.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;
o Discounted cash flow model and unobservable inputs mainly

including assumptions of expected future cash flows and
discount rate; and

o A combination of observable and unobservable inputs,
including risk-free rate and expected volatility, etc.
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5 Fair value estimation (continued)

() EE=EBRANEFIA @) (c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
AEBEERBENEZER Level 3 instruments of the Group's assets and liabilities include long-
TEBERURAABETZEAH term equity and debt investments measured at FVPL and long-term
FHAABRZERERARE equity investment measured at FVOCI (Note 26).
BREUNRANAREBETER
Hggt AHEm2ERkEN K
AR RE1R & (MY 7E26) ©
TR 2 5] & E20234F %20224F The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments of
RANBIEFEUNRAABERE long-term debt investments measured at FVPL for the years ended 31
BHEZPAFABG 2 RHABK December 2023 and 2022.

BEME=ZERIEZF -
BZ1N2AMBLEE

Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARBET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
F 1 At beginning of the year 14,748 90,039
NREBEEEZE Changes in fair value (15,036) (74,179)
BBEEEDH Maturity of a debt investment — (6,359)
E X =% Exchange differences 288 5,247
F R At the end of the year — 14,748

BEEERRAERADT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 FE#{% ANNUAL REPORT 161
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5 AREBEMET@ 5 Fair value estimation (conzinved)
() EX=BHRANEMIA® (c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
T & 2 5| 8 £2023F &20224F The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments of
12ANAEFEUARABEGTSE certificate of deposits measured at FVPL for the years ended 31
BEEZHAAERERZFR December 2023 and 2022.

BHE-—ERTAEZS -

BZ1N2AMBALEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REA At beginning of the year 61,701 10,005
= Addition 134,000 50,000
NRBEEZE Changes in fair value 2,080 2,042
I BY /9 FT 1S 3R IE Proceeds received (10,305) (346)
F R At the end of the year 187,476 61,701
T % 2 5] # £2023F Kk2022%F The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments
12ANBIEEEN R ABEETE of equity investment measured at FVOCI for the years ended 31
BHEHFAEMEIZEER 2 December 2023 and 2022.
REFZENFE="ERITALES -
BZE12A31MBALLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RE ) At beginning of the year 48,752 44,630
ME 5, = 58 Exchange differences 827 4,122
FR At the end of the year 49,579 48,752
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BAHEERRAR/AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 & [EZ#%

5 QAREEME e Fair value estimation (continved)
(0 Eﬁ:@%&ﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬂlﬂ(ﬁ?) (c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)
T & 2 5| 8 £2023F &20224F The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments of
RANBLEFERRAABE=E equity investment measured at FVPL for the years ended 31 December
BHEHFAERER 2 RE 2023 and 2022.
BEME=ZERIEEZF -
BZ1N2AMBALEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR¥ T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REA At beginning of the year 3,952 —
NE Addition — 3,588
ME 5 = 58 Exchange differences 57 364
F R At the end of the year 4,009 3,952
B & - Note:

The Group further assessed the need for transfers between levels in the
hierarchy given the changes in economic conditions and considering whether
a lack of observable information existed for factors relevant to the value of
certain instruments.

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 of fair value
hierarchy classifications during the year ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

The Group has a team that manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purposes. The team manages
the valuation exercise of the investments on a case by case basis. At
least once every year, the team would use valuation techniques to
determine the fair value of the Group’s level 3 instruments. External
valuation experts are involved when necessary.
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(c)

Bt

Description
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EAiH:m TLA@)%{EEJEE
BERAAZHER E’JEHHE
ﬁ“}xﬁ(ﬁﬁf{%) RIEETR
’Aluﬁfﬁﬁiﬂﬁg@‘ﬁ)\
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26) MR ABEFAEEEES
FFAE BB RN E IR E (M
2600 RARNAREEFELEEDH
FEAE ML 2 E U 5 8 AR IR A (B
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TR BEELEEEE =R
AREBEFEFMAERTTH
Rig A2 EHNELER -

AABEEM2A318

Fair value at
31 December

M/&ﬁfgﬂ u“’iﬂﬁmgu‘f}\

EHRHEN

EBRE

Debt investments measured at

FVPL
UARBEHEAELBHA
ERRENTEEERE

Transferable certificate of
deposits measured at FVPL

20225
2022
ARETT
RMB'000

14,748

61,701

(c) Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

The valuation of the level 3 instruments mainly included long-term
debt investments measured at FVPL in unlisted companies (Note
26), a long-term equity investment measured at FVPL in an unlisted
company (Note 26), short-term investments measured at FVPL (Note
26) and equity investments measured at FVOCI (Note 26). As these
instruments are not traded in an active market, their fair values have
been determined by using various applicable valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flows approach etc.

The following table summarizes the quantitative information about
the significant unobservable inputs used in recurring level 3 fair value

measurements.

BASHER TABEEBASHEANNE
FTAERBARE R12A31H EHBR
Relationship of
Unobservable Range of inputs unobservable inputs
inputs 31 December to fair value

20226

2022
EHKIE 47.30% HHRELR -
RABEME
Expected volatility The higher the expected
volatility, the lower the fair
value
HR= 3.36%-3.55% BREES
AABEHSE
Discount rate The higher the discount rate,

the lower the fair value
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(c)

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
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Financial instruments in level 3 (continued)

If the expected volatility had decreased/increased by 5% with all
other variables held constant, the fair value of debt investments
measured at FVPL would have been increased/decreased by
approximately RMB8,260 as of 31 December 2022.

If the discount rate had decreased/increased by 5% with all other
variables held constant, the fair value of transferable certificate of
deposits measured at FVPL would have been increased/decreased
by approximately RMB272,000 as of 31 December 2023 (2022:
increased/decreased by approximately RMB174,000).

The following financial instruments with unobservable inputs are not
included in the above disclosure:

—  An equity investment measured at FVOCI is valued based on
calibration to recent transaction prices or investment cost
without adjustment amounted to RMB49,579,000 (2022:
RMB48,752,000).

—  An equity investment measured at FVPL is valued based on
calibration to recent transaction prices or investment cost
without adjustment amounted to RMB4,009,000 (2022:
RMB3,952,000).

The Group has considered investees’ business operations and market
environments, and concluded there is no evidence of significant fair
value changes since the investment date.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets that are not
measured at fair value, including cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, and other financial assets at amortized cost, and the
Group’s financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value,
including trade and other payables and lease liabilities, approximate
their fair values due to short maturities or the interest rates are close
to the market interest rates.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of intangible assets associated with
license arrangements

Intangible assets associated with license arrangements that have an
indefinite useful life or not available for use are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. The Group obtained license
arrangements through acquisition for the purpose of continuing
the research and development work and commercialization of the
products, which are classified as license within intangible assets.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
intangible asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an intangible asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The impairment
assessment of intangible assets involves significant management'’s
estimates and judgements, including the expected achievement of
drug development milestones, success rate of commercialization,
the outcome of new drug development, the revenue growth rate of
each pipeline products under respective license arrangements and
the discount rate used in the multi-period excess earnings method.
The impairment test is based on the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the intangible asset is related. Key
assumptions are disclosed in Note 19.

(b) Fair value of measurement

Fair value of financial assets, in the absence of an active market, is
estimated by using appropriate valuation techniques. Such valuations
were based on certain assumptions about credit risk, volatility and
liquidity risks associated with the instruments, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
Further details are disclosed in Note 5.
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Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group's finite life intangible assets generated from its in-license
arrangements are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful
economic lives, which are estimated to be the period of the in-
license arrangement. If the Group’s estimate of the duration of sale
of product is shorter than the arrangement period, then the shorter
period is used. Additional amortization is recognized if the estimated
useful economic lives are different from the previous estimation.
Useful lives are reviewed at the end of the year based on changes in
circumstances.

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

For temporary differences which give rise to deferred tax assets, the
Group assesses the likelihood that the deferred income tax assets
could be recovered. Deferred tax assets are recognized based on the
Group's estimates and assumptions that they will be recovered from
taxable income arising from continuing operations in the foreseeable
future.

Variable arrangement in contract with customers

When the consideration in a contract with customers includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the Group, who reviews the Group’s consolidated results as
a whole when making decisions about allocating resources and assessing
performance. Therefore, it is determined that the Group’s operations
represent a single operating segment.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the geographical
information on the total revenues is as follows:

BEZ12831BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARBFT
RMB’'000 % RMB'000 %
AR A Mainland China 3,052,797 97 2,668,454 97
H A Others 102,817 3 81,227 3
3,155,614 2,749,681

REENBEAINKRESR T AREE
MIBEENNERDEELRNT

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments and
deferred tax assets, broken down by location of the assets, are shown as
follows:

HZE12831HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022

AR T T AREF T
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR A Mainland China 32,306 7 29,402 5
HAh Others 403,154 93 541,464 95

435,460 570,866

BZE2023F %2022 12 A31BIEFE -
HAEERUAEBRBRIONNEP

The customers which contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are listed as below:

I
BZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
% %
BEEA Customer A 81% 71%
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8 WA 8 Revenue
BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR T AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
RE—FREER Recognized at a point in time
—EmiHEE — Product sales 3,155,614 2,749,681
9 HftlrA 9 Other income
BEZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR® T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEERME Promotion compensation 18,340 —
TR WA Royalty income 12,418 1,823
KT # Bh (a) Government grants (a) 11,012 8,007
H b Others — 2,295
41,770 12,125
(a) BE#hHEKRAER  BEFFE (a) Government grants are all income related and there exist no unfulfilled
BT 46 B FIT B 75 B9 RO 2 16 ¢ sk E& conditions or other contingencies attaching to these government grants.
fhsk B EIE o
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10 HEHE — FHE

10 Other losses — net

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AREBTT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
KAAREEFEEEZHFAEH Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL

EaNemEEANEEE (Note 26)

(Fft 5% 26) 12,431 70,473
SNEE &5 18 )5 58 Net foreign exchange losses 40,147 85,305
H At Others (497) (386)

52,081 155,392
1M1 BMEWRA(RAX)FE 11 Finance income/(costs), net
BE1R2A3MBLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AREBTT AR T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AT A B WA Interest income from bank deposits 70,484 36,069
A& WA Finance income 70,484 36,069
BRA B X Interest expenses on borrowings (57,469) (45,497)
HEBEMN SR (HE17) Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note 17) (724) (1,096)
LR 2% Finance costs (58,193) (46,593)
BMEWA(RA)FHE Finance income/(costs), net 12,291 (10,524)
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BE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
Bt & AR¥ T ARBET T
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
Kok EERFEES Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in
process (157,824) 30,825
HREMEMEMZES®&E  Raw materials and trading merchandise consumed 717,711 432,830
EEBAMAX Employee benefit expenses 13 577,364 517,816
MHMAEMEBHEML  Market development and business promotion
expenses 200,954 179,533
8 B Amortization of intangible assets 19 127,928 101,951
mEAERBEEBRE Impairment losses of intangible assets 19 100,000 99,467
ERkeZHRAX Travel and meeting expenses 84,373 41,392
fiff 3% 19 B 54 B KBS IR 5 8 B Testing and clinical trial fees for R&D 68,763 36,002
B R Transportation expense 68,300 72,413
HERKE Professional service fees 40,598 37,946
RETHEE Royalty fee 30,673 29,566
] Y [B] 38 B Non-recoverable value-added tax 26,367 22,755
FREEESH Amortization of right-of-use assets 17 12,818 13,354
YNEE'S D& NGB Utilities and office expense 12,065 10,452
17 & MOR Write-downs of inventories 21 6,651 6,449
ME BEREEINE Depreciation of PP&E 18 4,769 3,592
% D % B Auditors’ remuneration
— Z RS — Audit services 4,284 4,028
— IR ERT — Non-audit services 290 3,200
H A Others 14,113 12,239
WA B AN~ S5 I & 8553 2+ Total cost of revenue, sales and marketing expenses,
THEAX HEBKRE  administrative expenses, R&D expenses and other
b B % 48 %8 expenses 1,940,197 1,655,810
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20224
2022
AR T
RMB’000
T& - HFeMmiEaa Wages, salaries, bonuses 388,275
LA B 17 4 2 5 69 - 5% (B 3527) Share-based payments (Note 27) 52,343
RINE Bt K () Contributions to pension plans (a) 31,477
FTEAES  BERBREEMIEE/R Housing funds, medical insurance and other social
% (b) welfare contributions (b) 45,721
517,816
(a) RiEEARAMELEFIEF AR (@) As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
E o AKEARETEESRBERE contributes to state-sponsored retirement schemes for its employees
BER NGB R - NEBEREER in the PRC. The Group’'s employees make monthly contributions
HEAKABRELS - S=4:"1 to the schemes at approximately 8% of the relevant income
LRIt - BE LR)®BAI8% & AR (comprising wages, salaries, allowances and bonus, and subject
FHEIMEE R - MAREBEIRAERE W AR to maximum caps), while the Group contributes 14% to 16% of
14% Z16% (FRAE—E LR) &AM such relevant income, subject to certain ceiling and has no further
FTEIE R - Bt ROAINR KRR obligations for the actual payment of postretirement benefits beyond
ME BRI EE— 2 B o the contributions. The state-sponsored retirement schemes are
RERARKRFEBEEMNRKE responsible for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable
EMFTERNEBANERE - to the retired employees.
B E2023F12A31BIEFEE - &~ HKD66,000 (equivalent to RMB59,000) (2022: HKD154,000
SEHIARERABEBEBEHK (equivalent to RMB137,000)) of forfeited contributions by the Group
Z AR R E 8 B B 08 i on behalf of its employees who left the schemes prior to vesting
M A66,000 T(HHE NARE fully in such contributions were utilized during the year ended
59,0007T) (20224 : 154,000/ 31 December 2023, leaving nil contributions (2022: HKD66,000
T (48 & R A R #137,0007T)) ° (equivalent to RMB59,000)) available as at 31 December 2023 for
MmM2023F12A31B A& E A] utilization by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions
R R R IR A M BOUKFE &) 5k as described in paragraph 26(2) of Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules.
(320 = 4% B B 8% D2 55 26(2) R
BT at) & = (20224 : 66,0007 JT
(18 & N A R¥59,0007)) °
(b) AEERATENEEESELHESZIE (b) Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate in

HFSEENEEMES
RERBMAMREL RIS -
©HI#13.58%
£222% (RE-ELR)AZFE
SHK - AEERZFESNEE
IAE HARE FE A RO R BIR -

REEERARERH

- BRRR

various government-supervised housing funds, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and other employee social insurance plan.
The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on
approximately 13.58% to 22.2% of the salaries of the employees,
subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability in respect of these

funds is limited to the contributions payable in each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 Employee benefit expenses (ontinved)
(c) Benefits and interests of directors
— Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/payable
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out as

BFHMET follows:
tEARE
I8 5¢0 BACER-— EBERBAH4
®4  RE@FGE  HEEAHR  HbESEA 30k BEEL ROMEEX &it
Housing
funds, medical
Pension costs- insurance
Wages, defined and other Other Share-hased
salaries, contribution  social welfare employee Discretionary  compensation
bonuses plans  contributions benefits ~ Director's fees bonus expenses Total
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HE2013£12R318 For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2023
HTEEZ() Executive Director (i)
BERE Mr. ZHAQ Hong 8,259 39 3 148 - - 16,845 25334
ERBLL(i) Ms. PAN Rongrong (i 5,329 68 75 92 - - 1,354 6,918
FUES Non-executive Directors
LiZhenfut & Mr. LI Zhenfu - - - - - - - -
Daniel Luzius Vasellaf& = Dr. Daniel Luzius VASELLA - - - - 658 - - 658
Lin Shirley Yi-HsienZ = Ms. LIN Shirley Yi-Hsien - - - - - - - -
R4 5 4 i) Mr. SHI Cen i) - - - - - - - -
TEExt Ms. WANG Haixia - - - - - - - -
BUkHnEs Independent Non-
executive Directors
HERmt Dr. LIU Guoen - - - - 658 - - 658
Chen Ping B 1 Dr. CHEN Ping - - - - 658 - - 658
Gu Alex Yushao 7t & Mr. GU Alex Yushao - - - - 658 - - 658
Wendy Hayes X + Ms. Wendy HAYES - - - - 658 - - 658
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HZE2023F12A318 L FE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 EERABXZ® 13 Employee benefit expenses (ontinued)

(c) EERARERS @) (c¢) Benefits and interests of directors (continued)
—EEME ) — Directors’ emoluments (continued)
HE202212A31BLFE - K The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/payable
SEMER EBEAABDGRES by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out as
R E BT : follows:

fEARS
I H¢f  BRALER-— BERBALL
L REEHHE  HeRIMR  HtEERA EZig HMERL ROWEER At
Housing
funds, medical
Pension costs- insurance
defined and other Other Share-based
Wages, contribution social welfare employee Discretionary ~ compensation
salaries, bonuses plans contributions benefits  Director's fees bonus expenses Total
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HZ200512A318 For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2022
HTES() Executive Director (i)
BELE Mr. ZHAQ Hong 7,670 63 n 134 - — 9,092 17,030
FHTES Non-executive Directors
Li Zhenfukt & Mr. LI Zhenfu = = = = = = = =
Daniel Luzius Vasella £ Dr. Daniel Luzius VASELLA - - - - 658 = = 658
Lin Shirley Yi-HsienZ = Ms. LIN Shirley Yi-Hsien = = = = = = = =
Ms. LI Quan (i) Ms. LI Quan (v) — — — — — — — —
REEA (i) Mr. SHI Cen (i) = = = = = = = =
THELT Ms. WANG Haixia = = = = = = = =
BUEHTES Independent Non-
executive Directors
HEafEt Dr. LIU Guoen - - - - 658 = = 658
Chen Pingf& = Dr. CHEN Ping = = = = 658 - - 658
Gu Alex Yushao %t & Mr. GU Alex Yushao — — — — 658 - - 658
Wendy Hayes X T Ms. Wendy HAYES = = = = 658 — — 658
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(c)

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Benefits and interests of directors (continued)
— Directors’ emoluments (continued)
(i) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for

their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

(i) Ms. PAN Rongrong was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 25 May 2023. Ms. PAN is also the vice president, chief
financial officer, and joint company secretary of the Company. Her
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by her
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

(iii) Mr. SHI Cen resigned from the Company on 25 May 2023.

(iv) Ms. LI Quan resigned from the Company on 19 December 2022.

— Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits
None of the directors received or receive any retirement benefits or

termination benefits during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

— Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services
During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Company

did not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services.

— Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings arrangement in favor of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such directors.

— Directors’ material interest in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business in which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly subsisted at the end of the years or at any time during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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HZE2023F12A318 L FE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 EERFBAXZ @
(d) EBERSHFMAL
RE E2023F128318 ILFE -
rEERESERHEALTEE
2 EEQO2E: — &) (EM
ERBAR LD REZE
20234 2022912 A31H It F
- BNEIS=4 (20224 : UE)

13 Employee benefit expenses (continued)
(d) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 include two directors
(2022: one) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown
in analysis above. The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2022: four) individuals during the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 are as follows:

ATHBESHT:
BZE12A3MBLELEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
TEMEF & Wages and salaries 10,279 10,164
1B IE AL Discretionary bonuses 3,614 4,723
VAR 10 & E E 1 3k Share-based payments 5,860 2,986
FTFERAES  BERBRMEMLEERE Housing funds, medical insurance and other social
F K welfare contributions 143 399
Hith g B/ A Other employee benefits 136 246
20,032 18,518

FFEFHBATHEENRS #H
MAL(TEEER)HAZED

Excluding the directors, the number of highest paid individuals whose
remunerations for each year fell within the following band is as

T follows:
BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
e E Emolument band
A R#3,000,0017TE RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000
A R#4,000,0007C — 1
A R#4,000,0017TE RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000
A R #5,000,0007C — 1
A R#5,000,0017T & RMB5,000,001 to RMB6,000,000
A R #6,000,0007T 1 2

A R ¥6,000,0017T £ RMB6,000,001 to RMB7,000,000

A K #7,000,0007T

A R ¥8,000,001T & RMB8,000,001 to RMB9,000,000

A E#9,000,0007T

176



14 FTBHRAX
AEEBWMESHRBESIMOT :

& fF B 7% R % I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14 Income tax expense

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

The income tax expense of the Group is analyzed as follows:

HZE12A31HLLEE

Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR® T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BN HR AT 13 B¢ Current income tax 92,451 84,267
IE E AT 1S B Deferred income tax 3,044 458
Efimx Income tax expense 95,495 84,725

AEEBF AT B IEA R R KA E
ARAEEBETERFBNREAE

BHOEREE ARBWT:

comprising the Group as follows:

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the tax rate applicable to profit of the entities

BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
ARE T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Ffr 45 %54 B ) & Profit before income tax 1,217,397 940,080
RERREFHE @) Calculated at applicable tax rates (a) 73,006 64,269
B 78 #0 7 (b) PRC withholding tax (b) 2,400 5,755
A gt AT S R BR B9 B 2 () Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes (c) 21,358 21,351
RERELEFRESHREENTEEIR  Tax losses for which no deferred income tax assets
was recognized 253 395
MALAMAERRIEEIE Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses (1,522) (16)
AT BEREE Over provision in prior years — (7,029)
Fr 15 B BA Income tax expense 95,495 84,725
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HZE2023F12A31MBLEEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

(a)

(b)

(9]

B PR 1S

AEBREERBALEHD
FS BB BB EETHMA
ke - RERE - HAHEZ5
0 790 3% B ) B R25% & B
HEMEE -

ARARHEETHEBARSR
BHREHERARZEZNMAZES
AMRLNERRBERAT -
WEEBSMNHAEBEMEN

EEREMKRINEEABS
ERMNEN H2BEBEBILER
58 A B B B K 38.25% i H AP
S RIHR16.5% 8 B R G -

FEFE B
RIBBEAHAPEAREZMNEK
WEH  ERBEK QR
2008 F1A1B Z B EERNFER
NBREEERERE  BEA
1£5% 3k 10% B B = 4 48 78 40 B
BH AEBBARIBEKESR
MK ZAEMBER - NEH
ERBRAEEES  HNES
BB EL S E TR
BRaE RS R EZS% W E
M ERERELCHBEE (M
31) e

AEFFT 8 B HRRAVBE X

N %= E R E 22023F %20224F
1ANBIEFETATNBRARX
FEEPEARENBBRRH
BKRLEERMERBEHRNER
EERERITAEHNBBETEND
FROAATNBZEEREE
FIEE oSBT ERIEBL -

(a)

(b)

(c)

Current income tax

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of its operations in
Mainland China was calculated at tax rate of 25% on the assessable
profits for the periods presented, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as exempted companies with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and accordingly, are
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

Entities incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong profits
tax, of which, the tax rate is 8.25% for assessable profits in the first
HKD2 million and 16.5% for any assessable profits in excess.

PRC withholding tax

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends distributed
by a company established in the PRC to a foreign investor with
respect to profits derived after 1 January 2008 are generally subject
to a 5% or 10% withholding income tax, depending on the country
incorporation of the foreign investors. The Group has recognized
deferred tax liabilities at 5% withholding tax rate for undistributed
profits of its subsidiaries in the PRC in accordance with the double
taxation treaty arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong (Note
31).

Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes

The Group’s non-deductible expenses during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 mainly represented business entertainment
expenses that exceed the deductible ceiling and exchange losses
arising from non-trade balances pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of the PRC and
Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

15 Earnings per share

(@ RIEEBRME SRELXERMND (@) Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

BBEBARBEER ARG NE
BRIAB BT H BB N T3

attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the respective period.

HEtE o
BZE12A3MBLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR TR ARB T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RABHEEABLFEAFE Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company 1,121,902 855,355
BB 1T AR & 0 T B (FARD Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(thousand shares) 614,710 673,221
BREXBFN(UAERARERT) Basic earnings per share
(expressed in RMB per share) 1.83 1.27
by BREBFRANDERBIRDEHIR (b)  Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted

FTBEABEEINLTBRE -
4R R B 1T AR AN A BR A 0
FHHEFES L - B E2023F
%2022 12A3MBILEEE - 8K
BERAN DL ERITHE R R

average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assumed
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, diluted earnings per share
was calculated by considering the ordinary shares issuable upon
the exercise of outstanding share options (using the treasury stock

FEOERBERETETINLES method).
Bt EEREFREE) -
BEZ1R2A3MALEE
Year ended 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T AR T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RRARHEE A IS FEAFE Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company 1,121,902 855,355
BERETTAERAMETSH(TR) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(thousand shares) 614,710 673,221
ERENE SR Diluted impact of share options 35,723 34,919
BREFTEMNNLEEBRMEFTHE  Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
(F &) diluted earnings per share (thousand shares) 650,433 708,140
EREERN(LERAREXRR) Diluted earnings per share
(expressed in RMB per share) 1.72 1.21
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HZE2023F12A318 L FE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

16 BRE 16 Dividends
20235658 ERRBFARE LG In May 2023, upon approval obtained from the shareholders at the Annual
RE#ER  ARAE IR E £2022F General Meeting, the Company declared dividends of HKDO0.39 per share
12A318 L FE i’k B8 KK H0.39% for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Company fully paid such
JT ° AR A 202367288 B EUK F dividends on 28 June 2023.
BRRE -
20225658 ERRBF ARG LHIG In May 2022, upon approval obtained from the shareholders at the Annual
REALAEE - NAFEIRE £20214F General Meeting, the Company declared dividends of HKDO0.35 per share
12A31MBEFEREERK%H0.354% for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company fully paid such
JT o AR A H20229F 68228 & EUK F dividends on 22 June 2022.
BRERE -
BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR TR ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
F A E AT AR B Dividends payable at beginning of the year — —
HAEIEKR S Declaration of dividends during the year 211,453 204,545
HRE kR & Dividends paid during the year (215,018) (205,622)
fE 5 =% Exchange differences 3,565 1,077
F R JE AR B Dividends payable at end of the year — —
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17 Right-of-use assets

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

HEWE
Leased properties
AR%T T
RMB’000
R2022%1818 At 1 January 2022
B AR Cost 49,850
BT #H Accumulated amortization (27,867)
REFEE Net book amount 21,983
B Z£2022F12A8318 L FE Year ended 31 December 2022
FHREFE Opening net book amount 21,983
X = Exchange differences 215
NE Additions 9,985
BIHE MR Amortization charge (13,354)
FRE@EFE Closing net book amount 18,829
7A2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022
B AR Cost 35,320
RET#EH Accumulated amortization (16,491)
BREFE Net book amount 18,829
HZE2023F12A31B L FE Year ended 31 December 2023
FYER®EFE Opening net book amount 18,829
ME 5, = 58 Exchange differences 465
= Additions 25,927
BB A Amortization charge (12,818)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 32,403
7A2023%12A31H At 31 December 2023
R AR Cost 61,247
RET#H Accumulated amortization (28,844)
REFEE Net book amount 32,403
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HZE2023F12A318 L FE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

17 EFRAEEEw 17 Right-of-use assets (ontinved)
effzElEREGHRERERS The consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the consolidated
HEARHEENT I & : statement of cash flows contain the following amounts relating to leases:

HE1R2A3MBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
ARBTT AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000

2 F i & &= % Amortization of right-of-use assets 12,818 13,354

F BRI X Interest expenses 724 1,096

FHARHBEEN Expenses relating to short-term leases 845 659

KEFBHHEMNR SR D Cash outflow for leases as operating activities (1,569) (1,755)

METHHEHENRES R L Cash outflow for leases as financing activities (13,164) (12,482)
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

18 Property, plant and equipment

BAGARRE Bl HENELER CE
Office furniture Leasehold
and equipment Vehicle improvements Total
ARETR ARE TR ARB TR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
202251818 At 1 January 2022
KA Cost 47,897 561 2,751 51,209
2HWE Accumulated depreciation (40,002) (561) (2,751) (43,314)
BREFE Net book amount 7,895 = = 7,895
HZ22F128318ILEE Year ended 31 December 2022
FNEEFE Opening net book amount 7,895 = = 7,895
B EH Exchange differences 173 — — 173
NE Additions 5,768 — — 5,768
HE Disposals (448) = = (448)
nEXW Depreciation charge (3,592) = = (3,592)
FREHEZE Closing net book amount 9,796 = = 9,796
R2022612 8318 At 31 December 2022
PR Cost 57,585 561 1,521 59,667
25t E Accumulated depreciation (47,789) (561) (1,521) (49,871)
REEE Net book amount 9,796 — = 9,796
EH ®2023F12831HILEE Year ended 31 December 2023
FNEEFE Opening net book amount 9,796 — — 9,796
EXEH Exchange differences 15 - — 15
NE Additions 3,223 — — 3,223
HE Disposals (1,247) — — (1,247)
wEZH Depreciation charge (4,769) — — (4,769)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 7,018 — — 7,018
®2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023
2N Cost 59,471 561 1,686 61,718
2T E Accumulated depreciation (52,453) (561) (1,686) (54,700)
BREEE Net book amount 7,018 — — 7,018
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B E2023F12A31BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

18 W% - MEKRE =) 18 Property, plant and equipment continueq)
MERXBEHAGHZEKRERUT Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated statement of
A - comprehensive income as follows:
HE1R2A3MBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
ARBTT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
W A K 7R Cost of revenue 604 577
HEREHMX Sales and marketing expenses 1,204 1,136
THRAX Administrative expenses 2,789 1,718
it 8 5 2 R&D expenses 172 161
4,769 3,592
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

19 BLEE

19 Intangible assets

REITER [SE 2[4
RENBEFEE BNEE
(Bt 2 (b)) (M & () B4 a st
Intangible Intangible
assets that are assets that are
not ready for commercialized
use (Note (b)) (Note (c)) Software Total
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2022%1818 At 1 January 2022
B AR Cost 191,436 663,133 17,992 872,561
RET 8y Accumulated amortization — (176,037) (14,198) (190,235)
B B8 Impairment losses (35,231) (41,000) = (76,231)
BREFE Net book amount 156,205 446,096 3,794 606,095
HZE2022F12A31B L EE Year ended 31 December 2022
FUREFE Opening net book amount 156,205 446,096 3,794 606,095
fE X =% Exchange differences 14,575 37,162 32 51,769
ANE (K@) Additions (Note (a)) 41,318 42,660 1,817 85,795
& A (M 5Ed)) Amortization charge (Note (d)) — (99,723) (2,228) (101,951)
BB B 1B (M 5 (b)) Impairment losses (Note (b)(i)) (99,467) = = (99,467)
FREREFE Closing net book amount 112,631 426,195 3,415 542,241
7A2022%12831H At 31 December 2022
BN Cost 252,106 762,382 19,625 1,034,113
Rt Accumulated amortization — (295,187) (16,210) (311,397)
WE BB Impairment losses (139,475) (41,000) = (180,475)
REFEE Net book amount 112,631 426,195 3,415 542,241
B ZE2023F12A831BLEE Year ended 31 December 2023
FYR@mEFE Opening net book amount 112,631 426,195 3,415 542,241
MEH =5 Exchange differences 1,752 6,308 — 8,060
NE (B @) Additions (Note (a)) 71,788 = 1,878 73,666
#iHE A (M Ed) Amortization charge (Note (d)) - (125,654) (2,274) (127,928)
B & 18 (M 5 () Impairment losses (Note (c)) - (100,000) — (100,000)
FERE@FE Closing net book amount 186,171 206,849 3,019 396,039
A2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023
AR Cost 327,968 775,079 21,503 1,124,550
RET#EH Accumulated amortization — (427,230) (18,484) (445,714)
VRN SR Impairment losses (141,797) (141,000) = (282,797)
BREEE Net book amount 186,171 206,849 3,019 396,039
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B

(a)

(b)

HE2022F 1283 L FEFE E
& E 5 08 B Vaborem IR #E K — TR I #E
SINEMERNBREMNRK -

B E2023FN2A3MHLELFEARESE
& EEEEOrserdut® ##

BEARAUEANRESIAZHEHEBEN

0]

(if)

H E2023F12A3MHEFE -
1 & B R A A A I 3l A
ZHEENEFLEEGTRER
ERE - 5 E2022912831H
HtFE ZRINSEHERZ
TEHEKREYRAEERE -
PEKRINE - FERBELER
REFE TR NGBARK
N AEEHETEREME
BEHEVEEETEZBERE "
BB R A A R 199,467,000
ToREeEHEZERFZRPE
RAETHRAX -

M2023%F12A318 ° & kK A
HERANKESAZHAR
WEFEEREEAARKE
186,171,000 7T (20224612 31
H: A B #112,631,0007T) °
ZEEBVEENEE RENA
AERERZBEVEESH
WERSELEM((RSELEE
LT KRE S EET  EBE
MRS ELENERERRE
meBHMBBERZBELTM
MESEMERETEER
BRE - AUE T A B E R
ERA ERSERERNT
KESE - ARBAEDER
ZEBBERE L BREBER
BERMAEREEEIHHOE
H-ABEINBEHESBERK
AMETHEEMRURE
EMERBLEENBHAR  HHE
TE B 2= b /9 78R 89 R (#2024
FE20MF)EREET ©

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Addition of intangible assets in the year ended 31 December 2022 represented

the acquisition of the license of Vaborem and the milestone payment for an in-
licensed drug, Zometa.

Addition of intangible assets in the year ended 31 December 2023 represented

the acquisition of the license of Orserdu.

Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are not
ready for use

(i)

(if)

No impairment provision was made to intangible assets associated with
in-license arrangements that are not ready for use for the year ended
31 December 2023. During the year ended 31 December 2022, after
considering the expected achievement of drug development milestones,
success rate of commercialization, outcome of new drug development
and financial conditions of licensors of pipeline products, the Group
made full impairment against intangible assets associated with certain
pipeline products with the total amount of RMB99,467,000, which were
recognized as administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of intangible assets
associated with in-license arrangements that were not ready for use
was RMB186,171,000 (31 December 2022: RMB112,631,000). Annual
impairment test is performed in respect of these intangible assets
based on the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU")
to which the intangible asset is related. The appropriate CGU is at the
product level. The annual impairment test is performed for each pipeline
product by engaging an independent appraiser to estimate fair value
less cost to sell as the recoverable amount of each pipeline product.
The fair value is based on the multi-period excess earnings method and
the Group estimated the forecast period till the year from 2024 to 2041
for its pipeline products based on the timing of clinical development
and regulatory approval, commercial ramp up to reach expected peak
revenue potential, and the length of exclusivity for each pipeline
product.
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Notes: (continued)

(b) Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are not
ready for use (continued)

(if)

(continued)

The estimated revenue of each pipeline product is based on
management’s expectations of timing of commercialization. Revenue
growth rates are based on the key inputs, such as the estimated
market penetration rates and market sizes etc. from the expected
commercialization for each of the pipeline products.

The costs and operating expenses are estimated as a percentage over
the revenue forecast period based on the current margin levels of
comparable companies with adjustments made to reflect the expected
future price changes.

The discount rates used are post-tax and represent the Group’s general
business and market risk and were derived from capital asset pricing
model by taking applicable market data into account, such as risk free
rate, market premium, beta, company specific risk and size premium.

The Group performed sensitivity test by increasing the discount rate
by one percentage point or decreasing the revenue growth rate by
one percentage point, which are the key assumptions determining the
recoverable amount of each intangible assets, with all other variables
held constant.
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HZE2023F12A318 L FE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

CAD? .
19 BEEE( 19 Intangible assets (ontinved)
MisE: (&) Notes: (continued)
(b) HEXTFEANBERSIAZEHEBEN (b) Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are not
BEEE (&Z) ready for use (continued)
iy (&) (i) (continued)
AREE2023F &2022F12A8 The key assumptions used for the calculations of the recoverable
3TAJEME RN KE S RE amounts and the impacts on the amounts by which the recoverable
REalE£ESRNESEHE amounts above their respective carrying amount (headroom) for each of
AEEHEMBNEENY the pipeline products as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as bellow:
ZREANBEERRERET
EMERA Pipeline product A
MW12A31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
BEIE = Discount rate 17% 17%
WA R X Revenue growth rate 5.0%-82.4% -0.3%-82.4%
AlEeE(ARET T Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 43,279 216,943
EEEARE T T Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) 21,340 21,035
#RE Headroom 21,939 195,908
BRI R MU BRBEOTE Impact headroom by increasing discount rate (2,390) (10,352)
WAEEFRLOHBEOTE Impact headroom by decreasing revenue growth rate (1,601) (8,416)
EMEMB Pipeline product B
A12H31A8
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
B3R =& Discount rate 17% 17%
WA RE Revenue growth rate 2.9%-135.7% 3.5%-135.7%
AlkEeEANARET T Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 693,872 792,249
BEEE(ARE T Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) 49,579 48,752
B Headroom 644,293 743,497
BRI R M RENTE Impact headroom by increasing discount rate (54,952) (64,462)
WA RO EBRENTE Impact headroom by decreasing revenue growth rate (23,841) (36,318)
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19 Intangible assets (continved)

HZE2023F12A318 1L FE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

MisE: (&) Notes: (continued)
(b) HEXTFEANBERSIAZEHEBEN (b) Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are not
mEE(|) ready for use (continued)
Gy (&) (i) (continued)
EMERC Pipeline product C
A12831H

As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AL 3R K Discount rate 17% 17%
WA ER X Revenue growth rate -2.0%-94.1% -5.1%-2,041.6%
AkEeE(ARET T Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 299,908 246,933
BEEE(ARE T Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) 43,464 42,843
B Headroom 256,444 204,090
AR R MR ENTE Impact headroom by increasing discount rate (23,960) (20,618)
WA R DEBRENTE Impact headroom by decreasing revenue growth rate (15,366) (38,169)

EMERD Pipeline product D
A12H31H

As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
A 37 K Discount rate 17% T A NA
g AR & Revenue growth rate -10.8%-124.6% @A NA
Ak e S E(ARET L) Recoverable amount (in RMB thousand) 215,847 5 A NA
REBEARET T Carrying amount (in RMB thousand) 71,788 T 3E A NA
R Headroom 144,059 T A NA
B R MUBRBOHTE Impact headroom by increasing discount rate (20,629) T3 A NA
WAERRRDHBREOTE Impact headroom by decreasing revenue growth rate (16,107) 3 A NA

ERLRBBREFGERRE
ZTRHBBEARER F&H
R WMAEEETESHAE
FMEERKE SR MK R
EFAHEERBELESEAGE
- /T EEHEAKRAME
BHETKEEE -

BRELFRFEHELER BRE
BBEZREEFLEEN R
20234 % 2022412 A318 B K
AERMEESI AL AR
MEFEAETERE -

Considering the sufficient headrooms available based on the sensitivity
assessments above, the Group believes that a reasonably possible
change in any of the key assumptions, on which the Group has based
its determination of the recoverable amount of each above intangible
assets, would not cause their carrying amounts to exceed their
respective recoverable amounts.

Based on the results of above assessments, except for impaired
intangibles that were disclosed, there was no impairment for the
intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that were not
ready for use as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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HZE2023F12A318 L FE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

CAD? .
19 EEEE: 19 Intangible assets (ontinveq)
MisE: (&) Notes: (continued)
(0 HEBELHBRSIAZEHEBEN (c) Intangible assets associated with in-license arrangements that are
BREE commercialized
M2023%F - — R EX S| A B Y H In 2023, an in-licensed drug experienced a decline in sales and failed to
ETE VAKEEINEH -A5&H meet the forecast. The Group performed impairment test for the intangible
BHREESBEAN YEZEYHEA assets related to the drug with the sales forecast and recorded an impairment
MEFVEEETREINR i provision of RMB100,000,000 as administrative expenses in the consolidated
#H ZE2023F12A318 L FEH A HF statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2023.
PHBRERARBEBEBBARE
100,000,0007T * {ER/ITHA X °
H E2022F12A318 Ikt F E I & # No impairment provision was recognized for the intangible assets associated
AEEEECNRESALHEEA with in-license arrangements that are commercialized for the year ended 31
WEFEENRBERE - December 2022.
(d #ZEBPZXCHAGHZEKREFRN (d) Amortization expenses have been charged to the consolidated
TRl : statement of comprehensive income as follows:
BZE12AMBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR® TR ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
L ONDFN Cost of revenue 125,654 99,723
$HEREIHAX Sales and marketing expenses 1,865 1,879
THRAX Administrative expenses 159 134
R R&D expenses 250 215
127,928 101,951
20 Hth&EE 20 Other assets
M12A831H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR®T T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REERATENSRT A : Financial instruments at amortized costs:
—HERZe — Rental deposits 7,046 5,301
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

21 F8 21 Inventories
M12A318
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AREBTT ARBET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
[k Raw materials 56,433 39,485
2L K G Finished goods 251,852 101,075
308,285 140,560
ERTFEEONEBRBENER FE Write-downs of inventories were recognized for the amount by which
MeREERFEEMR  LHAEHS the carrying amount of the inventories exceeds its net realizable value
mREEROMBRARKR]—H - &= and was recorded in “cost of revenue” in the consolidated statement of
2023F12A3MB I FEMF & MR A comprehensive income. Write-downs of inventories were RMB6,651,000 for
A K %6,651,0007T (20224F : A R #& the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB6,449,000).
6,449,0007T) °
22 EZEWFIE 22 Trade receivables
A12831H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR®T T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
Z 5 MWK IE Trade receivables 867,954 780,962
R B S RE WK TE R E A Less: allowance for impairment of trade receivables — —
B ERIE — F5 Trade receivables — net 867,954 780,962
M20234F K20224F12A31H - KA & & As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, fair values of the trade receivables of
BORWFEBEHNAABERAKEE the Group approximated their carrying amounts.
HE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

22 ESEWRFE @ 22 Trade receivables (ontinued)
(Q) ERBZAHMNE S EWFIEZE (@) Aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date is as
BT : follows:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
618 A ™A Up to 6 months 843,013 775,258
621218 A 6 to 12 months 24,941 5,704
867,954 780,962
AEBEMNESBEBKRE—RE The Group'’s trade receivables are generally collectible within 90 days
EEHHERMHIORAYE - B from the invoice date. No interest is charged on the trade receivables.
JE WK TE S WA B o
(b) ZBHREWGKENTIIEEEE (b) Trade receivables were denominated in following currencies:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 866,178 780,177
ET usD 1,126 464
BT HKD 650 321
867,954 780,962
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

22 Trade receivables (ontinued)

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses of trade receivables, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition. The expected
loss rates are based on the payment profiles of related customers
and the corresponding historical credit losses. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on

BHNELEERBR - ELER
?i‘“iﬂm%l«x}iﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁws
FPHEEBKREAELNNEBL
iﬁlﬁﬁﬁaﬁuﬂﬁu EMHEE -

macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

#2023F K2022412A318 -
R 5% 55 8 U R IR 3 i R AD
% KHENESEBFESE
Rk BA&E - B RER A
B & AT AR R B TROR) R R AR OB AR

N MEREEERBEE) -

HitRB&EE

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the expected credit loss was
minimal as these receivables had no history of default, majority
amount of trade receivables were subsequently settled, and there
was no unfavorable current condition and forecast future economic
condition identified.

23 Other current assets

M12A31H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR®T T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REBEKAGTENSR T A : Financial instruments at amortized costs:
— EHEFER — Time deposits 226,623 767,106
— R B R B E YR IR — Purchase rebate receivables 9,567 9,439
— W F B — Interest receivables 2,239 7,834
—HE®RS — Rental deposits 101 263
H - Others:
— ENEBRAARE — Prepaid clinical trial fee 17,243 13,481
— A Uy o] 1 E R — Value-added tax recoverable 13,330 4,357
— TE AR B — Prepaid insurance 363 470
— Efth — Others 4,735 1,485
274,201 804,435
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23 HttRBEE») 23 Other current assets (ontinved)
720235128318 - En 8 & E & As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of other current assets
BREEEZENARKQ022F : % T) were primarily denominated in RMB (2022: USD) and approximated their
FE BEERSHREAENAAE fair values at each of the reporting dates. Other financial assets that are
BES REBHEKAFENEMS measured at amortized costs included time deposits, receivables from
BEEBETEHFR - B R A E KRR licensing income, purchase rebate receivables from the suppliers, rental
H-oREUHEBRRBRYE HEZS deposits and interest receivables were considered to be of low credit risk,
REKFE EHERAFEERBRE - and thus the impairment provision recognized during the years ended 31
bt - B £20234F &2022%12A31RH December 2023 and 2022 was limited to 12 months expected losses. The
IFFERRARERBEERMN2MEAR expected credit losses were minimal as these receivables had no history
T8 Hi &5 1B o 7R20234F K 2022412 A31 of default, certain amount of receivables were subsequently settled, and
B - PS5 e W AR TE 3 A HE R R 8% there was no unfavorable current conditions and forecast future economic
ETHEWRBESBEEEESLES  BEX conditions identified as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
N B E AR R & TE R R R
BRR - WIEHEEBEB®Z) -
24 RERASEZEY 24 Cash and cash equivalents
MW12831H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
ARBTT AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ReEFREFERE Cash in bank and in hand 93,563 330,182
3E AR MG HISRITFE R Short-term bank deposits with maturity less than 3 months 1,715,628 1,341,647
1,809,191 1,671,829
Ao g8 E: Denominated in:
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
ARBT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR RMB 1,453,562 701,118
ETT usD 297,819 466,882
BT HKD 40,571 502,950
R 7T EUR 16,363 21
HAits Others 876 858
1,809,191 1,671,829
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

25 REFESNERMIA 25 Financial instruments by category
R128318
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T AR T
RMB000 RMB000

REMEEBEBEREIMEE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
WK AT ENSREE:  Financial assets at amortized costs:

—HekReEEY — Cash and cash equivalents 1,809,191 1,671,829
— B EWRIE — Trade receivables 867,954 780,962
— HEtMRBHEE — Other current assets, excluding non-financial assets
(TEEFEeRmEE) 238,530 784,642
— HMEE — Other assets 7,046 5,301
LARBEFEEHS Financial assets at FVOCI:
AAHMEEBENESREE
—UAREBEGZEEE — Long-term investments measured at FVOCI
AIAEMEE RSN
KK E 106,604 123,295
LARBEFEEEEZS Financial assets at FVPL:
AFAEHEZENEREE
—UAREBEGZEHEE — Short-term investments measured at FVPL
SAAEHESENEHKRE 187,476 202,701
—UAREBEGZEHEE — Long-term investments measured at FVPL
SAAEHESENRAKRE 4,033 19,806
3,220,834 3,588,536
REAMEEEERESMWER Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
REEK AT EMS B AR Financial liabilities at amortized costs:
— B R H MR FRIA — Trade and other payables
(T B 5 & RIEAT) (excluding salaries and bonus payables) 469,978 279,966
— BN ERE — Lease liabilities-non-current 19,768 7,355
— B HEaRE — Lease liabilities-current 13,064 12,714
— fE® — Borrowings — 832,558
502,810 1,132,593
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26 EREERKE 26 Financial assets and investments
(a) HURREEFEAES (a) Financial assets at FVPL
AEHEZNERMEE
LAREBEEFTEAEHEZHTA The financial assets at FVPL comprise the following investments:
EHEZNEREEREAT
&
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
— BHERE — (K ES) — Equity investments — Listed (i) (Note 5) 24 1,106
— BERE — JF LM (M 5E5) — Equity investments — Unlisted (Note 5) 4,009 3,952
— BB A) — Debt investments (ii) — 14,748
4,033 19,806
REEE Current assets
NARnEBEFEEHESE Short-term investments measured at FVPL (iii)
AT AE HI 18 25 M0 52 B3 4% (i)
— 7] 8 R 17 R E — Transferable certificate of deposits 187,476 61,701
— BB MFR — Structured deposits — 141,000
187,476 202,701
(b) URREEFEAESEH (b) Financial assets at FVOCI
AHMME2HKENEMEE
KAanBEFGTEEEEHFTA The financial assets at FVOCI comprise the following investments:
HhzmkEzWEeEERR
INTHRE
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 2022%F
2023 2022
AR® T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
— BERE — EW) — Equity investments — Listed (i) 57,025 74,543
— BERE — JF LW (M 5E5) — Equity investments — Unlisted (Note 5) 49,579 48,752
106,604 123,295
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Equity investments Listed

The fair values of listed securities are determined based on the
closing prices quoted in active markets. They are accounted for
using their fair values based on quoted market prices without
any deduction for transaction costs.

Debt investments

The Group made debt investments with embedded derivatives
in certain investees which principally engaged in pharmaceutical
business, the aggregated fair values of which were amounted
to nil due to the financial difficulty of the investee as at 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB14,748,000).

These investments include: (a) redeemable preferred shares that
the Group has the right to require and demand the investees
to redeem all of the shares held by the Group at guaranteed
predetermined fixed amount upon redemption events which are
out of control of the investee; (b) loan receivables embedded
with a warrant to acquire preferred shares of the investee at an
assigned price; and (c) loan receivables that can be converted
into preferred shares of the investee upon conversion events
which are out of control of the investee. These investments,
together with the above embedded features are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest. Accordingly, they are
accounted for as debt instruments and measured at financial
assets at FVPL.
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(b) UAREEFEAESEH
AH2EHKENEHEE
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(b) Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)

(iii) Short-term investments measured at FVPL

The short-term investments measured at FVPL are structured
deposits and transferable certificate of deposits, denominated
in RMB and USD, with expected rates of return ranging from
3.05% to 3.55% per annum for the years ended 31 December
2023 (2022: 2.70% to 3.55%). The returns on all of these
investments are not guaranteed, hence their contractual cash
flows do not qualify for solely payments of principal and
interest. Therefore, they are measured at FVPL. None of these
investments were past due.

The fair values are based on cash flow discounted using the
expected return based on management judgment and the fair
value of structured deposits and transferable certificate of
deposits are within level 2, level 3 and level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy, respectively.

(iv) BmAERN L8 (iv) Amounts recognized in profit or loss
BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224
2022
AREFT
RMB'000
REKLENAALEBEES Fair value changes on equity investments (519)
,ﬁi& EWMAREBEED Fair value changes on debt investments (74,179)
AREBEFEEHEZS Fair value changes on short-term investments
Eﬂ'/\?é? HEZNEBKEEN measured at FVPL
— Al EETRE — Transferable certificate of deposits 2,042
— EEHETFR — Structured deposits 2,183
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

(b) Financial assets at FVOCI (continued)

(v) Amounts recognized in OC/

BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224
2022
AR T
RMB’'000

Fair value changes on equity investments measured at

(221,573)

(a) Share options

(i)

2018 Plan and 2020 Plan

In June 2018, Silver Biotech Elements Limited (“SBE"), the
holding company before the reorganization of the Group in
2020, adopted an employee incentive plan (the “2018 Plan”),
which permits the grant of stock options to the employees and
directors of the Group. Under the 2018 Plan, a total of 4.22
million, representing 7.78% of 53.41 million common stocks of
SBE were initially reserved for issuance. The stock options under
the 2018 Plan have a contractual term of eight years from the
grant date. Stock based compensation expenses related to the
stock options granted to the Group’'s employees were pushed
down and recorded in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

(a) BERE®

(i)

20184 ;&R 2020F
& om)

R20184F 128 ~ 201944
A 2020648 KX2020%F
7R SBE» Bl A KN & B
& 8 & 13,878,5001% -
339,0001% - 936,12117 &
650,00017 f& Ax = Hi # -
FiT B & & 2 Hﬁ’fiéﬁ’]&tﬂﬁ
25 B R 1 R E A

E\Jﬁﬂﬁéﬁg,ﬁ%xﬁzaﬂuﬁ
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(a) Share options (continued)
(i) 2018 Plan and 2020 Plan (continued)

In December 2018, April 2019, April 2020 and July 2020, SBE
granted 3,878,500, 339,000, 936,121 and 650,000 stock
options to the Group’s employees, respectively. All of the stock
options were granted with performance conditions of which
vesting is contingent upon meeting company-wide performance
goals and respective individual’s personal performance goals,
compensation cost is recognized over the requisite service
period if it is probable that the performance target will be
achieved. The Group reassesses the probability of achieving the
performance conditions at the end of each reporting period
and records cumulative catch-up adjustments for any changes
to its assessment.

In June 2020, together with the reorganization, the Company
adopted another option incentive plan (the “2020 Plan”) to
replace the 2018 Plan, and its terms and conditions remain
the same as the 2018 Plan of SBE except that each share of
SBE proportionally splits into 10 shares of the Company. The
Company’s proportion of equity remained the same as SBE after
the reorganization. No incremental share-based compensation
expense was recognized as a result of this modification.

On 24 March 2022 and 30 March 2023, the Company’s board
of directors approved and declared dividends of approximately
HKD239.3 million and HKD241.2 million from its consolidated
retained earnings. Such dividends were paid on 22 June 2022
and 28 June 2023, respectively. Exercise prices for the share
options granted under the 2020 Plan are automatically adjusted
from HKD2.3962 to HKD2.0462, and to HKD1.6562 based on
the proportion of this dividend distribution. No incremental
share-based compensation expense was recognized as a result
of the exercise price adjustment.
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Share-based payments (continved)

(a) BRE®) (a) Share options (continued)
(i) 2018451 Z/R20204F (i) 2018 Plan and 2020 Plan (continued)
Fog 1 )
T & 8t B £2023F Kk The following table summarizes activities of stock options
2022F12A31MH EF E R granted to the Group’s employees under the 2020 Plan for the
B2020F FHEI R TAKE year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:
EENBREHETES:
HZ2023F12A31ALEE HE2002612A3MBLEEE
Year ended 31 December 2023 Year ended 31 December 2022
SHBRE BHERE
MTEHTEE MEHTRE
(B7) BREYE (B7) BhiEH=E
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
per option Number of per option Number of
(HKD) options (HKD) options
REA As at beginning of year 2.0462 44,947,442 2.3962 54,778,710
RERTTHE Exercised during the year 1.8247 (6,824,100) 2.2171 (8,575,000)
RE AR Forfeited during the year - = 2.3962 (1,256,268)
REXR As at year end 1.6562 38,123,342 2.0462 44,947,442
RERBBRUMTE Vested and exercisable at year end 1.6562 38,123,342 2.0462 44,947,442

#H =2023%12A318 I+ &
E BRAEEEERFNA
¥ E05 #920204F 5+ & R A
BHAEEBONRRSH
BREYEBEZTQ22E AR
#8,169,0007T) ©

FEEERRAER AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 4 E %% ANNUAL REPORT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, total expenses arising
from share-based payments transactions under the 2020 Plan
recognized as part of employee benefit expense were nil (2022:

RMB8,169,000).
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HZE2023F12A31MBLEEE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

(a) BR

(i)

=k
Grant Date

2018412 A15H8
15 December 2018
2019F4A1H

1 April 2019
20204418

1 April 2020
20205 7H18

1 July 2020

A

Total

)
20184 ;&R 2020F
& om)

B E£20239F K%20224912
A318 1t F K20204F &t &
TH T ARTT A BB AR A A
EIHAE RITEEWLT

A
Expiry date

2026412 A15H
15 December 2026
2027F 4818

1 April 2027

2028 4A1H

1 April 2028
2028%7R1H

1 July 2028

RERHARTEERENNEFHRNASOBR

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of year

(i) BRAWSEEBERE

R2021%18228 © &N R 7
EMBE R A HAEERE
BEEETE - Ft AT AR
FTLEEREAETEB
67.78EB & | Kk 7 M B K
o BXARBEEER
BEBEBTHERENS
HEIR A B R E B8RS
+F o

(a) Share options (continued)
(i) 2018 Plan and 2020 Plan (continued)

Share options outstanding under the 2020 Plan as at the end
of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

B 220235128310 L EE BE202F12A318LLFE
Year ended 31 December 2023 Year ended 31 December 2022
1R E i i

Exercise price Share options

2.04627% T 30,338,200
HKD2.0462 30,338,200
2.04627% T 1,657,000
HKD2.0462 1,657,000
2.04627% 1T 6,802,242
HKD2.0462 6,802,242
2.04627% T 6,150,000
HKD2.0462 6,150,000
44,947,442

44,947,442

5.46%F

5.46 years

(ii) Post-IPO Option Plan

On 22 January 2021, the Company adopted a Post-IPO Option
Plan, under which stock options with a total of no more
than 67.78 million shares can be granted to the selected
participants. The stock options under the Post-IPO Option Plan
have a contractual term of ten years from the grant date.
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HZE2023F12A318 1L FE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Share-based payments (ontinved)

(a) BRE®) (a) Share options (continued)
(i) BEXAGHEEBRE (ii) Post-IPO Option Plan (continued)
Tt &5
MR2023F © A 2 7 B & In 2023, the Company granted 17,511,600 (2022: 19,208,100)
BEAAREBEERERE stock options to the Group’s employees under the Post-
FEmAEBEIRT IPO Option Plan. All of the stock options were granted with
17,511,600 (2022 % : performance conditions of which vesting is contingent upon
19,208,10017) % =8 B # - meeting company-wide performance goals and respective
FTEBBREHENRLY individual’s personal performance goals, compensation cost
MEERESE BEAE is recognized over the requisite service period if it is probable
B NAEEBANEZEUR that the performance target will be achieved.
EEmEAERBERERER
BB e AT REE B AR
WEE - RIELZE RS
A T 2R 5 B B o
T & B8 B £2023F & The following table summarizes activities of stock options
2022F12A31H L FE R granted to the Group’s employees under the Post-IPO Option
BERAREERBERE Plan for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:
EIRTAEERENSE
IREZEREEE -
BZ2023F 128310 LEE BHE202512838LEFE
Year ended 31 December 2023 Year ended 31 December 2022
SREBRE Bk RE
FHTEE FHTEE
(B7x) BREHE (&) EREEEA
Average Average
exercise exercise
price per Number price per Number
option (HKD) of options option (HKD) of options
RE ) As at beginning of year 8.22 21,510,070 10.16 3,745,100
FREL Granted during the year 10.50 17,511,600 7.89 19,208,100
FRTE Exercised during the year 8.30 (1,789,700) = —
FREK Forfeited during the year 8.51 (2,440,480) 8.83 (1,443,130)
RER As at year end 9.34 34,791,490 8.22 21,510,070
RERBBRAIMGTE Vested and exercisable at year end 8.49 9,008,140 9.74 1,467,820
TABEIRPAERR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 £ E#f% ANNUAL REPORT 203
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(a)

MBI (50
(i) BARHRERIERE

i

B £2023F12A318 Ik &£
E BRABEERAMX
— WMo BERAMREE
%I E B AT K
MEERNNRRHE
EHRATBRBAARE
51,649,0007T (20224 : A
R #35,950,0007T) °

R A £2023F 2022412
A3BLEFEEXR  BRA
FABEEZERESSET
i® R 1T 5 B AR R A B R B

27

Share-based payments (continved)
(a) Share options (continued)

(ii)

Post-IPO Option Plan (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, total expenses arising
from share-based payments transactions under the Post-IPO
Option Plan recognized as part of employee benefit expense
were amounted to RMB51,649,000 (2022: RMB35,950,000).

Share options outstanding under the Post-IPO Option Plan as at
the end of the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 have
the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

RATE@MT :
HE2023F12A831ALEE HE2002612A318LFE
Year ended 31 December 2023 Year ended 31 December 2022

REAH HI#A TRE BhE B B
Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price  Share options Exercise price Share options
R20215ER 20318 A31H 2031411 A30R 9.29% T — 9.29% T —

10.18% 7T 2,385,560 1018/ 7T 3,176,970
During the year of 2021 31 August 2031 and 30 November 2031 HKD9.29 - HKD9.29 -

HKD10.18 2,385,560 HKD10.18 3,176,970
20226 A 2030F4H18H 2032611 A11A 6.33% 7T — 6.33% T —

8.40% T 15,090,330 8.40/ T 18,333,100
During the year of 2022 18 April 2030 and 11 November 2032 HKD6.33 - HKD6.33 -

HKD8.40 15,090,330 HKD8.40 18,333,100
M20235 A 203366450 K% 2033411A308 10.434 T —

13.40% T 17,315,600 TEh @
During the year of 2023 5 June 2033 and 30 November 2033 HKD10.434 -

HKD13.40 17,315,600 NA NA
= 34,791,490 21,510,070
Total 34,791,490 21,510,070
RERHATEBREOMETHRBREOER 8.01F 7616
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of year 8.01 years 7.61 years
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

MR B TR BB AR E)
B B A =
RIRE B BAE 0 BREN

N(EE

(b)

AR ) (a) Share options (continued)
(i) BEXAGHEEBRE (ii) Post-IPO Option Plan (continued)
it &)
BT 1% ] f iR 1 B9 2 72 Fair value of options granted
=
BEEAAAEERER The fair value of each option granted under the Post-IPO
BT EREN T 65 ERE Option Plan were estimated on the date of each grant using the
WAREBE HEETE binomial option pricing model with the assumptions (or ranges
Fro)fR s (s A& &) £ A thereof) in the following table:
—HEAHEEEELRE
B A G
BZ12A31MALLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20224
2022
Exercise price (HKD) 6.33-8.40
Option life 8—10%F
8-10 years
Expected price volatility of the underlying shares 47.93%-48.71%
Risk-free interest rate 1.94%-4.04%
Fair value per option at grant date (HKD)
(% T) 2.95-3.89

ZPRFIRR 10 E L
R20215FE1A228 A2 AR &
HERFERAR G A ERO N
HEB(ERXAHBRELSR
HIRPEMTE]D B AR
7] & 3£6,689,9630% & 17 #% B 17
EBFFAEEETES mHA
BUREMBERERERES -
HEREMBASETEBIEMG
HIR -

R2023F  ARRBEBH XA
MEE%RIMRE R DGEENM
2l & 12,330,600 (20224 :
2,600,00017) 5 PR %Il B& 10 B {7 -

(b)

RSUs

On 22 January 2021, the Company’s shareholders approved and
adopted a share-based payment scheme (the “Post-IPO RSU Plan”),
under which a total number of 6,689,963 shares of the Company will
be issued and granted to certain directors, officers, and other key
contributors and employees of the Group subject to certain vesting
conditions after the Listing.

In 2023, the Company granted 2,330,600 (2022: 2,600,000) of RSUs
under the Post-IPO RSU Plan.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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(b)

ZREIRMOEN 2

BT 52 BRI IR 15 B8 (i ¥ BY %5 48
BIEHEEL HBEBECRAR
TER2AAMEREERE
BIALEEAERERE - 5788
ERERBE - B E B R AR
VERBEAER - BB EK
DB B 15 TR B AR 15 B L it
B H M 2R 5 B AL
FNEE -

T &R it & = 20234F %20224F
1RANBIEFERBEERARE
ERSZHRABRMDEMTERT
AEERBNIRGKMGENM
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27 Share-based payments (ontinveq)

(b) RSUs (continued)

All of the RSUs were granted with performance conditions of which
vesting is contingent upon meeting company-wide performance goals
and respective individual’s personal performance goals, compensation
cost is recognized over the requisite service period if it is probable
that the performance target will be achieved. RSUs granted under the

Post IPO RSU Plan vest in two years.

The following table summarizes activities of RSUs granted to the

Group’s employees under the Post-IPO
31 December 2023 and 2022:

BZF223F12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December 2023
ik B
BRAREE Z R R 5
(B ENNHE
Weighted

average grant

RSU Plan for the year ended

HZ2002612A318LEFE
Year ended 31 December 2022
IR
SRAAER X B RH
() BuMHA
Weighted
average grant

fate fair value Number fate fair value Number

per share (HKD) of RSUs  per share (HKD) of RSUs

RE ) As at beginning of year 7.80 2,519,000 = —
FERFEH Granted during the year 10.18 2,330,600 7.80 2,600,000
FERTHE Exercised during the year 7.81 (1,179,500) = =
FRZW Forfeited during the year 7.74 (160,750) 7.78 (81,000)
RER As at year end 9.38 3,509,350 7.80 2,519,000
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HE2023F 128318 I EE - #®
REBEERAAZI—BOoNE X
ARAEEEBEREFSE T
BOAERONRARIELEN
F @5 A A R#15,318,0007T
(20224 : A R¥8,224,0007T) °

For the year ended 31 December 2023, total expenses arising from
share-based payments transactions under the Post-IPO RSU Plan
recognized as part of employee benefit expense were amounted to

RMB15,318,000 (2022: RMB8,224,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

27 Share-based payments (continved)
(c) Expenses arising from share-based payments
transactions
Total expenses arising from share-based payments transactions

(including share options and RSUs) recognized during the year as part
of employee benefit expense were as follows:

BROMBRHT:
BZE12A31ALEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RN : Recognized in:
W A BR A Cost of revenue 2,230 1,412
HEREHMAX Sales and marketing expenses 29,165 25,211
TER X Administrative expenses 25,379 17,260
MERX R&D expenses 10,193 8,460
& 0 B & B 2 42 58 Total share-based compensation expenses 66,967 52,343
28 BEZRHMENRIE 28 Trade and other payables
MW12831H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR®T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 [N 5K (a) Trade payables (a) 236,591 102,717
R #H e REL Salaries and bonus payable 153,122 138,786
EANEHERERERMX Payables for marketing and promotion expenses 106,706 65,999
ERNEEREE Payables for professional service fee 46,939 28,322
FERTAR BRI B R R R S B B Payables for testing and clinical trial fees for R&D 42,184 32,630
H A Others 37,558 50,298
623,100 418,752

BORNFEAREER  BERNER
B30HAXN - EHEINRATIEB
BEFReHEEAE MASEEZER
B FIEH BN R BEFXAE
THRAERRSRSMESD AX
BREERRGNE MKRLEEABER

B 5N R -

Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Where trade payables are settled via electronic cash transfer,
they are derecognised when the Group has no ability to withdraw, stop
or cancel the payment, has lost the practical ability to access the cash as
a result of the electronic payment instruction, and the risk of a settlement
not occurring is insignificant.

FAEBEIRRAEIRAT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 4 %% ANNUAL REPORT 207
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28 EFREMENRE 2
() EoEMAZEHZEHHER
EEBEEABRENER SN

28 Trade and other payables (ontinved)

(@) Aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date at the
respective balances sheet dates are as follows:

(U
M12A318
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARBET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
DR —F Less than 1 year 236,591 102,717
29 HEAE 29 Lease liabilities
M12A31H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RUATHEIBENREREE Minimum lease payments due
3
—1ER — Within 1 year 13,636 12,850
— 1224 — Between 1 and 2 years 9,912 6,322
— 2&E5%F — Between 2 and 5 years 10,862 1,304
34,410 20,476
B AR RELE B A Less: future finance charges (1,578) (407)
HEaENRE Present value of lease liabilities 32,832 20,069
15 A Within 1 year 13,064 12,714
1224 Between 1 and 2 years 9,135 6,191
2E55F Between 2 and 5 years 10,633 1,164
32,832 20,069
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R12A31H
As at 31 December
20224
2022
ARBET T
RMB'000
kRBEME Non-current liabilities
—F R B EHRAER Long-term borrowings due after one year 414,682
REBEE Current liabilities
—FAFEHRBAER Long-term borrowings due within one year 417,876

R2020F68 ARARMEENE A
RISPILEREREBITROER QA
EEPTERANDES —BHBEES
300EBEMBETmE(RE]D -
SPIL(R E Kt B A =) (fi i@ F)) B 48 K
HrEEREBBREWEFIIELEZH
BRI o

20206 © — £ 4 % A3008 & %
7T (A8 W A R #2,123,850,0007T)
AFHZHANERER(ER])BZE
BREFIRE - 20% W ANE & HE A
EUTHBEEREEZ: ()WMAQARMEK
EREXAAAEE(ERABMRE)
58 fE2020F 11 4B R SE Ak & X &
2% 558 A R2020F11 84
BELH: (MMHARAERREBEXNAR
ZEE RS ME N R 2020911 B4H Bl 5©
REXARZEE BHERAE@AK
ARRAMBRAABREEN—@EA: &
(b)2021F3A31B (AR & &%) Z Bl
fEH -

KA B R2021F3 830 £ & B B X A
TIRTERERNAMEE - BRIFERE
& - SPILE % Bl R202143H318 -
2021511848 ~ 202211848 %2023
F1MAHEEEH6 A ER T £
He0E B Xt F-He0EEETK
% PN HI60H & 2 JT ° SPILE 1R20234F
1MA20B R AT B 8 & & —Hl60E B %
7T (FH & B A R #429,672,0007T) °

In June 2020, SPIL, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained a
bank facility (the “Facility”) with a total amount of USD300 million from
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch (the “Lender”)
with substantially all of SPIL's (and its subsidiaries’, as applicable) assets and
common stocks pledged as security for the Facility.

In June 2020, a five-year loan of USD300 million (equivalent to
RMB2,123,850,000) (the “Loan”) with floating rate was drawn down
from the Facility. The first installment of 20% principal amount shall be
repaid according to the following schedule: (i) if the Company has not yet
submitted its initial public offering (“IPO") application or has completed
its IPO by 4 November 2020, the first installment shall be made on 4
November 2020; (ii) if the Company has submitted IPO application but not
yet completed its IPO before 4 November 2020, the first installment shall be
made until the earlier of (a) one month after the Company’s IPO and (b) 31
March 2021.

The Company completed its IPO on the Main Board of the HKEx on 3
March 2021. According to the repayments schedule, SPIL repaid the first
four installments each of USD60 million on 31 March 2021, 4 November
2021, 4 November 2022, and 6 November 2023, respectively. SPIL repaid
the last installment of USD60 million (equivalent to RMB429,672,000) on
20 November 2023, which was ahead of schedule.

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited



& BF B 75 g 2% BT F
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F12A318 L FE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

30 fER&) 30 Borrowings (continued)
B RITHARRERX Debt Issuance Costs and Interest Expense
SPIL %t 7% @k & &= 4£795,0003% T (M & SPIL incurred a cost of USD795,000 (equivalent to RMB5,601,000) in
A R #5,601,0007T) ) 5K A& © 3% X connection with the Facility, and the costs were recorded as debt issuance
AR EBEEBEITRA  HEZER costs offsetting the carrying value of the borrowings. The debt issuance
WEREE ZEEETRAEERE costs are being amortized to interest expense over the life of the debt using
BAEEZEEBENFERANRERIEE the effective interest method.
FMERXZ -
H E2023F K2022%12A8318 I F For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, interest expenses in
E HBZaidmmeBnF a8l connection with the Facility Agreement was USD8,157,000 (equivalent
5 8l 58,157,000 7T (18 & B A R # to RMB57,469,000) and USD6,696,000 (equivalent to RMB45,497,000),
57,469,0007T) }6,696,0003% st (4 & respectively. The average interest rate during the year ended 31 December
A R ¥45,497,0007T) ° # Z20234F 2023 was 7.28% (2022: 4.00%).
12A318 IE £ E 6 F 5 F X R7.28%
(20224 : 4.00%) °
31 IEZEFFEH 31 Deferred income taxes
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ELEHEEE: Deferred tax assets:
— BR12E A AL E K — Deferred tax assets to be settled within 12 months
RIERIAE BE — 651
EEHREAE: Deferred tax liabilities:
— BR121E A 1& #& E & — Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after 12 months
EIER IR A S (16,963) (14,570)
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HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

31 Deferred income taxes (ontinued)

B E2023F K2022F12A31HIEFE - The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the years
REMSHEERABEH(RFTR ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 without taking into consideration the
MR EZEERNEKELER) W TR offsetting of balances within the same jurisdiction, are as follows:
N
BEHEEE —
FERERE

Deferred tax
assets —
Provision for

inventory

obsolescence

AR T

RMB’000

7R2022F1A1H As of 1 January 2022 1,520
A =R Credited to profit or loss (869)
A2022%12H31H At 31 December 2022 651
"2023F1A1H As of 1 January 2023 651
A &= R Credited to profit or loss (651)
72023512 H31H At 31 December 2023 —
EZEBEBEBEE —

EMH

Deferred tax

liabilities —

withholding tax

AR T

RMB’000

A2022%1818 As of 1 January 2022 (14,981)
T AR &= AR Credited to profit or loss 411
7420224128318 At 31 December 2022 (14,570)
20231818 As of 1 January 2023 (14,570)
FFAB =R Credited to profit or loss (2,393)
A2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 (16,963)
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31 BEFRESH @

FEHBHENSEURBBRRER
BMABEERE  FeRMAEENTRE
BEEUENGEEZERRAELTAH
B K E - M2023F 128318 » A &
X K 7 A K #21,084,00075T (2022
& AR #23,089,0007T) B & 18 #E R
BLEFMBREE EAREBEASEEY
HIEBARKRRAEHBKANGEFTT
ARABEE B o A% E N A B A H AR 2
KBS B A R A B TE B 1B 5 02024 F =
2028F B Hl - AEBMMU BB MK L
RIKT B AR IBEIBAIERBAE -

31 Deferred income taxes (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax losses carrying forwards
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that realization of the
related tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2023, the Group did not recognize deferred income tax assets in
respect of losses of RMB21,084,000 (2022: RMB23,089,000) because it is
unlikely to be realised based on the Group’s estimate of future tax income
of its subsidiaries. The tax losses of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China will expire from 2024 to 2028. Tax losses of the Group’s
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

32 BRARKRMS®E

32 Share capital and share premium

EERTEER
g2 & R 175 8 Ch
Number of
ordinary shares Share Share
issued capital premium Total
ARBETR AR®T AR®T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
R20235181A At 1 January 2023 694,755,763 237 1,710,429 1,710,666
T ERE Exercise of share options 3,361,300 1 24,544 24,545
mMEREEEETERR@Q Issuance of ordinary shares
to the Option Trust (a) 10,000,000 4 — 4
BRRTHEER(D) Repurchase and cancellation
of ordinary shares (b) (81,144,291) (26) (720,455) (720,481)
1718 5 IR AR 1 B8 iz (B 333(a)) Exercise of RSUs (Note 33(a)) - - () ()]
®2023%12A31A At 31 December 2023 626,972,772 216 1,014,517 1,014,733
BETERR
¥ R A & 13 % (B At
Number of
ordinary shares Share Share
issued capital premium Total
ARBFT ARBFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
®202251A1A At 1 January 2022 681,374,263 232 1,727,026 1,727,258
e R Ik Exercise of share options 1,208,000 — 16,129 16,129
MELEREEEERAA Issuance of ordinary shares to
(SciClone Option Management SciClone Option
Limited) ([E& R #E 1) Management Limited
BR300 (“the Option Trust”) (a) 16,750,000 6 = 6
BB Rt 8 Repurchase and cancellation
LER (D) of ordinary shares (b) (4,576,500) (1) (32,726) (32,727)
$2022512 8318 At 31 December 2022 694,755,763 237 1,710,429 1,710,666

212



32 BARBMDRE

(a)

& ZE2023%F12A318 It F ¥
AAal R ERERETETRE
% 4 #£10,000,0000% (20224 :
16,750,0000%) I 3@ A% - AR &
KRAF200FFE REXARA
rERBEREFENESTR
ABRMREEABRAZEELBR -

R2023F12 8318 © B & # =
T4 A 817,630,500 % A% 19 A BR
PIEAR R A EF K5 (20224
12,883,000 % A% 7)) °

B o B R M A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

32 Share capital and share premium (continued)

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company issued and
allotted total 10,000,000 (2022: 16,750,000) ordinary shares to the
Option Trust for the purpose of holding ordinary shares under the
Company’s 2020 Plan and Post-IPO Option Plan on trust for and on
behalf of the grantees.

As of 31 December 2023, 17,630,500 shares held in the Option
Trust are accounted for as treasury shares of the Company (2022:
12,883,000 shares).

(o) # Z=20237F12A318 It & & - (b)  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company repurchased
A A 7] B [E180,744,2910% ¥ 17 80,744,291 outstanding ordinary shares with a total consideration of
EHERE BREAARK RMB720,481,000. The Company cancelled 81,144,291 shares, which
720,481,0007C © AN A A E &F included 400,000 shares that were repurchased but not yet cancelled
81,144,291k &t - K BHER as of 31 December 2022.
20224F12 A31H B ¥ Bl e K 5 7F
#9400,000 % & 2
# i2022¢12)5]31 A1k FE- During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company repurchased
N A @l B8 [14,976,5000% % 17 4,976,500 outstanding ordinary shares with a total consideration of
EHNEBR BREAARK RMB32,833,000, among which 4,576,500 shares were cancelled and
32,833,0007T © A #14,576,500% the rest of 400,000 shares are accounted for as treasury shares of the
f& 15 2 5 84 - M #% T400,000A% Company as at 31 December 2022.

% 19 742022612 A318 A B %) 1k
RN EFRG
H{ih i R 33 Other equity
7202312 A31H 20224124311
As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2022
B 4 AR® T A% 17 AR T
Shares RMB’000 Shares RMB’000
& 7 iR 15 Treasury shares 23,140,963 8 19,972,963 7

EEERORBNEXRRETARARE
BEROAIBTROAFENARA
Btn -

BAHEERRAR/AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 & [EZ#%

Treasury shares are shares in the Company that are held by share trusts
for the purpose of issuing shares under the Company’s employee share
schemes.
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33 HE#E »

33 Other equity (continued)

% 2 & B ARB T
Number
of shares RMB’000
72023F181H At 1 January 2023 19,972,963 7
MERESTEETEAR Issuance of ordinary shares to the Option Trust (Note 32(a))

(Hf #£32(a)) 10,000,000 4
i [B] 3 38 A% (P 51 32(b)) Repurchase of ordinary shares (Note 32(b)) 80,744,291 26
°F 88 3 AR (B 5E32(b)) Cancellation of ordinary shares (Note 32(b)) (81,144,291) (26)
EREEEREITESNERE  Share options exercised held in the Option Trust (5,252,500) (2)
ZRREIKHDERISFE TITE X RSUs exercised under the RSU Trust (a)

B il % 1) B8 i (a) (1,179,500) (1)
72023412 A831H At 31 December 2023 23,140,963 8

& 1 8B AR T
Number
of shares RMB’000
®2022%1818 At 1 January 2022 10,189,963 3
MEE RS L BT @A (FF  Issuance of ordinary shares to the Option Trust (Note 32(a))

#*32@)) 16,750,000 6
i B 3% 3 A% (BT 5E32(b)) Repurchase of ordinary shares (Note 32(b)) 4,976,500 1
+E 85 3 @ % (B 5E32(b)) Cancellation of ordinary shares (Note 32(b)) (4,576,500) (1)
EREEIPEITENERE  Share options exercised held in the Option Trust (7,367,000) (2)
72022512 H31H At 31 December 2022 19,972,963 7

(@)  M202152A4 » A& 2 7 @\ SCLN (@) In February 2021, the Company issued and allotted an aggregate of

214

ESOP Management Limited ([
REIKRDEMESTED ZHTRE
% A $£6,689,963% L @K -
EEBARESE TR KRG
BAEEARBRARAANERA
& %X RSG5 B E S
REFEAREEARAFTER

,f/'\ ®

B E2023F12A31H © SRR
) B i {5 5% ¥ B 795,510,463
B 15 A BR 51 1E A 2 &) E 17 B 19
(20224 : 6,689,963 & % 17) °

6,689,963 ordinary shares to SCLN ESOP Management Limited (“the
RSU Trust”). Such ordinary shares were directed to the RSU Trust for
the purpose of holding ordinary shares under the Company’s Post-IPO
RSU Plan on trust for and on behalf of the grantees.

As of 31 December 2023, 5,510,463 shares held in the RSU Trust are
accounted for as treasury shares of the Company (2022: 6,689,963
shares).
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34 Other reserve
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

NAREREE
BEEZHIAR
teEbENE URBAERN
HEE VMR E EXAZE ARRHBLR EXDE Ch
Share-based Currency
Financial asset ~ compensation translation Statutory
at FVOCI reserve differences surplus reserve Capital reserve Total
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
R2022F1 1B M & & Balance at 1 January 2022 293,938 226,067 (13,688) 25,841 (232,399) 299,759
HNBER Foreign currency translation - — 209,770 — — 209,770
ERZEEREQ Appropriation to statutory
reserves () - — — 7,185 — 7,185
WAREEFEBEEEE  Changes in the fair value of equity
AEM2ER N RE investments at FVOC|
RENDABEEY (221,573) - - - - (221,573)
FR 3 5 B B 2 Share-based compensation expenses — 52,343 = = = 52,343
R2022F12B31H & &4 Balance at 31 December 2022 72,365 278,410 196,082 33,026 (232,399) 347,484
R2023 51510 W4 & Balance at 1 January 2023 72,365 278,410 196,082 33,026 (232,399) 347,484
NEE K, Foreign currency translation — — 10,022 — — 10,022
BEZEERER Appropriation to statutory
reserves () - - - 4,690 - 4,690
WAREEEEEEE  Changes in the fair value of equity
NE A2 Y ) R investments at FVOC|
REMAABEEY (18,599) - - - - (18,599)
BOHME Share-based compensation expenses — 66,967 — — — 66,967
R2023E12B31H & 8 Balance at 31 December 2023 53,766 345,377 206,104 37,716 (232,399) 410,564
FEBERPHRAT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 FE#i% ANNUAL REPORT 215
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REBE(PFEARAMBERFE) P E
M EE MBI B B IR BB AR &Y
HEERAAEN ZFRARARKH
BRUEFE R BREOMANEITE
BRERERENZIERHL2EEZR
FEAEES HEADTWUSETHRE
BEA-DETEERBIAEENED
HER10% - MAEBE AR HEH
ZERANEZREEARE - BEE
BHROTESEREDZMERO0%
RENBRBER - EEBRBAED RME
EAESURELENESLR  HEFEH
EEBBRIABEIR/INEMELRH
25% °

LN - BB EAR L FBE I E
EFORTPBEAMINEBEMNBE QRN
HBERBAUGK ZERARARZN
BRUEFE R BBRENGENEES
BESANFEES HEHBEHER
EM/FED LT DREEF A10% ©
EREESAEBEDNFTMEARS0%RE
ABEER FREZEFAREEE
M ER FEESTAEKY
BB A ME AR -

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the stipulated
provisions of the articles of association of subsidiaries incorporated
with limited liabilities in Mainland China, appropriation of net profits
(after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) should be made by
these companies to their respective statutory surplus reserve funds and
discretionary reserve funds before distributions are made to the equity
owners. The percentage of appropriation to statutory surplus reserve fund
is 10%. The amount to be transferred to discretionary reserve fund is
determined by the equity owners of these companies. When the balance
of the statutory surplus reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital,
such transfer needs not to be made. Both statutory surplus reserve fund and
discretionary reserves fund can be capitalized as capital of an enterprise,
provided that the remaining statutory surplus reserve fund shall not be less
than 25% of the registered capital.

In addition, in accordance with the Law of the PRC on Enterprises with
Foreign Investments and the stipulated provisions of the articles of
association of wholly owned foreign subsidiaries in Mainland China,
appropriation from net profits (after offsetting accumulated losses brought
forward from prior years) should be made by these companies to their
respective reserve fund. The percentage of net profit to be appropriated to
the reserve fund is not less than 10% of the net profit. When the balance
of the reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital, such transfer
needs not to be made. With approvals obtained from respective boards
of directors of these companies, the Reserve Fund can be used to offset
accumulated deficit or to increase capital.
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Il

35 BEREEE
(a) REFEBHES

35 Cash flow information
(a) Cash generated from operations

BE12A31ALLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
ARBTT AR T T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
Fr 18 B AT I8 Profit before income tax 1,217,397 940,080
RTIEEMEHFE: Adjustments for:
ME BEREZETE Depreciation of PP&E 4,769 3,592
MY EAE#N Amortization of intangible assets 127,928 101,951
5 i B = 5 Amortization of right-of-use assets 12,818 13,354
BRAREBEFAEHEZN Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
CRMEENAABEED 12,431 70,473
17 & MOR Write-downs of inventories 6,651 6,449
mEAERBEEBRE Impairment losses of intangible assets 100,000 99,467
LA B% 17 & 2 7 557 B Share based compensation 66,967 52,343
B U A Interest income (70,484) (36,069)
B X Interest expense 58,193 46,593
HNE &5 18 Foreign exchange losses 20,241 204,719
EEELBE: Change in working capital:
FEE M,/ R (Increase)/decrease in inventories (174,376) 27,651
B 5 e W Fk E I N Increase in trade receivables (86,992) (234,450)
HEmeEEREMEAEEIM Increase in other current assets and other assets (44,024) (12,714)
B 5 K& E b e 5 IB Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
40 Of4) 215,293 (14,635)
REMBHIRE Cash generated from operations 1,466,812 1,268,804

FEEERRAER AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 4 E %% ANNUAL REPORT
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35 BEREEFEE »

35 Cash flow information (ontinveq)

(b) FEESRENMETH (b) Non-cash investing and financing activities
BZE12A3MBLEEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BAHELHWBEEREEE Acquisition of right-of-use assets through lease

(P 5217) arrangements (Note 17) 25,927 9,985
() B FHEYER (c) Net cash reconciliation
LTHIMREFENR S F Set out below is an analysis of net cash and the movements in net
ERREFEEHODMN - cash for each of the years presented.
M12A31H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BekRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,809,191 1,671,829
B ——FRERE Borrowings — repayable within one year — (417,876)
B — —FrRER Borrowings — repayable after one year — (414,682)
HEBEE — —FRNIH Lease liabilities — due within one year (13,064) (12,714)
HEaE——F%&IH Lease liabilities — due after one year (19,768) (7,355)
e F8H Net cash 1,776,359 819,202
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35 BEREEE
(0 BL&FHEYUE®

35 Cash flow information (ontinveq)
(c) Net cash reconciliation (continued)

RETBELENERE
Liabilities from financing
activities
ek
HeEEY HESRE & & &t
Cash and cash
equivalents Lease liabilities Borrowings Total
AR TR AR TR ARE TR AR TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2023F1R1AHN R & FE Net cash as at 1 January 2023 1,671,829 (20,069) (832,558) 819,202
RERERE Financing cash flows 129,287 13,164 860,352 1,002,803
HHED New leases - (25,927) — (25,927)
HNEE 38 B Foreign exchange adjustments 8,075 - (24,810) (16,735)
Hi 28 Other changes

MERZ Interest expense — (724) (57,469) (58,193)

FIEREULERERELD) Interest payments (presented as operating
cash flows) - 724 54,485 55,209
R2023512A3MAM B S FE Net cash as at 31 December 2023 1,809,191 (32,832) — 1,776,359
R2022F1B1BNBE & FE Net cash as at 1 January 2022 2,127,488 (22,566) (1,144,702) 960,220
MERESRE Financing cash flows (512,243) 12,482 435,330 (64,431)
WRL New leases — (9,985) — (9,985)
N 5 & Foreign exchange adjustments 56,584 — (123,379) (66,795)

Hih &8 Other changes

FERX Interest expense — (1,096) (45,497) (46,593)

FEFBEULEEREREZT) Interest payments (presented as operating
cash flows) — 1,096 45,690 46,786
R2022F12831BN R EEHE Net cash as at 31 December 2022 1,671,829 (20,069) (832,558) 819,202

36 ERBEBLEXRS

36 Significant related party transactions

MEAEES T AR NERLHE
EH A A HAH S —TOHBERE
BRRENERTZESN - ZHARES -
ARBEAXELAB A EHNNET TK
BRI -

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control, common
significant influence or joint control.

HZE2023FM2022F12A318LEE -
AEEWEABBARSERIRS

The Group did not have related party balances or transactions during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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FTEEEAEHM

ANEREERBENHIENEZEER

[E & % B a0 T -

FHBENTE HENMTABEF
RAMEAREE12,877,0007T (20224 :
A R #10,660,0007t) @ I B 5+ A FE
e A4 (M 7E28) » L oh - BRIKE
aT 2l % B A R #34,0000T (2022
F:AR¥36,000L) FEAES -
EERRMEAYeEAEHREIER
NEZEBEAEBHNEEARY39,000
TC (20224 : AR #42,0007T) °c M EE
EEABRENURDAERO I
BEBERERIRFIKRMDEN  ME
BN EE -

R &£ B A20234F K&2022F12 A31H I
EIMEAREERE -

M2023F12A31H - AEBH KK E
RRIMABPOEMELEAESES
5,960,0007C (20224 : &) - fF A K K
®E

H2023F12A3MBE AR EBH - K
KFEMPEREEN  BEBUFAHARE
BEATHEBEMNEMNEKREE -

Key management personnel compensations

The compensations paid or payable to key management personnel for
employee services are shown below:

BZ12A31ALEE
Year ended 31 December

20224

2022

AREFIT

RMB’'000

TE& - HaMiEa Wages, salaries, bonuses 34,227

AR R ER AT Share-based payments 14,771

BIKE B H R Contributions to pension plans 443
EERAES  BERRM Housing funds, medical insurance and other social welfare

H b 4t & 18 R 4 5% contributions 977

50,418

The wages, salaries, bonuses disclosed above include RMB12,877,000
(2022: RMB10,660,000) which were unpaid as at year end and are included
in salaries and bonus payable (Note 28). In addition, the contributions to
pension plans include RMB34,000 (2022: RMB36,000), and housing funds,
medical insurance and other social welfare contributions include RMB39,000
(2022: RMB42,000) of obligations payable to the key management
personnel. The share-based payments provided to key management
personnel consist of options and RSUs, both are equity-settled.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had outstanding commitment in
respect of unpaid registered capital to an investee company which was
accounted as a equity investment of RMB5,960,000 (2022: nil).

As from 31 December 2023 to the date of this report, save as disclosed in
this report, the directors are not aware of any significant events requiring
disclosure that have occurred.
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B

(a) FLAFWEERER

FEAHS SRR T R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Company

HZE2023F12A318 1L FE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

40 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

(a) Balance sheet of the Company

BEZ12A31BLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets
ARBEE Non-current assets
REBRARIKE Investment in subsidiaries 6,795,906 6,682,589
WAREEFEBEEEHF A Financial assets at FVOC
HtheEK Mo EE 57,025 74,543
Mo EEEBEZEHF A Financial assets at FVPL
EHERNESREE 24 15,509
Hih & E Other assets 59 59
ERBEERTE Total non-current assets 6,853,014 6,772,700
REBEE Current assets
HEMREhE&EE Other current assets 229,616 596,998
JE W A Bt 75 3 1B Amounts due from related parties 1,130,363 669,284
BehREeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 644,518 585,278
MENEERTE Total current assets 2,004,497 1,851,560
EESE Total assets 8,857,511 8,624,260
EzkBE Equity and liabilities
=R Liabilities
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 & H A sE Trade and other payables 16,822 12,670
FE 1 BB B 5 3RIB Amounts due to related parties 219,188 116,944
B E AR Total current assets 236,010 129,614
EEAE Total liabilities 236,010 129,614
EEFHE Net assets 8,621,501 8,494,646
FEREAATEEANESR Equity attributable to owners of the Company
(&N Share capital 216 237
B& 15 % 18 Share premium 1,014,517 1,710,429
H i AR 4 Other equity (8) (7)
HE s Other reserves 6,950,080 6,864,260
REBAEF (REER) Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) 656,696 (80,273)
EERE Total equity 8,621,501 8,494,646
RNEEEBERDNR202443 The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
A28AEEE=EH & WHTI Directors on 28 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf.
BEERREE -
fi- P Zhao Hong
EZE Director
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40 ARFNEEEBRERE

40 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

B8 ) Company (continued)
(b) AT ERE (b) Reserve movement of the Company
NAREBEGTE
BEEHIA
Htt2EREMN
ERZEH EXNR tREE At
Currency
translation Capital Financial
differences reserve asset at FVOCI Total
ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R2022F1818 M &t Balance at 1 January 2022 (679,005) 6,818,029 — 6,139,024
SN K Foreign currency translation 730,862 = = 730,862
UAREBEFEEEZEFAEME  Changes in the fair value of equity
HRENRERENDAEEED  investments at FVOC] — — (5,626) (5.626)
R2022512 8318 W& & Balance at 31 December 2022 51,857 6,818,029 (5,626) 6,864,260
R2023F1R1A 1 & &4 Balance at 1 January 2023 51,857 6,818,029 (5,626) 6,864,260
SMETE K, Foreign currency translation 104,419 — — 104,419
UAREBEFEEEZEFAEME  Changes in the fair value of equity
ERHENRERENAABEEES  investments at FVOC| — — (18,599) (18,599)
R2023512A31B W& £k Balance at 31 December 2023 156,276 6,818,029 (24,225) 6,950,080
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(c) EEAKMIBATRMNER (c) Information about subsidiaries
M2023F12A318 * AR A M E The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
EMBARIGFEHOT: December 2023 are as follows:
PEE:E: o A St B R A BRT/BH TEED LEny EEADEREES
BEARFE

Company name

Place and date of

Particulars of

Principal activities/ place of

Attributable equity interests of

incorporation issued/ operation the Company
paid-in capital
W12A318
As at 31 December
20224
2022
BEEEE
Directly held
Sciclone Pharmaceuticals International FI 2 & + 1992411716 900,000k ERHE L£E XBERELRE 100%
Ltd. (ii) B R1993F7A19B EE % BE/FAEHS
1M
Cayman Islands, 16 USD900,000  Product sales, manufacturing,
November 1992. Registered business development and
in Hong Kong on 19 July investment holding/ Cayman Islands
1993
MEEs
Indirectly held
Sciclone Pharmaceuticals Italy S.r.l. (i) & AF + 20009128148 10,0008t REAFMFH T/ EAF 100%
Italy, 14 December 2000 EUR 10,000  License holding in Italy/Italy
SciClone Pharmaceuticals International 51 £ & & * 2005495198 50,000%7T REZRREMHE/HEHS 100%
China Holding Ltd. (ii) Cayman Islands, 19 USD50,000  Dormant Company/Cayman Islands
September 2005
SciClone Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong &7 * 201097 14H 61,828872% L EmHEE/EE 100%
Ltd. (ii) Hong Kong, 14 September USD61,828,872  Product sales/Hong Kong
2010
NovaMed Pharmaceuticals Inc. (ii) FEES ' 2006554198 50,000%7T HREREZER/HEES 100%
Cayman Islands, 19 May USD50,000  Dormant investment holding/
2006 Cayman Islands
SciClone Pharmaceuticals Pty Ltd. (i) R * 2019F4A298 121 KERR/BRAFE 100%
Australia, April 29, 2019 USD1  Dormant Company/Australia

BHEERRAMR~AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

() FRAMBARNER @)

ARER

Company name

AR ERBH

Place and date of

(c) Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BRT/E4Y
BEHE

Particulars of

TEED/BEHE EEARRRA &S

Principal activities/ place of Attributable equity interests of

incorporation issued/ operation the Company
paid-in capital
W12A31H
As at 31 December
20224
2022
HMNAKEBERBEERDA () HE 202064528 AR#10,500,000 HE RS,/ HE 100%
SciClone Pharmaceuticals PRC, 2 April 2020 RMB10,500,000  R&D services/PRC
Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. (i)
FNEBEZS(LB)ERAAN  HE - 200743A28 14,000,000%7T KRR A/HE 100%
NovaMed Pharmaceuticals (Shanghai) ~ PRC, 2 March 2007 USD14,000,000  Dormant Company/PRC
Co., Ltd. (i)
EERE(ME)BRAF) HE 20145104158 ARKS0,000,0000 EHREEZ RS/ HE 100%
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (China) PRC, 15 October 2014 RMB50,000,000  Marketing and promotional support
Co., Ltd. (i) services/PRC
BEBETHARAA () HRE - 20156F9F24H AR¥30,000000r EAERITHZFE/HE 100%
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Jiangsu) PRC, 24 September 2015 RMB30,000,000  Products distribution and
Co., Ltd. (i) administration support/PRC
LBEZBENRBERRF () R - 201845816H AR#1,000,000  ERKHFERSFE 100%
Pu Duo Medical Technology PRC, 16 May 2018 RMB1,000,000  Clinical research service/PRC
Huangpu Shanghai (i)
EABREMB(ER)BRAR ()  FE - 2018F7H230 AR#1,000,000 HEBZHRYE/FE 100%
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Beijing) PRC, 23 July 2018 RMB1,000,000  Various support services/PRC
Co., Ltd. (i)
ELEH(LB)BRAF () FE - 200652A7H 250,000%7T EHREERE,/HE 100%
SciClone Pharmaceuticals PRC, 7 February 2006 USD250,000  Marketing and promotion services/
(China) Ltd. (i) PRC
SciClone Pharmaceuticals International FiE& & » 2008464118 50,0007 ERRAMERSE/HEHES 100%
(Cayman) Development Ltd. (ii) Cayman Islands, 11 June USD 50,000  Pre-clinical R&D services/Cayman

2008 Islands
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Company name
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Company (continued)

(c)
MR MG RAS BRI/ EM
EAHE

Place and date of Particulars of

TEED SESE

Principal activities/ place of

HZE2023F12A31BILLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2023

40 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

BEADRRA#E

Attributable equity interests of

incorporation issued/ operation the Company
paid-in capital
W12A318
As at 31 December
2023% 20225
2023 2022
SciClone Pharmaceuticals (HK) &7 2015610A218 100057 BRARMHERY/EE 100% 100%
Development Co Ltd. (ii) Hong Kong, 21 October USD1,000  Preclinical R&D services/ Hong Kong
2015
EEBREME(LB)ARRA G  FE - 2015F5A12R 1,400,000%T HERE/+HEH 100% 100%
SciClone Pharmaceuticals PRC, 12 May 2015 USD1,400,000  R&D services/PRC
Development (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(i)
SciClone Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (ii) 7% 2018F9A19H 100008 Em#E HEEREERER 100% 100%
B/ER
Hong Kong, 19 September HKD 10,000  Product sales, supply chain and
2018 quality assurance services/Hong
Kong
SciClone Pharmaceuticals F#% + 201849A19A 10,0008 EERE/EF 100% 100%
Management Ltd. (ii) Hong Kong, 19 September HKD 10,000  Management services/Hong Kong
2018
EEMHEEER (LB ARAF () PE  20205778R AR#5,000,000r EMREE/FE 100% 100%
SciClone Supply Chain Management  PRC, 8 July 2020 RMB5,000,000  Product sales/PRC
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (i)
Sciclone Pharmaceuticals Switzerland 3%+ + 202242 A178 20,0005 TEEF  RIEAR/ T 100% 100%
GmbH (i) Switzerland, 17 February CHF20,000  Dormant Company/Switzerland
2022
SciClone Pharmaceuticals International ¥ A3 » 202248 A 15H s KERERR /MK 100% 100%
(SG) PTE. Ltd. (i) Singapore, 15 August 2022 SGD 1 Dormant investment holding/
Singapore
(i) REPEEZZAMAERE (i) Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law.
ERA °
(i) HMABEREMERF - (i) Registered as a limited liability company.
FEEERRAER AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 4 E %% ANNUAL REPORT 225
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Financial Summary

BZE12A31B L E
Year ended December 31,
20234 20224 20214 20204 20194
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ARET AREBTT AREBTT AREBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 3,155,614 2,749,681 2,518,474 1,918,562 1,708,068
% F Gross Profit 2,356,201 2,070,485 1,933,006 1,490,456 1,314,927
o Net Profit 1,121,902 855,355 923,361 753,695 614,604
MW12A31RH

As at December 31,
20234 20224 20214 20204 20194
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ARETT AREBTT AREBTT AREBTT AREBTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE Total Assets 4,000,250 4,320,406 4,062,682 2,882,644 1,845,823
NN Total Liabilities 735,183 1,328,244 1,745,274 2,570,782 320,646

226



BARARE

B EM2023FRE L ERERRE

([R5 HERERBE) - AHREEHER
HMmAET (BERR  BE  BHEHE -

BEF AEEBHEARZEAREERZT
BAEEXZERAERAR(RMIKETER])

R2023FEERE HeRERTANEES
HEKRIE -

EH

AN E R E R AFIN2023F1 A1H £20234F12

A3EHERE(RERDHERE -
EBAENMKE -

HERER

WEHE
AFENBEETERERMOELER
BEMUAPERNBEESNEEHEE
R P HI2022FF FE 3R — B »

mAEE

ETE#HP BASREEERZNEEME
BB~ E) (B3R FT]) =R 4R BIBT 82 C2 P &8

MERE HeREAREEIBEAREN

ESGHR - M AEKLERA -

ABREDRBREE  HEREAHEHSH

BERAGE  HPBHE:

e EREMRRA:AKEZEZBNmMERA
28 EMRF R RE RS

ESG & 72 -
Eo

A £ ESG e & 7 1F 18 & 3%

e BLEER AREUTENSTAZT

IRIBKPI - WIRHAPUFEEN R
o,

o  FTHEHEFEA:AFJREBEFHERL  H
AEBBBEESGE R HEMKRIRIE
HAEA -

o —ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ:ﬁiﬁ%a’qﬁﬂﬁﬁé&ﬁﬁ

B st A E2022FESGIR & 0 & 1

BBREAAGTAE S UERE
RO AT M o

BE

RE - LgkERME
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

About the Report

We hereby release the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG
Report”). This report aims to fully and truly present the management practice
and performance of SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited (“We" or "the
Group”) in the ESG aspects in 2023 to its major stakeholders including the
shareholders, employees, regulatory bodies, customers, partners and the public.

Reporting Period

This report covers our ESG management approach and performance for the
period from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023 (“the Reporting Period”).

Reporting Scope
The scope of this report primarily covers our core business and includes the key

offices located in mainland China and Hong Kong, which is consistent with the
2022 Annual Report of us.

Basis of Preparation

In the section that follows, we will disclose the Group’s ESG strategies, measure
and performances of daily operation in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix C2 of the Main Board Listing Rules of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (“HKEX").

This report has been prepared in compliance with the reporting principles of the
ESG Reporting Guide, which include:

° Materiality: The Group identifies key ESG issues to be concerned through
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment, and disclosures
accordingly in the ESG Report.

° Quantitative: This report presents environmental KPIs in quantitative
terms, with narratives provided to explain the purpose and impacts.

° Balance: This report provides an unbiased picture of the Group’s current
performance on ESG management following the principle of balance.

° Consistency: The data disclosure and statistics methods used for this
report are consistent with those for the 2022 ESG Report to ensure the
comparability of information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

F—E 1 2023F A HFEBREH  CHAPTER 1: SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHT IN 2023

2023 F R A MEE KB - MERATH The year 2023 was a year full of opportunities, challenges, reform and innovation.
—F o RMBEBEBANT  RIMMBE 5 We keep working hard, ploughed deeply and always implement sustainable
RERAIFEZESE  URSEEHRESG development strategy and attach great importance to ESG management.

B - R Fﬁ%%%ﬁi@ﬂ] RIBEABEMN S Adhering to our mission of being responsible to our society and environment, we
HITEEEEBR  THELESGEERER - carry out a responsibility management system and constantly optimize the ESG
N7 £ 7 ﬁn*ﬁ Eﬁ?‘]’ TREZER - management system as well as extensively communicate with stakeholders.

M2023F  HMERR - 2 NMAFRARER During 2023, we delivered the results on ESG performance including:
HREHKRBE:

o REGTPEAFEAMBFHAM - 3 — TR B EMBE R RBBRABE N
e Investing in GTP model and other digital technologies to further enhance the experience and
GTP model efficiency of doctors and patients
GTP#ER
e NEG GTAEVBESIFES EREYRMASERES tEHENBESRRH N
o Sharmg on : BioPartnering APAC (EKE%%TTQT’E“@A), 2023 BIO Internatlonal
Industry Convention (%IEW&TTTXQ%&EEA) forum on China International Import Expo (FFE
Experience ENBEZERRE)
Sharing
TERBIE y,
e HEZREWHHUERRES REERMER IFHMLE h

e Jointly sponsored the Neuroblastoma Care Funding (fPEIEAZ HIEES) to delivery care,

Society support and treatment to patients

Responsibility
28541

A
« BBEH023FF [HREE LHAF008] h

e 2023 Favourated Listed Companies Top 100 (2023%[Z [BkAZEE EHARI00%E])
External by Snowball (XueQiu)

Recognition

SMER R A

& LG LT

international
Convention
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

CHAPTER 2: RESPONSIBLE GOVERNANCE
2.1 ESG Governance
Our mission and sustainable development concept

FEEMIFEEXL

New SciClone Corporate Culture

=13

ScrCrone
BES

BEXEEXE

Driven by the mission of “Improving patients’ health by providing top-tier
healthcare products and services with global standards of care”, we focus on
specialty in oncology and severe infection, and are devoted to becoming an
international biopharmaceutical company with sustainable growth, by working
hard to win trust from our patients, respect from our customers and pride from
our employees.

Our values include customer, win-win, responsibility, efficiency, performance and
compliance. We believe that creating long-term value rides on the sustainable
development of our business. By providing employees with the cultural
environment of international companies and a platform to display their talents
and establishing leadership criteria including setting direction, developing talents,
engaging partners, embracing change and driving for results, we continuously
overcome challenges to focus on some of the largest and fast-growing therapeutic
areas with significant unmet medical needs in China, primarily including oncology
and severe infection.

FEEEPRRAER AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 £ E#i% ANNUAL REPORT 229
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ESG& %
BEWZFEETEATSEEZRLBEEY
WEANER AIRBERER—EEAR
AEBHBEEESR THRMBLEEHH
FEE RS o

ESGEEF#E
AHEHRYUESSCEBNEET W RRANEBESG
THEMIEFNBR BMELTELEMTH
ESGEARE  BMIRESGITEMNSBHAR -
EBESGEEENRRARRE ESgHA
EEMESGRERBREZARIEMT - MK
VTHAEIBPIE THKMNESGITE) A -
NBITESGEE I F U EKBEZTERT
WESGHEBIFEE EFSHETH &
EREBHEESCEMMERAMBARER - U
RBEESGEERBEANBRRERESGEHZ
REE -

REARNR BB KETSESAEBENESGE
BRE E-FTETHEHES BRLEESGE
BREH RN - RITESGEEMRSL 25
fIEIR  BRESGERRELS -
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ESG Strategy

With more than 20 years of experience in commercializing differentiated high
quality medicines in the China market, sustainable development strategy has
always served as the framework of the Group’s roadmap and guides in every
aspect of our business.

ESG Management Framework

To fulfill the supervision of ESG matters and ensure the smooth implementation
of the ESG work of the Group, we set up a top-down ESG management
framework to ensure efficient implementation of its ESG efforts. As the highest
decision-maker of the ESG management, the Board takes full responsibility for
the Group’s ESG strategies and objectives. We have established an ESG Working
Group consisting of staff from different departments, which is responsible for
practicing ESG management practices, accomplishing ESG-related work objectives
set by the Board. The Board consistently evaluates, prioritizes, manages material
ESG-related issues and risks, and reviews the performances of ESG management
system and the progress of achieving ESG objectives.

Looking to the future, we will continue to improve the ESG management system
of the Group, further improve the working mechanism, strengthen the ESG risk
response capability, enhance the systemic and comprehensive ESG information
management, and ensure the quality of ESG information disclosure.
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2.2 Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Assessment

Stakeholders’ expectations are essential to the Group’s efforts to define its
sustainability strategy and reporting. We aim to nurture relationships with both
our internal and external stakeholders by maintaining close communication with
them through various channels to understand their needs and concerns.

During the Reporting Period, we have established effective communication
mechanisms to understand and respond their demands and expectations in a

F=EREA
Stakeholders

timely manner.

HEEER

Expectations and Requirements

BEES

Communication Mechanisms

AT M B2

EHE

Governments and regulators

BRREEKEE

Shareholders and investors

i
H

Employees

. BFERER
. ki

. EBE BT =

. EREERLTE

o Compliance with the laws and regulations
. Pay taxes
o Regular epidemic prevention and control

3 Products quality and safety

. TEER

. & & B

. EEEE

o [ B & 22

. Corporate governance
. Return on investment
3 Information disclosure
3 Risk management

. REEB T #E 2
. BEHREE
. BERFERELTE

o Protect employee’s rights and interests
3 Career development channel
3 Occupational health and safety

. ERER
. AR T
. T2 T IE R

o Compliance management

o Proactive in tax payment

o Active participation of government’s
projects

. SRS S E
. REREKEE S
. R

. NGIE R

o Mandatory information disclosure
o Shareholder and investor meetings
o Road show

o Company website

. EH e LB

. BETEELEY

. MERE B RE

. FTEBMEBMNFRENES

o Regular meetings and trainings

o Employee care activities

o Internal communication channels

o Quarterly performance communication

and annual performance review

BHEERBARNT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 FE#% ANNUAL REPORT 231
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F=EEA
Stakeholders

HEEER

Expectations and Requirements

BEES

Communication Mechanisms

EEREE

Customers and patients

EEBRHREES

Partners and suppliers

=

Communities

ROTEERITERE

Peer companies and industrial
associations

%

i

Media

= 4 21 E M AR 7
BREMNEH
AR &

High quality products and services
Responsible marketing
Privacy protection

&R
XEE}LDME
F o R A

Compliance procurement
Win-win cooperation
Intellectual property protection

a9
X RF AL R AR A

Community development
Support for community welfare

RS
HITEBRRAEMER

Fair competition

Contribution to industrial development

BEEMNE®RKRS
EFHANHEZES

High-quality products and services
Positive social influence

AR 7% 2 AR [ B B
=P

Service hotline and email
Conferences and meetings

Hmekes

& 75 5h [
EE G M

Conferences and meetings
Business visits
Audit and performance evaluation

B 75 A8k
NS

Official website
Public welfare activities

TT% = &
BE2E

Industrial conferences
Benchmarking

B 2% A
B 73 ATk

Press release
Official website
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BMEBUTTREMRIEREZE N We regularly review major issues to align the strategy and long-term objectives in
ICEESGEENFEBERERAR: ESG management through the following steps:

o R — ¢ BAIESGERE
Step 1: Identifying ESG issues

SRR ARR 5 A EA R B4 ESG

Based on the Group’s business development and industrial trends, 18 ESG
issues has been identified which were believed to have significant impact
on our business and stakeholders.

 IH T FAEERN
Step 2: Assessing the materiality

PBAEEABHBEMTAASHS - BT EBEEBHSENE | Al
AR NTE | EHTENE TS (ARENEEN - RIFFEEER
BAIHIE T EZ TR o
Through materiality evaluation questionnaires within the Group, we
assessed the materiality of every issue by the aspects of “materiality to
SciClone’s business” and “impact on stakeholders”. Based on the results
of the survey, the materiality assessment matrix was formulated.

o FEE= : RERMAER

Step 3: Verifying the assessment results

FHEERERES S NESC TLIFNERE RFER °

The assessment results have been reviewed and confirmed by the Board
and the ESG Working Group.
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203F - AKEBBEBLLE AP
HRERBESE I HESRECTREE
ERMNEKRERBETENTMGH BR
202FESGREEEUTHEBIT EHIRE

In 2023, the Group re-evaluated the risks and opportunities presented by issues
in different dimensions through business summaries, internal work interviews and
reviews, and confirmed that no significant change has occurred in the material
assessment matrix in the ESG Report in 2022:

=
High
JEHEEE Extremely Material
EE Material EREERZ2
Product quality and safety
= o BREREARE HERRHEZS
EEmIpE)ﬂﬁf:iﬁng Business ethics and Occupational health
and development hizgity and safety
EEANEHREFRER
Responsible marketing
EEEEELRE and customer satisfaction
4 Customer information
3 and privacy protection HRERERE
S Intellectual property protection
< o
[ ERMERAN  asmpmaee
© d:le'ilopmen t Sustainable supply
- . _
2 and innovation chain management g T 3 & 3EF
o Employee
+ RIER rights and
® Public welfare ) ETRABELEH benefits
Qo Prohibit child labor and
§ forced labor
e HHEER BEMHER
o Energy conservation Packaging material management
i
£ BRI ER
Hu Water conservation
8
m
i< -
| A EZE Immaterial
® THSHRER
:'g;ﬂ FEEREEY Solid waste management
Climate risk and response
BAABERER
Wastewater and gas
management
& >
Low HELEKMNEEM Materiality to SciClone’s business = High

ERMTMER

Materiality Assessme
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2.3 Business Ethics

We regard the business ethics as an essential part of our core values. We strictly
follow Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China ( FEEARLFE L)) ,
the Pharmaceutical Administration Law of the People’s Republic of China ({ F
FEARLMBEEREIRE)), the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
(hEAREME R EEHFEE)) and other laws and
regulations from time to time.

Republic of China

Anti-Corruption

We strictly abide by relevant national and local laws and regulations such as
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China and remain
committed to the ethical and honest operation. Furthermore, we formulated
Global Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy (& Bk % B BX 82 v /& B K
%)) , which specifies the details and requirements for anti-corruption, and
is applicable to all employees, suppliers, customers, contracting parties and
other stakeholders. We organize all employees
to attend anti-corruption training every year,
enhancing their compliance awareness through

online compliance trainings. We also believe that
transparent effective whistle-blowing systems
and procedures can prevent and correct improper

whistleblower@sciclone.com

or illegal acts in a timely manner. Therefore,
we established a sound internal investigation
mechanism to conduct comprehensive
investigations on the reported matters.

Reporting email of the Group:
Whistleblower@sciclone.com

During the Reporting Period, we did not receive any significant accusation or
report related to corruption of the Group or employees.

Compliance Marketing

To further strengthen the Company’s control of the whole process of marketing
activities, we formulated series Standard Operation Procedures ("SOP") to
standardize the procedures covering marketing events, academic activities
and business entertaining. We regularly organize both on-line training and
classroom courses to the staff, making sure all employees can acquire sufficient
understanding and knowledge on compliance and business ethics. We established
Compliance Disciplinary Committee (“CDC") to investigate potential violation or
other behaviors against the honest principles. CDC is also responsible for making
the decision for punishment and enacting the remediation measures if necessary.

Intellectual Property

We continuously managed and protected our own achievement effectively. We
have engaged external counsel to manage all our intellectual property rights,
ensuring the risks related to the identification of property rights are effectively
controlled. We have also established a regular reporting system to ensure that we
can adequately control the risks associated with our intellectual property.
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EELZREFRE
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ARTHEERER2EERREAGERS
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REVRELERRE EEM/ENUE

ZE e

BMBEEBAERHANBRERSEEE
BERHEER MAEEABREFHE Bt
IHRBHBBEENRL - RIBE LRZR
ER O BPRMAEFEIRBREAETRHE

MABEIN ATLREERT  ARE
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EEEHT
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Information Security and Privacy Protection

We strictly abide by the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Data Security Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations. In addition,
to keep improving information security management and enhancing information
security management capabilities, we have formulated the /nformation Security
Policy, to protect key information infrastructure, important network and data
security.

We provide products to hospitals and various medical institutions through
business partners instead of direct selling to patients, so the privacy of end
consumers is not involved. Pursuant to laws and regulations mentioned above, we
offer training on basic knowledge for all new and existing employees, involving
business confidentiality, compliance obligations and legal liabilities, to improve
customer privacy awareness and prevent the customer privacy from being
infringed.

2.4 Product and Service
Quality management
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We are always committed to providing patients with safe and effective drugs by
improving the quality management system and product quality. We strictly abide
by the Pharmaceutical Administration Law of the People’s Republic of China ({#
EAREMBIZERE IR L)), Good Clinical Practice of Pharmaceutical Products
(EYMBRABEEETIRRE)), Measures for the Administration of Drug
Registration ((%& Skl B HE #15X)) and other laws and regulations, and carry
out research and development, clinical research and commercial production in
accordance with the law. We have formulated the Quality Manual (G &F
1)), a series of quality management procedures covering production, inspection,
sampling, testing and records, etc., to provide standardized guidance for the
implementation and improvement of quality management at all levels.

Product Responsibility and Drug Safety

We manufacture our proprietary product, Zadaxin, through Patheon ltalia, an
industry leading and highly reputable CMO. We outsourced the production of
in-licensed products to our partners under the Supply Agreement with them. Our
production quality management standards remain complied with GMP in various
markets where we have operations.

Process performance and product quality will be monitored through the review
of production activities and outcomes release stability testing activities. We
will maintain a testing program on an adequate number of product batches to
evaluate the stability of the products, including proper storage conditions and
expiration date.

Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and President of the Group, we established
the Drug Safety Committee (“DSC"”) to manage product quality and potential
safety hazards. When receiving an adverse event or report, DSC shall collect and
investigate related data such as patient and medication information, complete
the investigation report, and take action according to the investigation results
including notifying the users to stop using relevant products and ensure that the
unqualified products are recalled and quarantined when necessary. Furthermore,
in order to enhance the awareness of product responsibility, the Group regularly
provides certain training to staff in the respective drug safety.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, we did not receive any significant
products safety issues and service related complaints, nor any product recalls due
to safety and health reasons.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group continuously improves the management process of supply chain and
the quality of the suppliers through the strictly abidance by the Procurement
Standard Operating Process. In terms of supplier selection, the Group conducts
comprehensive evaluations of the qualifications, supply capacity, product quality
and services of suppliers to strictly control the supplier bidding management
procedures. Suppliers are required to provide qualification documents and
complete the Third-Party Due Diligence Checklist (E=FZBMEHRAE))

to ensure compliance with Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) and SciClone’s
Global Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption Policy (& ¥k & Bf B% 81 [ & B X
%)) . Moreover, for existing suppliers, regular and random quality reviews are
conducted through supplier review reports or on-site inspections. In addition, we
encourage suppliers to promote green manufacturing and ecological design and
to carry out green evaluation. We are committed to helping suppliers to jointly
improve the resource utilization efficiency and minimum environmental impact.
As of December 31, 2023, we have 12 major product-related suppliers (mainly
including production, warehouses and logistics), with 6 suppliers in Europe, 4
suppliers in Mainland China and the rest of suppliers in the other countries and
regions.
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CHAPTER 3: EMPLOYEE AND COMMUNITY
3.1 Employees’ Overview

We consider talents the core capital for the sustainable development of the
Group. To ensure our employees’ talents are fully exhibit and efforts are rewarded
better, we are providing our employees with global-standard company culture
and a platform for them to perform. We also make sure their efforts can be
recognized and rewarded.

We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations applicable to the places where
we operate, such as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations
applicable overseas. We formulate and continue to refine our internal policies,
through which we can provide systematic guidance for employees in recruitment,
removal, working hours, vacation and other aspects. We clarify the employment
principles and standards in the system and manage the entire process of hiring,
promotion and termination of employees to ensure that employment is managed
legally and regularly.

During the Reporting Period, we continuously expand our professional team. As
of December 31, 2023, We had a total of 1,046 employees, who are all full-time
employees.

BERENDHET AR
Number of Employees by Age
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694 199
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Below 30
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Over 50
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Number of Employees by Regions

7 5
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Mainland China

m MBI Rk
Other countries or regions

BEEZRRAR AT SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited 2023 & E#{% ANNUAL REPORT

1,034

Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan

239



RE g kEARE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

3.2BTRRE

REEBRKFSZAT HEUEIES
BR - BPBRBREF(REARANME LS
EY AR EARKMBEL B & RE)  (FLE
ERETRE)LEMERERNRSE T AR
ER e BREERETRBESE - MEKE
AEBERZEEREFETHE  BEESR
BB EAEMBEREE -

HMEEEINZ T REAEEO A 5
BER HZMNTEREIRHUEAERR

XENTEHe BATFHAEREEETIM
Newmih e FHE BEILEK -

BMRABRTIRHEEERNEERY - RE(F
FEARANBEHEREIZ) (HERBEH
BETERIDEKEE2BZEREDN) -
1F37%E\I&H¢%Z£Wﬁ$zi‘\f% B BE B
mEERR  KERR BERR ITHRF
B EBERBREFLES - BRMTB AR
E\ITTLﬂiqufﬁtE’]?Ef‘ BX- £

REIZSEXZEZEEBMNNER  KMABR
TRESEFCHNEXREN  UHEHFER -
BYHY  BI4AERE BERABT
FRR

240

3.2 Employees’ Rights and Interests

The Group adheres to legal employment and provides labor contract with every
employee. We have closely followed the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China (HZEAREZFELE L)), the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China (R #FEARKEXMELE &R E)), the Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labor (ZIEFERETHE)),
employment and labor laws and regulations. Child labor and forced labor are
strictly prohibited. The Group will carry out investigation in accordance with
relevant procedures if necessary and hand over any illegal cases to the relevant

and other relevant

judicial authorities for handling.

We believe that the diversity of employees can ensure the sustainable
development of the Group. We are not only providing our employees with equal
opportunities for personal development and performance but also equitably
treating and respecting our employees, regardless of their gender, region,
nationality, background and race.

We provide generous benefits and holidays for our employees. /n accordance
with Social Insurance Law of the PRC ({F ¥ AR EXMBEI+t FREIE)), Interim
Regulations on the Collection and Payment of Social Insurance Premiums ({tt
SRR ERBETIEH)) and Regulation on the Administration of Housing
Accumulation Funds (T B A& & B E % H1)), we provide employees with
timely payment of social basic insurance funds, including endowment insurance,
unemployment insurance, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund. We are also committed to
creating the most advantageous welfare system for our employees among peer
companies. In addition to ensuring that employees are fully entitled to statutory
benefits, we provide employees with special benefits unique to the Group such as
paid annual leave, commuting subsidies and gifts on employees’ birthdays, etc.,
so as to enhance their happiness.
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We are grateful to all employees for their tireless contributions to the Group. In
order to ensure their well-being in the workplace and retain the best talents,
the Group has established a complete performance management system to
motivate employees to devote themselves to work entirely and stimulate their
work commitment to exploit their potential fully according to their positions.
Remuneration for each employee is determined by base salary and annual
performance bonus. We will review employees’ salaries every year based on
operational conditions, market salary payment levels and employees’ performance.
Besides, according to SciClone Performance Management Guideline ((&E 4%
MEIREK)), employees need to finish the goal setting and planning at the
beginning of the year and complete at least one Quarterly Review with the line
manager. We encourage the line managers to give team members continuous
coaching and feedback, review their goals, performance and provide advice
and assistance for their development and improvement during the Quarterly
Review. We kick off Performance Appraisal at year end to evaluate Employees’
Achievement and desired behaviors and values through two metrics: performance
goals and behavioral standards.

The Company also adopted the Option Incentive Plan, the Post-IPO Option Plan
and the Post-IPO RSU Plan to reward eligible employees for their contributions to
the Group and to attract, motivate and retain skilled and experienced employees
for the future development and expansion of the Group.

We believe our policy can provide employees sense of belonging. The turnover
rate of the Group’s employees decreased to 17.1%, compared with 21.7% last
year. During the year, all the employees who left the Group were from Mainland
China.

BFERE D HBE R
Employees turnover rate by age
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Note: Turnover rate of each category = the number of resigned employees of this category/
the total number of employees of this category as of December 31, 2022 and 2023
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3.3 Occupational Health and Safety

We attach great importance to occupation health and put the personal safety of
our employee in the first place. We strictly abide by applicable Chinese laws and
regulations on workplace health and safety, including but not limit to the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({F# AR X MBI & E))%)) and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases ({#p 2= A R £ A B B 2 /% [5 /8 /5)) . To ensure the safety of the
workplace and enhance the safety awareness of our employees, we formulate
the Office and Safety Code ({ift A k% 2 # BI)) and introduce the guideline of
safety practices during new employees training. We make continuous efforts to
guarantee the occupational health of our employees. We provide annual physical
examinations and organize psychological counseling lectures for employees. We
ensure that employees have sufficient supplies to prevent occupational diseases
and have appropriate personal protective gear. There was no work-related fatality
during the Reporting Period and the past three years. In 2023, there was no lost
days due to work injury.

FREER
ELVE]
physical

DI
psychological
counseling

provision of emergency
drugs, masks and
regular disinfection

Meanwhile, we continuously provide advanced, convenient, comfortable and homelike office
to our employees. During 2023, we refurnished our canteen and pantry in Shanghai office and
expanded the telebooth to provide more equipped and functional working environment.
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3.4 Talent Management

The Group attaches importance to the development of talents and takes the
identification and cultivation of compound and professional talents as the starting
point.

Promotion

We encourage promotions, provide fair and transparent opportunities to all, and
pursue the principle of equal pay for equal work. By formulating the SOP for
Promotion Management (& A ERIZERERE)), we have defined the
specific conditions and process requirements for promotion, so as to create a more
fair and equal opportunity for employees’ career progress and development. Our
promotion system comprises position promotion and technical title promotion.
For each position, we discuss and formulate personal development plans together
with our employees, and help employees to improve their comprehensive ability
and achieve their career planning goals through different ways such as special
training, performance counseling, job rotation and secondment, etc..

BsET

Position promotion

BREET

Title promotion
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Talent Training

We attach great importance to the training of employees.
@ | $€6or Our Training Department, consisting of several professional
ST training experts, is responsible for designing, organizing
and summarizing the trainings mainly covering marketing system, pharmaceutical
system and soft skills development for supporting function employees. We offer
abundant training resources to employees, ranging from online to offline training
programs. “iSciclone”, as our online training platform, provides a more efficient
channel for employees to learn about our Group’s policies and complete relevant
exams remotely via mobile phones or laptops. We also founded “SciClone School”
(B £ 2PBR) which has significantly improved employees’ learning efficiency and
skills.
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BTRSEIOHEE RBE - KMRE To improve the pertinence and efficiency of the trainings, we design the courses
TRMEMERFTRE  WREBEIMNFER: based on different positions to match employees’ needs:
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get a comprehensive understanding of our Group and its products

ABSEH

Orientation training:

through the introduction of company culture, compliance training, drug
safety alert and quality complaints, etc.

ERHEERD EFPERE BERINKERESR HRANEBRDS
HERREZI : 75 TH A9 AR 58
Sales representative knowledge of advanced sales skills, customer management,
training: self-awareness and effective communication, negotiation and winning
skills, etc.

ERXBEE BAKRD BHER BREE BESENRBEE
2 % 77 T A A

L EH : : : : .
knowledge of regional business management, interview skills,

Manager training: : . .
performance management, situational leadership, workplace stress and

emotional management, etc.

RSM %3 : SIEEE  BEHRREENRESE
RSM training: lead the leader; coach the coach; leadership courses, etc.

FHERELRBOEREI TBERMNBELSERSNSERG S
KkIAE

advanced training regarding management and strategy aspects, as well

R ED

Advanced training:

as participate in various workshops and projects through our SciClone
School
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2023FE BT 55| Employees Training in 2023
MR2023F  HMEEFRBTAEEIES - During 2023, we successively conducted a lot of training activities and received
BRT2HERENRIEE: enthusiastic response from the participants:
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3.5 Employee Care

At SciClone, we share success and joy and celebrate achievements and growth
together. To achieve work-life balance and create a joyful, united and harmonious
working atmosphere for our employees, we organize different kinds of activities
such as annual convention, Christmas special activity and Family Day, etc. We
make our SciClone intranet ("B 4£ R4 ") as a small community for employees
where we organize varied activities regularly calling for everyone to share
their photos, experiences and thoughts in the aspect of photography, reading,
travelling, delicacy, filming and sports, etc.

[T calll &

Fh &R S Tia
150=
PELTE 150+
1 B8 Fy 480 employees rewarded
1 000§E in “call for you”
7
1,000+ *®

photos sharing
to share
the joy of life

activities to partici- REV’.EW
{

it 8 e R )
BXSATT )

-

cmaman | 2023 oot i ment s

EMEMHREMNBERC-£) BEQAREE 2EHXFERTEHES
We regularly publish our magazine Xin Sheng (#-4) in which we delivery our company value and
share business news and industry update, etc.
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3.6 Community Care

We are enthusiastic about participating in community charity activities and always
believe that the implementation of charity activities is not only a platform for
the Company to fulfill its social responsibilities, but also an important measure
to build a positive company image and enhance employees’ pride. With the
continuous development and growth of the Company, we will firmly fulfill our
responsibility on social public welfare. We plan and participate in community
public welfare, take the initiative to assume social responsibilities, and apply our
endless domestic innovations in benefiting patients in China and around the
world.

At the beginning of 2023, following the adjustments of pandemic policies in
China, a new wave of COVID-19 infection outbroke and to meet the urgent needs
of patients, we established an emergency supply channel and appointed certain
pharmacies as emergency suppliers to ensure Zadaxin's availability.

In the second half of 2023, we jointly established and sponsored ” Beijing New
Sunlight Charity Funding + Neuroblastoma Care Special Funding” (1t & #7F% ¢
HEEs e+ BB EHEIBEBE S, aiming to provide economic support, medical
help, patient education and caring for the patients who suffered from high risk
neuroblastoma. In December 2023, the first “Neuroblastoma Care Day” (%8 &f
& H) was held in Shanghai, calling for more attention to the rare disease of
neuroblastoma. Children’s families from all over the country gathered at the
Affiliated Pediatric Hospital of Fudan University (18 B X Z2 K& 2RI 2 Ft) to
learn about disease popularization and listen to patient experience sharing.
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CHAPTER 4: GREEN DEVELOPMENT AND
ENVIRONMENT

In addition to continuous business development, we are fully aware that we bear
the social responsibility and mission of protecting our environment. We actively
respond to the national call for energy conservation and emission reduction,
persist green development concept, and adhere to the sustainable development
path. We strictly abide by Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((FEARLFIFEIRIEREIL)) and the Energy Conservation Law of
the People’s Republic of China ({F#E A R KRB E 442K %)) and other laws
and regulations to build a harmonious environment.

4.1 Climate Change

We are aware of the importance of climate change to the sustainable
development of the earth. Pursuant to the disclosure methods and
recommendations of Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD),
we identified the risks including typhoon, flood and other extreme weather
related to climate change affecting the Group. During the Reporting Period, we
were not affected by the above risks. We will continue to identify the risks and
opportunities arising from climate change, improve our capability and level to
respond to such risks, minimize carbon emissions from our daily operations and
actively undertake the mission of addressing the climate change.
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4.2 Office Environment and Consumption

We formulated Energy Conservation Management as the guideline for employees
to reduce the generation of waste. We have taken several measures and obtained
remarkable results during 2023.

During 2023, our total indirect energy consumption*(MWh) was increased from
162.52 MWh to 176.34 MWh. As a result of our effective measures on saving
energy, our energy consumption intensity (MWh per capita) was stable, 0.169
(MWh per capita) for the year 2023 compared with 0.164 MWh per capita for last
year.

* Total energy consumption is calculated based on the electricity consumption in offices
and warehouses.
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v REAEAEIR KA

v call for energy and water saving

v switch off power and water equipment in a timely manner
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v encourage paperless office
v optimize and reduce the printing volume

v paper recycling
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v BIEERPIE Y EkREEE Y

v garbage classification

v recycle hazardous waste by specified department
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The waste generated from office operation is mainly residual waste disposed by
the property management. Since the environmental impacts are relatively limited,
KPI A1.1 (The types of emissions and respective emissions data), A1.3 (Total
hazardous waste produced), A1.4 (Total non-hazardous waste produced) are not
disclosed in the ESG report.
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Our Group's water consumption is mainly for domestic use and sourced from
municipal water system, which is sufficient for of daily operation. However, as
only a minimal amount of water was used in the offices and water charges are
not required, KPI A2.2 (Water consumption in total and intensity) is not disclosed
in the ESG report.

4.3 Production and Energy Consumption

No production process is conducted in the Group while we are committed to
strengthening the reduction of packaging materials at the source and reusing the
materials, packaging materials and other resources in the process of testing and
verification, so as to improve the recycling efficiency of packaging materials and
reduce the waste of resources.

In 2023, the packaging materials used per unit produced keep stable at 0.038 kg/
unit produced compared with last year. The total packaging materials used by the
Group amounted to 147.1 tonnes, compared with 117.6 tonnes last year. However,
for every production unit of packaging material we used, our output remains
stable at 0.05 tonnes per thousand RMB of revenue.

Based on the nature of our Group’s business operation, there is no material direct
Greenhouse Gas ("“GHG") emissions (Scope 1) as the use of fuels is relatively
limited in our Group. Thus, our GHG emissions mainly consist of energy indirect
GHG emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity. GHG emissions are presented
in CO2 equivalents. The GHG emissions of purchased electricity in Shanghai
region were calculated based on the electricity emission factor published by
Shanghai Ecological Environment Bureau in 2023 while other GHG emissions were
calculated in accordance with the 2011 and 2012 Regional Grid Average CO2
Emission Factor for China ({20114 F120124F & B [& 1% = 48 £ 39 — |1k Bk HE R
A F)) issued by the National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC) and
How to Prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs issued by HKEX.

20234 20224
R EKPI Environmental KPlIs 2023 2022
BERBHEREEM _EtmES Total GHG emissions (tCO,e) 97.5 90.1
— RREEAEREHEN(EE ) — Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)
(W —&ftiREE (tCOse) 97.5 90.1
— REREHENAE — GHG emission intensity (tCO,e per capita)
(Mg {bixE & A) 0.09 0.09
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Apart from the matters disclosed above, we have not caused any significant
environmental impacts nor have we heavily utilized other environmental and
natural resources during our operation. Therefore, Aspect A3 (The environment
and natural resources) and KPI A3.1 (Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them) are not applicable to our Group, and are not disclosed in the ESG
report.
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Definitions And Glossary

[BE AL

“affiliate”

[ERMAA IRESRERMAE]
“Articles” or “Articles of

Association”
[BREEE]

“Audit Committee”

[EEg]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[FREHB(ARZEIIRDTE)]

“Cayman Companies Act” or
“Companies Act”

(&R

“CG Code”

KA
“China”, “Mainland China” or
“the PRC”

[CHINET]
“CHINET”

fcmol

“CMO”

[CNS]
“CNS”

[ 8 & 615 ]

“Companies Ordinance”

[ARAF]

“Company” or “our Company”
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BEEIHEENEESEALTXRFAT EA T EEAMEENNEBRE
FALTRINEESREERRZEHOTAEMAL

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person

EHR2023F5 25 HBITHRRBFRAG LB BENFIAZEAKRMETMBILR
2023F5A2SHAEMME —HEETREIZEBREZIZMAA

the second amended and restated articles of association, conditionally adopted
by special resolution at an annual general meeting held on May 25, 2023 and
effective on May 25, 2023

EXeEZ%ES

the audit committee of our Board

B9

the board of Directors

FeBHBEEMNERE(RRNE)EEENDOIIFEIFIEN) - K IFEETHMH
75 5 PA B 75 S B 2k

the Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman lIslands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961),
as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

CEMBBDMSEOmMEACEE QAT RTA
code on corporate governance practices contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules

hEARKAME  RAFEREMES - FRETSE  RPIBBTRERAH
the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this annual report,
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

B R AR

the China Antimicrobial Surveillance Network

BREERE REETENEMARRHSHNRBORGR  BRHE2EMEY
BLE R

Contract Manufacturing Organization, a company that serves other companies in
the pharmaceutical industry on a contract basis to provide comprehensive drug
manufacturing services

AR AR R A

central nervous system

BEREEDFE22E(A TGN (TR EFT S 7T)
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended
or supplemented from time to time

BEEXERAERARF  —HR2020F5ABERERESHSEMA LN ER R
BERAF

SciClone Pharmaceuticals (Holdings) Limited, an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on May 13, 2020



[copD]
“COPD"

[CRF/
“CRE”

[E£]
“Director(s)”

[DTPZ: & |

“DTP pharmacies”

EEERl

“GL Capital Group”

[GMPJ

“GMP”

[EE IR EM]

“Group”, “our Group”, “we"” or

" "

us

THABP/VABP]
“HABP/VABP”

[HcC
“HCC™

& LR K

Definitions And Glossary

18 1 PH 25 1 b 7R
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease

BAEMBERZ

cancer-related fatigue

ARAEF

the director(s) of our Company

BERBEEE ERNEBEEFEERHEEEENEXRBNER - ER2EWIE
EEAER T - DIPEFSRREENE 7R EEPTERE &2 F %
2]

direct-to-patient pharmacies, which refer to pharmacies that directly provide
valuable professional services patients. When patients receive doctor prescriptions
from the hospitals, DTP pharmacies deliver the drugs to the patients based on
their prescriptions at the time and location of patients’ choices

B mRE—RR - WIEEAEE - 2 HGL Capital Management GP
Limited * GL Capital Management GP L.P. ~ GL China Opportunities Fund L.P. + GL
Glee Investment Limited * GL Capital Management Ltd + GL Capital Management
GP Il B.C.I Ltd ~ GL Trade Investment LP » GL China Opportunities Carry L.P. + GL
China Opportunities Carry GP Limited &2 GL Partners Capital Management Ltd 48 A%
B — 4R A

our single largest Shareholder, which is not a legal entity, but a group of
companies comprising GL Capital Management GP Limited, GL Capital
Management GP L.P, GL China Opportunities Fund L.P., GL Glee Investment
Limited, GL Capital Management Ltd, GL Capital Management GP Il B.C. | Ltd, GL
Trade Investment LP, GL China Opportunities Carry L.P., GL China Opportunities
Carry GP Limited and GL Partners Capital Management Ltd

ROEERES BETABRIMETIERHNESIRBI  ELREERE
BW—HsD BRESCERETHCEANEEREELERBHFEZSE
51 K AR B B2

Good Manufacturing Practice, guidelines and regulations issued from time to time
pursuant to the guidelines and regulations in different territories as part of quality
assurance which ensures that pharmaceutical products subject to these guidelines
and regulations are consistently produced and controlled in conformity to the
quality and standards appropriate for their intended use

AN E) e EOMY R R A R (Bt AR F K A H B A B AR ey AR A R 2 B E
MiME)ZEWBRRKEANS QA (RBERME) L L0 ER

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before the
Company became the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)

BB 1S 1 A B M b A R VR IR AR BB AR B b
hospital-acquired bacterial pneumonia and ventilator associated bacterial
pneumonia

FF 48 B2

hepatocellular carcinoma
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Definitions And Glossary

[Tkl 51
"HK$"” or “Hong Kong dollar(s)”
or “cent”

[& %] |
“Hong Kong” or “HK"

[ 2 78 B 32 i | = [k 32 T |
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or
“Stock Exchange”

£l |
“Listing”
£ HH |

“Listing Date”

[{Em KRR Ec

“Listing Rules”

[E4R ] %

“Main Board”

[ERAAIRABERAE] %

“Memorandum” or
“Memorandum of
Association”

[ 2% 5r Al %

“Model Code”

[ 48 B 18 30 B 5t 281 Ec

“Option Incentive Plan”
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ERBEEEEET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

PEEFEFTRER
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

EEBMERHIMARLIDF
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

R BEEBRZAER LT
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

2021F3A3H RN BEBMIMET W E AR BT BRI MAKEETNRH
the date, expected to be on or about March 3, 2021, on which our Shares are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and from which dealings in our Shares
are permitted to commence on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

(BAEBEXGMERRABES LT ENRETHH )
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time

HEBBRXMEENESFMG(TBEHENS) BLNE BB AGEMIL
BLH 1T EAE

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

fE R 20211 A22E B R RAT RN Em AMERNARAEBEIERME -
Ht 28 0B & 12 M 8%

the memorandum of association of our Company, conditionally adopted by our
Shareholders on January 22, 2021 to take effect on the Listing Date, of which is
set out in Appendix IV to the Prospectus

(EMRANMECHE ITBETAESTETESRZINFEETH
the model code for securities transactions by directors of listed issuers as set out
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules

ARATFR2018F6 A24R #E R R M A R E S B &1 8 (B T RAEET) - AARR
AIREMHBRARNNESREEAR R A TEZRTNBMERTN BRI M
EDEER—REN —D.ROE . BREMBTE ]

the option incentive plan approved and adopted by our Company on June 24,
2018, as amended from time to time, for the benefit of any director and employee
of the Company or any of our subsidiaries; a summary of the principal terms is set
forth in the section headed “Statutory and General Information — D. Share Plans
— 1. Option Incentive Plan” in Appendix V to the Prospectus



[BERAMBRERBRESS

“Post-IPO Option Plan”

[BERARBRERZIRERDEMN

&l

“Post-IPO RSU Plan”

[HRERAISREX]

“PRC government” or “State”

[ARER]

“Prospectus”

[FHEES]

“Remuneration Committee”

[ ¥ &5
“Reporting Period”

TAR#¥]
“"RMB"”

[RRERODELNFEER

"RSU Holding Entity”

& LR K

Definitions And Glossary

R2021FNANE R RERBERANERRARABEERBRESS - RET
2EERFARGBEARAMEARERG  TEZRAMEFRNBRERMERDE
FER—MER —DIRMETE —2BRARBEERBRESS ] —&

the post-IPO share option scheme adopted by Shareholders’ resolution on January
22, 2021, to provide selected participants with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in our Company; a summary of principal terms is set forth in
the section headed “Statutory and General Information — D. Share Plans — 2.
Post-IPO Option Plan” in Appendix V to the Prospectus

R2021FIA2Z2EEARFRBERANBERRAHAEEERZREIR O EME -
CAEHEE SRAEULHEGOERESBEREERAHDZTARANHKD
FTERFBEFRNBREREMEFDLDEER —REH —D.RHOFE I3 FAA
FREERIBEHMRNELE]—

the post-IPO Restricted Share Unit Plan adopted by Shareholders’ resolution on
January 22, 2021, to enable the directors, officers, and other key contributors
and employees of our Group to share the success of our Company; a summary
of principal terms is set forth in the section headed “Statutory and General
Information — D. Share Plans — 3. Post-IPO RSU Plan” in Appendix V to the
Prospectus

FEFREAT  BEMAEBASB(BEE TRhEMBER T RFEE)R
Hit s (Fe X E ML) AP E[—1E

the central government of the PRC, including all political subdivisions (including
provincial, municipal and other regional or local government entities) and its
organs or, as the context requires, any of them

AABHBFB2021F2A19RM AR EGR
the prospectus of the Company dated February 19, 2021

ExgVERe

the remuneration committee of our Board

2023F1 A1 £2023F12 A31H — £ B
the one year period from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

REDEE BB ARK

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

SCLN ESOP Management Limited + — fi] 74 2 & 4 B = £f & 5 it B 32 B /B Maples
Trustee Services (Cayman) Limited 2 BB M AR AR BEBARAAEEEX
BRI B BAGEREER R RIBEERAHEE %R HEALE
REAREANGER LT &8 E)#FE KRN

SCLN ESOP Management Limited, a limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Maples Trustee Services (Cayman) Limited,
holding our Shares pursuant to the Post-IPO RSU Plan on trust for and on behalf
of grantees under the Post-IPO RSU Plan which will be determined after the Listing
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Definitions And Glossary

[SciClone US|

“SciClone US"

[ % 43 5+ &l ]
“Share Plans”

[ 17 ]
“Share(s)”

[R5
“Shareholder(s)”

[smMpc
“SMDC"

ML HE]

“subsidiary(ies)”

[TACE]
“TACE"

[ E ]
“U.S."

&
“Usb”

%]

"o
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SciClone Pharmaceuticals LLC (AT % & SciClone Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) © — %
19904F5 84 7£ 35 B 0 A 48 JE o2 M FE M B 32 - 36 A20034F 6 26 B 72 5 B 1 #r
EMEFTMEZORA > REMEAMEMIER FHNER - AFEHTHE -
SciClone UST™ B E AR KB/ — 5D

SciClone Pharmaceuticals LLC (formerly known as SciClone Pharmaceuticals, Inc.),
a company incorporated in the State of California of the United States on May 4,
1990 and reincorporated in the State of Delaware of the United States on June
26, 2003, and our previous listing entity on NASDAQ. Upon completion of the
Corporate Reorganization, SciClone US is no longer part of the Group

BhEABTE BRALHEEERBEREAILERLRABEERZRG RN
i
the Option Incentive Plan, Post-IPO Option Plan and Post-IPO RSU Plan

RRRPRAF G IR EE0.00005% Tt &) E A IR
ordinary share(s) in the capital of our Company with nominal value of US$0.00005
each

L SGESECPN

holder(s) of our Shares

NDFEYBEY

small molecule drug conjugate

BEACETRAD AT &% =E

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

FFE AR R 42 28

transarterial chemoembolization

EMEBERE
the United States of America

EEETEEE
the lawful currency of the United States of America

Bt

per cent
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